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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 001-40573
l=.lmage_0.jpg

Krispy Kreme, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 37-1701311

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) (IRS Employer Identification No.)

2116 Hawkins Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28203
(Address of principal executive offices)

(800) 457-4779

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Common stock, $0.01 par value per share DNUT Nasdaq Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes X No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of
this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes X No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company.
See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

"

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O
Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. O
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management's assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting
under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report.

If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the registrant included in the filing reflect the
correction of an error to previously issued financial statements. [J

Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-based compensation received by any of the
registrant’s executive officers during the relevant recovery period pursuant to § 240.10D-1(b). O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes [0 No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of the end of the registrant’'s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, based on the
closing price of $13.60$14.73 for shares of the registrant's common stock as reported by the Nasdag Global Select Market, was approximately $1.2 $1.3 billion. Shares of common
stock beneficially owned by each executive officer, director, and holder of more than 10% of our common stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be
affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

The registrant had outstanding 168.1 million 168.7 million shares of common stock as of February 17, 2023 February 15, 2024.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for the registrant’'s Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to which will be held on June 22, 2023 filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after
December 31, 2023, have been incorporated by reference into Part 1l of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART |

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “plan,” “believe,” “may,”
“could,” “will,” “should,” “would,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “objective,” “seek,” “strive” or similar words, or the negative of these words, identify forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and estimates that we consider reasonable but are subject to various risks and uncertainties and
assumptions relating to our operations, financial results, financial conditions, business, prospects, growth strategy and liquidity. Accordingly, there are, or will be, important factors
that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements including, without limitation, those described under the heading “Risk Factors” in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The inclusion of this forward-looking information should not be regarded as a representation by us that the future plans, estimates or expectations
contemplated by us will be achieved. Our actual results could differ materially from the forward-looking statements included herein. These forward-looking statements are made only
as of the date of this document, and we do not undertake any obligation, other than as may be required by applicable law, to update or revise any forward-looking or cautionary
statement to reflect changes in assumptions, the occurrence of events, unanticipated or otherwise, or changes in future operating results over time or otherwise. We are including
this Cautionary Note to make applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for forward-looking statements. We
expressly disclaim any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements after the date of this report as a result of new information, future events, or other developments,
except as required by applicable laws and regulations.

Item 1. Business

The Joy of Krispy Kreme
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Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Krispy Kreme”) is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our iconic
Original Glazed® Glazede doughnut is universally recognized for its fresh, hot-off-the-line, melt-in-your-mouth experience. Over its 85-year86-year history, Krispy Kreme has
developed a broad consumer base globally and currently operates in over 30 39 countries through its unique network of fresh Doughnut Shops, partnerships with leading retailers,
and a rapidly growing Ecommerce and delivery business. Our purpose of touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is Krispy Kreme guides how we operate every day and is
reflected in the love we have for our people, our communities, and the planet.

l#.Original Glazed.jpg

We are a global omni-channel business with more than 11,800 14,000 Global Points of Access, creating awesome fresh doughnut experiences via (1) our Hot Light Theater and
Fresh Shops, (2) Delivered Fresh Daily (‘DFD") branded cabinets and merchandising units within high traffic grocery and convenience stores, Quick Service Restaurant (“QSR”),
club membership, and drug stores (“DFD Doors”), and (3) Ecommerce and (4) our Branded Sweet Treat Line. Ecommerce. We have a capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model, which
leverages our Hot Light Theater Shops’ production capabilities and Doughnut Factories to deliver fresh doughnuts daily to local Fresh Shops, DFD Doors, and through Ecommerce
channels. We seek to increase our Sales per Hub through innovation, marketing campaigns, and increasing physical availability to our fresh doughnuts from our Hubs to new Points
of Access, primarily DFD Doors. Additionally, our convenient Ecommerce platform and delivery capability are significant enablers of our omni-channel growth.

We also launched in mid-2020 our Branded Sweet Treat Line, a new line of Krispy Kreme-branded packaged sweet treats intended to extend our consumer
reach with shelf-stable, high quality products available through grocery, mass merchandise,
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and convenience locations. In addition to creating awesome, fresh doughnut experiences, we create “cookie magic” through Insomnia Cookies, which specializes in warm, delicious
cookies delivered right to the doors of its consumers, along with an innovative portfolio of cookie cakes, ice cream, cookie-wiches, and brownies. Insomnia Cookies is a digital-first
concept with over 40% 45% of its sales driven through Ecommerce in fiscal 2022, 2023. Targeting affordable, high-quality emotional indulgence experiences is at the heart of both
the Krispy Kreme and Insomnia Cookies brands.

Our current business model, which focuses on fresh daily premium quality doughnuts produced by the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model, primarily via Company controlled
shops is in contrast to the Krispy Kreme operating model prior to 2016, which was focused on retail and legacy wholesale channels (including discounted long shelf-life doughnuts
and coffeehouse execution), a capital-heavy Hot Light Theater Shop production model, and primarily via franchisee controlled shops. We In addition to our core offerings such as the
Original Glazed doughnut, we now also focus on limited time offerings (“LTOs” or “specialty doughnuts”) and seasonal occasions to generate buzz for our premium products. A taste
of our offerings includes:

l#_A Taste of Our Offerings.jpg

The Ingredients of Our Success

We believe the following competitive differentiators position us to generate significant growth as we continue towards our goal of becoming the most loved sweet treat brand in the
world.

Beloved Global Brand with Ubiquitous Appeal

We believe that our brand love and ubiquitous appeal differentiate us from the competition. We believe that Krispy Kreme is an iconic, globally recognized brand with rich history that
is epitomized by our fresh Original Glazed doughnut. We are one of the most loved sweet treat retailers in the U.S. and many markets around the world. We are the most loved
sweet treat brand in several key countries already in fiscal 2022,2023, such as the U.S., the U.K., and Australia, based on the results of Krispy Kreme's Annual Global Brand
Tracking Survey conducted by Service Management Group based on over 17,000 22,000 consumer responses with Krispy Kreme achieving the highest percentage of consumers
indicating they rank our brand as a “ten: absolutely love the brand for sweet treats” on a ten point scale. We have an extremely loyal, energetic, and emotionally connected
consumer base.

We continuously seek to understand what consumers are celebrating or experiencing in their lives and actively engage our passionate followers to activate this emotional
connection through memorable, sharable moments — our “Acts of Joy” — which we believe further fuel our brand love.

Creating Awesome Experiences

We provide authentic indulgent experiences, delivering joy through high quality doughnuts made from our own proprietary formulations. Our strict quality standards and uniform
production systems ensure the consumer’s interaction with Krispy Kreme is consistent with our brand promise, no matter where in the world they experience it. We aim to create
product experiences that
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align with seasonal and trending consumer interests and make positive connections through simple, frequent, brand-focused offerings that encourage shared experiences.

We utilize seasonal innovations, alongside the expansion of our core product offering, to inspire consumer wonder and keep our consumers engaged with the brand and our
products. Our sweet treat assortment begins with our iconic Original Glazed doughnut inspired by our founder’s classic yeast-based recipe that serves as the canvas for our product
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innovation and ideation. Using the Original Glazed doughnut as our foundation, we have expanded our offerings to feature everyday classic items such as our flavor glazes and
“minis,” which lend themselves well to gifting occasions such as birthdays and school activities. Our “Original Filled” rings offer the benefits of a filled shell doughnut without the
mess. Our seasonal items create unique assortments centered on holidays and events, with Valentine's Day, St. Patrick’s Day, Easter, the Fourth of July, Halloween, and Christmas,
all examples of holidays for which we routinely innovate. We also maintain brand relevance by participating in significant cultural moments. We strategically launch offerings tied to
these historic moments to gain mind share, grow brand love, and help drive sales.

Leveraging our Omni-Channel Model to Expand Our Reach

We believe our omni-channel model, enabled by our Hub and Spoke approach and Ecommerce, allows us to maximize our market opportunity while ensuring control and quality
across our suite of products. Our goal is to provide our fresh doughnuts to consumers as conveniently and efficiently as possible. We apply a tailored approach across a variety of
distinct shop formats to grow in discrete, highly attractive, and diverse markets, and maintain brand integrity and scarcity value while capitalizing on significant untapped consumer
demand. Many of our shops offer drive-thrus, which also expand their off-premises reach. Our Hot Light Theater Shops’ production capacity allow us to leverage our investment by
efficiently expanding to our consumers wherever they may be — whether in a local Fresh Shop, in a grocery or convenience store, on their commute home or directly to their
doorstep via home delivery.

Hub and Spoke

* Hot Light Theater Shops and other Hubs: Immersive and interactive experiential shops which provide unique and differentiated consumer experiences while serving as
local production facilities for our network. The average capital investment for a Hot Light Theater Shop is $2 million to $4 million $5 million.

¢ Fresh Shops: Smaller doughnut shops and kiosks, without manufacturing capabilities, selling fresh doughnuts delivered daily from Hub locations. The average capital
investment for a Fresh Shop is $0.1 million to $1 million.

« Delivered Fresh Daily: Krispy Kreme branded doughnut cabinets within high traffic grocery and convenience locations, QSR, club membership, and drug stores, selling
fresh doughnuts delivered daily to more than 9,800 11,900 doors from Hub locations. The average capital investment for a DFD Door is $2,000 to $10,000.

« Ecommerce and Delivery: Fresh doughnuts for pickup or delivery, ordered via our branded Ecommerce platforms or through third-party digital channels.

le.Hub and Spoke Model.jpg
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The Hub and Spoke approach is applied globally and is currently most developed in our international Company-owned markets such as the U.K., Australia and
Mexico. Australia. We are in process of applying lessons learned in those international markets to the U.S., and particularly to expansion in top growth markets areas such as
New York City, Chicago, and Los Angeles, among others, population-dense greenfield markets, which we expect to be a significant driver of margin expansion in the U.S., as
well as in Canada, Japan, and in new countries we plan to enter in the future.

Branded Sweet Treat Line

Our Krispy Kreme branded packaged sweet treat line offers a delicious, quality experience free of artificial flavors. This new line of products is distributed in the U.S. through
major grocery, mass merchandise, and convenience locations, allowing us to capture the sweet snacking occasion for our customers seeking more convenience.

Insomnia Cookies

Insomnia Cookies has expanded our sweet treat platform to include a complementary brand rooted in the belief that indulgent experiences are better enjoyed together. Insomnia
Cookies delivers warm, delicious cookies right to the doors of individuals and companies alike.

Our Segments

We conduct our business through the following three reported segments:

« U.S. and Canada:: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S., including our Krispy Kreme-branded shops and Canada, Insomnia Cookies
shops, Bakeries, DFD, and the recently exited Branded Sweet Treat Line; Treats business;

« International: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, and Mexico; and

« Market Development: Includes our franchise operations across the globe, as well as our Company-owned operations in Japan. Japan and Canada.
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The following table presents our Global Points of Access as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023:

Global Points of Access 1)
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Carts,

Hot Food
Light Trucks, Company-
Theater Fresh Cookie and DFD Owned
Shops Shops Shops Other Doors Total (%)
U.S. and Canada 238 68 231 — 5741 6,278 100 %

Global Points of Access (1)

6,808

Carts,
Hot Food
Light Trucks,
Hot Light Theater Theater Fresh Cookie and
Shops Shops Shops Bakeries Other
uU.s. u.s. 229 70 265 —
International International 37 388 — 14 3,032 3,471 100 % International 35 413 413 — — 16 16 3,693
Market Market Market
Development  Development Development
@ @ 111 867 — 27 1,083 2,088 11 % o 125 1,038 1,038 2 2 30 30 1,423
Total Global  Total Global Total Global
Points of Points of Points of
Access Access 386 1,323 231 41 9,856 11,837 84 % Access 389 1,521 1,521 267 267 46 46 11,924

1) Excludes the recently exited Branded Sweet Treat Line Treats distribution points and legacy wholesale business doors. points.
@ Includes Japanese Japan and Canada locations, which are Company-owned.

Total fiscal 2022 2023 revenue of $1,529.9 million $1,686.1 million consisted of the following revenue by reporting segment:

l#.Global.jpg
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The U.S and Canada’s U.S. segment’s fiscal 2022 2023 revenue of $1,033.1 million $1,104.9 million consisted of:

l».US Segment.jpg

The International segment’s fiscal 2022 2023 revenue of $365.9 million $401.8 million consisted of:

l=.International Segment.jpg

The Market Development's Development segment’s fiscal 2022 2023 revenue of $130.9 million $179.4 million consisted of:

l#.Market Development Segment.jpg
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Our Growth Strategies

[EN

11

We have made investments in our brand, our people, and our infrastructure and believe we are well positioned to drive sustained growth as we execute on our strategy. Across our
global organization, we have built a team of talented and highly engaged Krispy Kremers and Insomnia employees (or “Insomniacs”). Over the past several years we have taken
increased control of the U.S. operations to enable execution of our omni-channel strategy, including accelerating growth across our doughnut shops, DFD, Ecommerce and Branded
Sweet Treat Line. Ecommerce. Globally, we have developed an operating model that sets the foundation for continued expansion in both existing and new geographies. As a result,
we believe we are able to combine a globally recognized and loyalty-inspiring brand with a leading management team and we aim to unlock increased growth in sales and

profitability through the following strategies:
« Increase purchase frequency;
» Expand availability;

« Drive operating leverage; and
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« Drive Hub and Spoke productivity and improve Maximize capital efficiency. returns.

Increase purchase frequency

Almost all consumers desire an occasional indulgence, and when they indulge, they want a high quality, emotionally differentiated experience. We believe we have significant
runway to be part of a greater number of shared indulgence occasions. On average, U.S. consumers visit Krispy Kreme less than three times per year, creating a significant
frequency opportunity. The success of recently launched products, including filled rings and minis, seasonal favorites, limited time buzz-worthy offerings, and flavored glazes, affirms
our belief that our innovations create greater additional opportunities for consumers to engage with our brand. We intend to strengthen our product portfolio by centering further
innovation around seasonal and societal events, and through the development of new innovation platforms to drive sustained baseline growth. Our strategy of linking product
launches with relevant events has allowed us to effectively increase consumption occasions while meaningfully engaging with our communities and consumers.

Our marketing and innovation efforts have expanded the number of incremental consumer use cases for Krispy Kreme doughnuts. For example, our gifting value proposition makes
doughnuts an ideal way to celebrate everyday occasions like birthdays and holidays, through gifting sleeves and personalized gift messaging. Our gifting value proposition fulfills
distinct consumption occasions and will continue to make our brand and products more accessible and allow us to participate with greater frequency in small and large indulgent
occasions, from impromptu daily gatherings with family and friends to holidays and weddings, and everything in between.

Expand availability

We believe there are opportunities to continue to grow in new and existing markets in which we currently operate by further capitalizing on our strong brand awareness as we deploy
our Hub and Spoke model. We apply a deliberate approach to growing these discrete, highly attractive markets and maintain our brand integrity and scarcity value while unlocking
significant consumer demand. We focus on increasing Global Points of Access through low cost DFD Doors, including in new channels like QSR and club membership, as well as
investments in Fresh Shops with a limited number of investments in our experiential Hot Light Theater shops to implement the Hub and Spoke model in new and existing markets.
This will We expect this to lead to growth in our key Sales per Hub metric as we further leverage the production capacity of existing Hubs.

We believe our omni-channel strategy, empowered by our Hub and Spoke model, will allow us to effectively seize expansion opportunities both domestically and internationally.
Despite our high brand awareness, we have a limited presence in certain key, population-dense U.S. markets, such as New York and Chicago, and have yet to build a presence in
key U.S. cities, including Boston and Minneapolis. We also believe we have a significant opportunity to increase our presence in our existing international markets such as Mexico,
Japan, and Ireland where we have a less developed Hub and Spoke system. We believe this provides us ample opportunity to grow within markets in which we are already present.
We also view Hub and Spoke expansion to other international markets where we do not currently have a presence as a major growth driver for the future. We have identified key
international whitespace market opportunities such as China, Brazil, and parts of Western Europe. Our goal is to open in at least three new countries per year. year; in fiscal 2023,
we opened shops in seven new countries. Our proven track record of entering new, diverse markets across multiple continents and deploying the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke
approach demonstrates our ability to effectively penetrate a broad range of market types. New markets will either consist of Company-owned shops or entered via franchise
operations (sometimes with us holding a minority equity interest), to be determined on a case-by-case basis.
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Drive Hub and Spoke productivity and improve capital efficiency operating leverage

We are making focused investments in our omni-channel strategy to expand our presence efficiently while driving top-line growth, margin expansion, and capital efficiency. The Hub
and Spoke model enables an integrated approach to operations, which is designed to bring efficiencies in production, distribution, and supervisory management while ensuring
product freshness and quality are consistent with our brand promise no matter where consumers experience our doughnuts. By expanding Points of Access such as new local DFD
Doors to existing Hubs, we increase not just total Sales per Hub, but also profitability and capital efficiency because the production Hubs have largely fixed costs including rent,
utilities, and even labor.

To support the Hub and Spoke model in the U.S., we have implemented new labor management systems and processes in our shops and new delivery route optimization
technology to support our DFD logistics chain. In addition, we launched employ a new demand planning system that is intended to improve service and to deliver both waste and
labor efficiencies across all our business channels. We are also investing in automation in the doughnut production process, including filling and icing doughnuts, which are primarily
done manually today. By streamlining these operations across our platform, we believe we can continue to deliver on our brand promise and provide joy to our consumers while
continuing to drive efficiencies across our platform.

Corporate Social Maximize capital returns

We believe we have a strong runway to grow while maximizing capital returns, supported by the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model. We intend to maximize capital returns both
by leveraging existing capacity and making selective investments in geographies which currently have limited access to our products.

Responsibility

We are committed to making a positive impact on the world — to touch and enhance lives through the joy that is Krispy Kreme — and our ambition is to Be Sweet in All That We Do,
which represents our corporate social responsibility (‘CSR”) Responsibility platform. With this platform, we focus on our greatest opportunities for positive social and environmental
impact with our people, our communities, and our planet. We are committed to transparency and disclosure of our CSR Responsibility strategies, programs, and governance.
Progress along our CSR Responsibility strategy is regularly reported to our senior management leadership team (“the Global Leadership Team”) and our Board of Directors, which
also has oversight of our environmental, social, and governance strategy. We published our first ever Be Sweet Responsibility Report during fiscal 2023 outlining our journey,
progress through fiscal 2022, and future ambitions. To read the full report, visit krispykreme.com/responsibility-report.

* Loving our People: Krispy Kremers: We create opportunities for our Krispy Kremers to achieve their dreams — building the most engaged, inclusive workforce.
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We are committed to diversity, equity, and inclusion throughout our organization, from our board Board room to our shops. We have established a Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion Council Be Sweet Working Group (sponsored by members of the Global Leadership Team) with a core focus on Belonging, and four six U.S. Employee Resource
Groups. We are focused on gender parity globally and increasing our U.S. people of color representation. We are also developing a comprehensive, global total rewards
framework to drive pay equity and access for our Krispy Kremers.

* Loving our Communities: We bring joy to others — engaging locally to support and uplift communities globally.

Our brand purpose truly shines through our Acts of Joy and community fundraising initiatives. Whether through our “Beat the Pump” promotion where we aided our
consumers by pegging the price of a dozen Original Glazed doughnuts providing financial support to a gallon of gasoline, third-party organizations focused on children in
need, or through our offer of free doughnuts to graduating seniors, we bring joy to others while doing good. In fiscal 2022, 2023, we raised more than $36 million $40 million
to support local community causes across America. the U.S. We also engage with numerous local philanthropic organizations in the communities that we serve around the
world.

* Loving our Planet: We respect our planet — using sustainable practices and reducing our environmental impacts.

We are committed to advancing sustainable business throughout our operations. During fiscal 2022, 2023, we progressed our efforts to address climate change and build
the resilience of our business and supply chain. We have been conducting conducted a multi-year global emissions assessment to establish our emissions baseline, using
this foundation to soon set goals for greenhouse gas emission reductions, which will include Science Based Targets. reductions.

We made progress on our responsible sourcing commitment across our global supply chain. Krispy Kreme has set a goal of using 100% cage-free eggs by 2026.
During 2025. One important action was a strategic product line exit during the year, we reached 45% first quarter of fiscal 2023, which represented 70% of our goal while
also outlining clear actions to meet this target. egg use. We are committed to using progress on sourcing sustainable palm oil withthat supports a goal to achieve 100%
deforestation-free palm oil use by 2026. supply chain. As global awareness of food waste increases, so does our focus on food waste reduction. reduction, with a goal to
divert at least 50% of food waste from landfills by 2025. We took steps in fiscal 2022 2023 to increase landfill diversion and increase our use of food-to-feed initiatives across
our business. We are also committed to significantly increasing the recyclability of our packaging, with a goal to reach 80% recyclable or compostable packaging across our
operations by 2025. In the near future, we are focusing on the commercialization of recyclable grease-resistant DFD cartons, 100% paper-based coffee cups, and a
reduction in our single-use plastic consumption to reach our goal.

Team Members and Human Capital Resources

Investing in, developing, and maintaining human capital is critical to our success. Globally, we employ approximately 23,500 22,800 employees as of January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023, including approximately 19,500 19,400 at Krispy Kreme locations that we refer to as our “Krispy Kremers.” We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement, although
we have experienced occasional unionization initiatives.
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We depend on our Krispy Kremers to provide great customer service, to make our products in adherence to our high-quality standards and to maintain the consistency of our
operations and logistics chain. While we continue to operate in a competitive market for talent, we believe that our culture, policies, and practices contribute to our strong
relationship with our Krispy Kremers, which we feel is instrumental to our business model. Our culture is best captured by our Leadership Mix, which are the dozen behaviors that
guide us every day. The Leadership Mix was developed based on the beliefs of our founder, incorporating years of learning on what makes Krispy Kreme such a special
organization. These cultural behaviors are shared with Krispy Kremers globally, through an internally developed Leadership Mix training program.

lelnvestor Day Leadership Mix Image.jpg

The Leadership Mix is what keeps our consumers at the center of everything we do and ensures that our Krispy Kremers are empowered to do the right thing for our consumers and
for the business. We pride ourselves on being an entrepreneurial and innovative team that is not afraid to take smart risks in service of creating awesome doughnut experiences.

Consistent with our Leadership Mix ingredients, we pride ourselves on attracting a diverse team of Krispy Kremers and Insomniac team members from a wide range of
backgrounds. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, our U.S. Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations include approximately 11,500 10,600 employees, of which 97% 96%
are field-based employees and the remaining 3% 4% are corporate employees. 67% 69% of such employees are people of color and 54% 52% of such employees are female. We
believe our diverse team drives the entrepreneurial culture that is at the center of our success. The success of our business is fundamentally connected to the well-being of our
Krispy Kremers. Accordingly, we are committed to their health, safety, and wellness.

Our Total Rewards platform provides Krispy Kremers and their families with access to a variety of competitive, innovative, flexible, and convenient pay, health, and wellness
programs. Our total package of pay and benefits is designed to support the physical, mental, and financial health of our people and includes medical, dental, vision, EAP, employee
assistance program, life insurance and retirement benefits as well as disability benefits and assistance with major life activities, such as educational reimbursement and adoption.
Many of these benefits are available to our part-time Krispy Kremers; we believe that offering select benefits to our part-time Krispy Kremers offers us a competitive advantage in
recruiting and retaining talent. We have also rolled out employee equity ownership plans across the organization, including for our shop general managers, to effectively align Krispy
Kremers' incentives with the Company’s long-term strategic goals.

Marketing and Innovation

Our marketing strategy is as unique and innovative as our brand. Krispy Kreme's marketing strategy is to participate in culture through “Acts of Joy,” deliver new product
experiences that align with seasonal and trending consumer and societal interests and to create positive connections through simple, frequent, brand-focused offerings that
encourage shared experiences. The tactics which support this strategy are also distinct. In the U.S., Krispy Kreme's paid media strategy is 100% digital with a heavy focus on social
media where our passionate consumer base engages and shares our marketing programs far and wide through their own networks. Earned media is also an important part of our
media mix. We create promotions and products that
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attract media outlets to our brand. Through the widespread dissemination of our programs through pop culture, entertainment, and news outlets, we believe we can achieve
disproportionately large attention relative to our spend in a media environment populated by brands with far larger media budgets. During fiscal 2023 we generated over 40 billion
media impressions reflecting how well our fresh and innovative doughnuts resonated with consumers. We believe our marketing strategy, supported with non-traditional media
tactics, has proven to be a potent combination that simultaneously drives sales while growing brand love.

By drawing inspiration from important societal events, we create a unique way for our consumers to celebrate and engage. For example, in 2022 our “Beat the Pump” promotion
created social “buzz” and significant consumer traffic for our Doughnut Shops. Our ability to create this connection between our consumers and our brand is what has helped make
the Krispy Kreme brand iconic, and helps to solidify our position in popular culture.

Limited time seasonal innovation and permanent innovations are used to create consumer wonder and are an essential ingredient in keeping our consumers engaged with the brand
and the products. Our limited time offerings specialty doughnuts are anticipated by consumers and the media alike and generate significant social sharing amongst our fans and
media coverage. The impact of limited time seasonal offerings goes well beyond the sales of the innovations themselves; they drive traffic and create additional sales of our core
product offering.

Krispy Kreme has a strong brand presence across both emerging and well-established social media platforms, including Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, X, YouTube, Tik-Tok, and
Pinterest. Tik-Tok. These channels enable us to engage with our consumers on a personal level, while spreading the global brand of Krispy Kreme, including communicating
promotional activity, featured products, new shop openings, and highlighting core equities of the brand. Social media allows precise geo-targeting around our shops and effective
targeting of consumers likely to be interested in our messages.

Supply Chain
Sourcing and Supplies

We are committed to sourcing the best ingredients available for our products. The principal ingredients to manufacture our products include flour, shortening, and sugar which are
used to formulate our proprietary doughnut mix and concentrate at our Winston-Salem manufacturing facility. We procure the raw materials for these products from different
vendors. Although most raw materials we require are typically readily available from multiple vendors, we currently have approximately 20 main vendors in addition to our own mix
plant.

We manufacture our doughnut mix at our mix plant in Winston-Salem, North Carolina and a third-party facility in Pico Rivera, California, domestically, and at several locations
internationally, where we produce the doughnut mix used to make our doughnuts across the U.S. and internationally. In support of international markets, we produce a concentrate
exclusively at our Winston-Salem facility for shipping efficiency. The concentrate is mixed with commodity ingredients in local markets to get to a finished doughnut mix. Throughout
the process, the recipe for what makes a Krispy Kreme doughnut remains known only to the Company.

At an additional facility in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, we manufacture our proprietary doughnut making equipment for shipment to new shops and Doughnut Factories around
the world. We manufacture a range of doughnut making lines, with different capacities to support the needs of different shop types.

In addition, we provide other ingredients, packaging and supplies, principally to Company-owned and domestic franchise shops. Our Krispy Kreme shop-level replenishments
generally occur on a weekly basis, working with two one national distribution partners. partner. In addition, we serve New York City with a regional distribution partner to best serve
our needs in that market.

In the U.S., we operate four Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana, Monroe, Ohio, New York, New York, and Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, we operate 38 37
Doughnut Factories, of which 24 23 are operated by franchisees. Each Doughnut Factory is staffed by Krispy Kremers and supports multiple business channels for Krispy Kreme.
Each Doughnut Factory manufactures fresh doughnuts daily, powering the Hub and Spoke model by producing product for Spoke locations such as Fresh Shops and Carts and
Food Trucks. In addition, they also provide DFD finished products to support local and regional markets. We operate DFD routes out of each Doughnut Factory to ensure our DFD
doughnuts are delivered fresh, every day, and maintain our highest standards of quality and brand experience.

We utilize our Concord, North Carolina production facility to manufacture our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, including a variety of Doughnut Bites and Mini Crullers, which are

shelf stable and cake-based products. In addition, at the end of fiscal 2022, we began to transition manufacturing capacity of Branded Sweet Treat Line products to our mix plant in
Winston-Salem, North Carolina (after exiting the co-manufacturer production facility located in Burlington, lowa). After manufacturing,
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packaging, and palletizing our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, we transport the products to a third-party warehousing and distribution vendor. This vendor warehouses,
consolidates, and provides direct shipments to our retail partners’ supply networks.

Insomnia Cookies operates a nationwide efficient supply chain. To support the Insomnia Cookies shops, chain, supported by third-party logistic providers which bring ingredients and
supplies to their bakeries Insomnia Cookies Bakeries to create their warm, delicious products.

Quality Control
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We operate an integrated supply chain to help maintain the consistency and quality of products. Our business model is centered on ensuring consistent quality of our products. We
manufacture doughnut mixes at our facility in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Additionally, we also manufacture doughnut mix concentrates, which are blended with flour and other
ingredients by contract mix manufacturers to produce finished doughnut mix. We have an agreement with an independent food company to manufacture certain doughnut mixes
using concentrate for domestic regions outside the southeastern U.S. and to provide backup mix production capability in the event of a business disruption at the Winston-Salem
facility. In-process quality checks are performed throughout the production process, including ingredients, moisture percentage, fat percentage, sieve size, and metal checks. We
provide specific instructions to franchise partners for storing and cooking our products. All products are transported and stored at ambient temperature.

Competition

We compete in the fragmented indulgence industry. Our domestic and international competitors include a wide range of retailers of doughnuts and other sweet treats, coffee shops,
and other café and bakery concepts. We also compete with snacks sold through convenience stores, supermarkets, restaurants, Ecommerce, and retail stores in the U.S. The
number, size and strength of competitors vary by region and by category. We also compete against retailers who sell sweet treats such as cookies, cupcakes, and ice cream shops.
We compete on elements such as food quality, freshness, convenience, accessibility, customer service, price, and value. We view our brand engagement, overall consumer
experience and the uniqueness of our Original Glazed doughnut as important factors that distinguish our brand from competitors, both in the doughnut and broader indulgence
categories. See “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Executing Our Business Strategy — Our success depends on our ability to compete with many food service businesses.”

Intellectual Property

Our doughnut shops are operated under the Krispy Kremee trademark, and we use many federally and internationally registered trademarks and service marks, including Original
Glazede, Hot Krispy Kreme Original Glazed Nowe, Insomnia Cookiese, and the logos associated with these marks. We have registered various trademarks in over 65 other
countries, and we generally license the use of these trademarks to our franchisees for the operation of their doughnut shops. We have also licensed our marks for other consumer
goods. We believe that our trademarks and service marks have significant value and are important to our brand. To better protect our brand, we have registered and maintain
numerous Internet domain names.

Despite our efforts to obtain, maintain, protect, and enforce our trademarks, service marks and other intellectual property rights, there can be no assurance that these protections
will be available in all cases, and our trademarks, service marks or other intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated, declared generic, circumvented, infringed or
otherwise violated. Opposition or cancellation proceedings may in the future be filed.

For more information on the risks associated with our intellectual property, see “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property.”

Government Regulation

As a company with global operations, we are subject to the laws and regulations of the U.S. and the multiple foreign jurisdictions in which we operate as well as the rules, reporting
obligations and interpretations of all such requirements and obligations by various governing bodies, which may differ among jurisdictions. In addition, changes to such laws,
regulations,

rules, reporting obligations and related compliance obligations could result in significant costs but are not expected to have a material effect on our capital expenditures, results of
operations and competitive position as compared to prior periods.

For more information on the risks associated with domestic and international regulation, see “Risk Factors — Risk Related to Regulation and Litigation.”
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Seasonality

Our sales peak at various times throughout the year due to certain promotional events and holiday celebrations. Additionally, our hot beverage sales generally increase during the
fall and winter months while our iced beverage sales generally increase during the spring and summer months. Quarterly results also may be affected by the timing of the opening of
new shops and the closing of existing shops. For these reasons, results for any fiscal quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal year.

Research and Development

New product innovation is important to the success of our business. We believe that the development of new Krispy Kreme doughnuts, beverages and other products attracts new
consumers to our brand, increases shop sales, and allows our shops to strengthen daypart offerings. One of our properties in Winston-Salem, North Carolina includes research and
development facilities including test kitchens and doughnut producing equipment used in developing new products and processes.

Available Information

KKI Annual Report on Form 10-K reports, along with all other reports and amendments filed with or furnished to the SEC, are publicly available free of charge on the Investor
Relations section of our website at investors.krispykreme.com or at sec.gov as soon as reasonably practicable after these materials are filed with or furnished to the SEC. We also
use our website as a tool to disclose important information about the Company and comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair Disclosure. Our corporate
governance policies, code of ethics conduct, and Board committee charters and policies are also posted on the Investor Relations section of our website. The information on our
website (or any webpages referenced in this Annual Report on Form 10-K) is not part of this or any other report KKI files with, or furnishes to, the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a variety of risks and uncertainties, known and unknown, including, among others, those discussed below. You should carefully consider the risks
described below together with other information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. If any of the following risks or uncertainties occur, our business, financial
condition, prospects, results of operations, and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. The risks discussed below are not the only risks we face. Additional
risks or uncertainties not currently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, prospects, results
of operations, or cash flows. We cannot assure you that any of the events discussed in the risk factors below will not occur.

Risks Related to Food Safety and Consumer Preferences
Our business may be adversely affected by food safety issues, including food-borne illnesses, tampering, or contamination.

We are aoperate in the food service business sector and may experience are subject to potential food safety issues, concerns, including the possibility risks of food-borne illnesses,
tampering, adulteration, or and contamination. These risks may be increased escalate as we introduce launch new products, increase broaden our distribution through channels such
as our DFD business channels, oroperations, and expand our manufacturing and production capacity. Failure to maintain adequate facilities. Inadequate food safety
standards measures in our shops could result inlead to temporary closures shutdowns, disrupting both our in-shop and disrupt our retail operations as well as our DFD operations.
Food safety issues could incidents might also adversely affect negatively impact the price cost and availability of affected ingredients, which could result in disruptions in ourleading
to supply chain disruptions or lower reduced profit margins for us and our franchisees. Furthermore, franchise partners.

Moreover, our reliance dependency on third parties as intermediaries in the third-party delivery of our products to our consumers increases services heightens the risk thatof food
safety issues could be caused by factors outside of our direct control. arising from external factors. While we monitor the operations of certain oversee some of these business
partners, partners' operations, the product quality and service they deliver may provide could be diminished compromised by any number of various unforeseeable factors, beyond
our control and making it may be difficult challenging to detectidentify contamination or other defects. There The risk is greater risk from those even higher with partners we do not
monitor or do not monitor as closely. less rigorously.

Additionally, food safety concerns may expose us to legal actions, regulatory investigations, product recalls, and financial penalties. Any association of our brand, our franchisees, or
the broader food service industry with food safety issues could expose us to litigation, governmental investigation, recalls, penalties or fines. Any report or publicity linking us, our
franchisees, or the food service industry to food safety issues could adversely affectharm our reputation, as well as our revenuesleading to a decline in revenue and
profits. profitability.

Changes in consumer preferences and demographic trends could negatively impact our business.

Food service businesses are often affected by changes in consumer tastes, dietary and health preferences, national, regional, and local economic conditions, discretionary spending
priorities, demographic trends, traffic patterns, and the type, number, and location of competing brands. In addition, the The food service industry continuesis highly susceptible to be
under heightened shifts in consumer preferences, including dietary choices and health concerns, as well as broader factors like regional economic conditions, spending habits,
demographic changes, traffic trends, and competition from other brands in terms of their number, type, and location. Additionally, there is increasing legal and legislative scrutiny
related tofocus on the industry, particularly concerning menu labeling and packaging resulting from the perception packaging. This scrutiny is largely due to concerns that the
products practices and practices offerings of food service companies have contributed may contribute to nutritional, issues like poor nutrition, excessive caloric intake, obesity, or
other health concerns of their guests. If we are unable issues among consumers.

Our business must remain agile in responding to adapt to changes inthese evolving consumer preferences and trends, or iftrends. We also need to be prepared for potential
regulatory changes are implemented that impact could affect any of our markets, operational markets. Failure to effectively adapt to these changes or to comply with new regulations
could adversely affect our operating results could be negatively impacted. operational results.

Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Data Privacy, and Information Technology

We rely on information technology in our operations. Any material failure, inadequacy, or interruption of that technology could adversely affect our ability to effectively
operate our business and result in financial or other loss.

We Our business and that of our franchisees rely significantly depend on computer systems and information technology to conduct our business. Our ability to effectively manage for
efficient operation. The effectiveness of our business depends significantly on management is closely tied to the reliability and capacity of these systems. Our omni-channel
approach strategy, particularly our delivery model, relies in large part, heavily on our robust information technology systems to operate successfully, including the implementation of
our delivery strategy. systems. As we expand diversify our business channels, our exposure susceptibility to such related risks will increase. intensifies.

Business interruptions We also could result from the failure of face potential business disruptions due to failures in other important critical information technology platforms, we use to
operate our business, including platforms those hosted or otherwise provided by third parties on our behalf. Service interruptions, degradation, or other performance problems may
occur because of parties. These disruptions can stem from hardware and software defects or malfunctions, issues, cyber-attacks (including distributed denial-of-service and other
cyberattacks, infrastructure changes, human error, attacks), natural disasters (like earthquakes, hurricanes, floods, fires, natural disasters,and fires), power losses, disruptions
in outages, telecommunications services, fraud, military or political conflicts, terrorist attacks, failures, human errors, criminal activities (including those by state-sponsored groups),
and intentional vandalism. These risks extend to threats like computer viruses, ransomware, malware, or other events. Our systems also may be subjectand malware.
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Adapting to break-ins, sabotage, theft, and intentional acts of vandalism because of criminal third parties (including state-sponsored organizations with significant financial evolving
consumer expectations and technological resources), third parties we do business with, advancements is crucial. Any interruption, delay, or flaw in developing and our franchisees’
employees.

In addition, we must effectively respond to changing guest expectations and new technological developments. Any disruptions, delays, or deficiencies in the design and/or
implementation of any ofimplementing these systems, or our inability to accurately predict misjudging the costs and revenue potential of suchthese initiatives, orcan hamper our
failure to generate revenue and corresponding profits from such activities and investments, essential business functions. This could
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negatively impact our ability to perform necessary business operations, which could adversely affect our reputation, competitive position, business, edge, operational results, of
operations, and financial condition. health.

While we endeavor strive to keep allour systems current, updated, there can beis no guarantee that we can reliably update and maintain absolute assurance of uninterrupted
maintenance. If our systems. In instances where we mitigation controls fail, especially when updates are unable to do so, the mitigating controls we put in place to reduce the risk
may fail. Any such failurenot feasible, it could lead to Ecommerce downtime, disruptions to ouroutages, information technology systems, system disruptions, and expose
vulnerabilities heightened vulnerability to cyber-criminals. cyber threats.

Our business interruption insurance may might not be sufficient to fully cover all our losses that may result from interruptions in our service as a result of systems disruptions caused
by system failures andor similar events. As a result, if we experience any outsized material Therefore, significant impacts from a failure of our systems, our business, results of
operations, and financial condition system failures could be materially and adversely effected. affect our business operations, results, and financial standing.

Breaches or failures of our information technology systems or other cybersecurity or data security-related incidents may have an adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Efforts to hack or breach security measures, failures of systems or software to operate as designed or intended, viruses, operator error, or inadvertent releases of data all threaten
our Our and our franchisees’ franchisees' information systems and records. The techniques and sophistication used to conductrecords are at risk of cyber-attacks and breaches of
information technology systems, as well as the sources security breaches. These include hacking attempts, software or system failures, viruses, operator errors, and targets of these
attacks, may take many forms (including accidental data leaks. Cyber-attacks are increasingly sophisticated and varied, often involving phishing, social engineering, denial, or
degradation of service disruption attacks, malware, or ransomware), change frequently ransomware, and are oftenthey may not recognized be detected until such attacks are
launched or they have been in place active for a period of some time. In addition, our Additionally, internal threats exist from employees, franchisees, contractors, or third parties with
whom we do business or to whom we outsource business operations may attempt to circumvent our who might bypass security measures to misappropriate access or leak sensitive,
regulated, protected, or personally identifiable information, either maliciously or inadvertently.

We cannot guarantee that the security measures and may purposefully or inadvertently cause a breach involving or compromise of such information.

There is no assurance that any security procedures or controls that we implemented by us or our third-party providers have implemented will be sufficient to prevent data security
related incidents from occurring. An actual are foolproof against such incidents. A breach or perceived breach in the security of our information technology systems or those of our
franchisees and third-party service providers could lead to an interruption in the operation of our systems, resulting in material adverse impacts on our business, financial condition,
and results of operations, and could result in adverse publicity and significant damage to our brand and reputation with consumers and third parties with whom we do business.

Additionally, a significant theft, loss, disclosure, modification, or misappropriation of, or access to, guests’, employees’, third parties’, or other proprietary data or other breach of
our providers' information technology systems could result in fines, severely interrupt our operations, negatively affect our business, financial standing, and operational results, and
harm our reputation and brand credibility among consumers and business partners.

Furthermore, significant incidents involving unauthorized access to, theft, exposure, alteration, or misuse of consumer, employee, or proprietary data could lead to legal claims or
proceedings, including actions, regulatory investigations, and actions, or liability for failure to comply with privacy and information security laws, which could disrupt non-compliance
penalties, disrupting our operations, damage tarnishing our reputation, and expose us leading to claims from guests and employees, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our substantial financial condition and results of operations. repercussions.

Our cybersecurity insurance may not be sufficient in type fully cover the consequences of such breaches or amount to cover us against claims related to breaches, failures, or other
data security related incidents, and we cannot be certain that cyber insurance will continue to future coverage may not be available to us on economically at reasonable terms, costs
or at all, or that any insurer will notall. Insurers might also deny coverage as to any future claim. We could be forced to expend significant claims for certain incidents. Addressing a
security breach would require substantial financial and operational resources, in protecting against or responding to a security breach, including investigating and remediating any
information remediation of security vulnerabilities, defending againstlegal defense, and resolving legal and regulatory claims, and complying compliance with notification obligations,
all of which obligations. Such efforts could divert resources management attention and the attention of our management and key personnelresources away from our business
operations and activities, adversely affectaffecting our business operations, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, results. Additionally, our remediation efforts to
remedy these issues may not be successful, and we could be unable to implement, maintain might face challenges in implementing, maintaining, and upgrade adequate upgrading
effective safeguards.

If we or our franchisees or licensees are unable to protect our consumer and employee data and other regulated, protected, or personally identifiable information, we or
our franchisees could be exposed to data loss, litigation, regulatory fines, and other liability, and our reputation could be significantly harmed.

Our business requires the collection, transmission, operations necessitate collecting, transmitting, and retention of storing large volumes amounts of consumer and employee data,
including sensitive information like credit and debit card numbers and other personally identifiable information, details. This data is housed in various our own and our franchisees'
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information technology systems, that we and our franchisees maintain, and inas well as those maintained by third parties with whom we contract to provide services. The of third-
party service providers. Ensuring the integrity and protection security of thatthis data is critical to us. Any failure to comply paramount. Non-compliance with legal and industry rules
and/or requirements standards could significantly harm severely damage our brand, reputation, business, and results of operations. We also rely operational results. Additionally, our
reliance on independent service providers for
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payment processing including credit and debit cards. If poses risks if these independent service providers become are unable or unwilling or unable to provide these offer services to
us or if the cost of using these providers increases, our business could be harmed. their costs escalate.

We are, and may increasingly become, subject to other operate under various laws, directives, industry standards and regulations, as well as contractual obligations, relating to data
privacy and security in the jurisdictions in which we operate.laws, directives, and regulations, both domestically and internationally. The information, security, and privacy
requirements imposed by governmental regulation are increasingly demanding. In the U.S., various has a complex landscape of federal and state regulators have adopted, or are
considering adopting, laws and data protection regulations, concerning personal information and data security and have prioritized privacy and information security violations for
enforcement actions. Certainwith some state laws may be offering more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater individual rights, with respect to personal information than
federal, international, or other state laws, and such laws may differ from each other, all protections. The potential introduction of which may complicate compliance efforts. State laws
are changing rapidly and there is discussion in the U.S. Congress of a new comprehensive federal data privacy law to which we would become subject if it is enacted, which may
add could increase complexity and compliance costs, impact data use strategies, and necessitate additional complexity, variation in requirements, restrictions, and potential legal
risks, require additional investment of resourcesinvestments in compliance programs, impact strategies and the availability of previously useful data, and could result in increased
compliance costs or changes in business practices and policies. infrastructure.

We are also subject to international laws, regulations, and standards in many jurisdictions, which apply broadly to the collection, use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer, and
other processing of personal information. For example, Internationally, we are subject to regulations like the European Union's General Data Protection Regulation (‘GDPR”), which
was adopted by the European Union effective May 2018, and the U.K.’s GDPR and U.K. Data Protection Act of 2018, which retains the GDPR in the U.K.'s national law.2018.
These laws include obligations and restrictions concerningimpose strict requirements on data transparency andhandling, including consent, the overall individual rights, of
individuals to whom the personal cross-border data relates, the transfer, of personal data out of the European Economic Area (‘EEA") or the U.K., security breach notifications, and
the data security and confidentiality of personal data. Our failure to adhere to or successfully implement appropriate processes to adhere to confidentiality. Non-compliance with
these international data privacy requirements regulations could expose result in significant penalties and legal liabilities for us and our franchisees to financial penalties and legal
liability. Ourfranchisees. Adapting our and our franchisees’ systems may not be able to satisfy changingthese evolving requirements or may require significant additional
investments or time to do so. substantial investment and time.

Because the The interpretation and application enforcement of laws, regulations, standards, and other obligations relating to data privacy and security laws and standards are still
uncertain, it is possible that these laws, regulations, standards, and other obligations may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistentevolving, leading to potential
inconsistencies with our data processing practices and policies. If our practices are not consistent, or are viewed as not consistent, with changes in laws, regulations, standards, or
new interpretations or applications of existing laws, regulations, and standards, we may also become subject Any perceived non-compliance could lead to fines, audits, inquiries,
whistleblower complaints, adverse media coverage, investigations, lawsuits, loss of export privileges, severe criminal or civil sanctions, orand other penalties. Although we
endeavor Additionally, any failure to comply with adhere to our public statements and documentation, we may at times fail to do so or be alleged to have failed to do so. The
publication of our privacy policies and other statements that provide promises and assurances about data privacy and security can subject could expose us to potential government
or legal action if they are found to be for deceptive or unfair or misrepresentative of our actual practices. Any concerns

Concerns about our data privacy and security practices, even if unfounded, could damage the harm our reputation, of our businesses and discourage deter potential users, from and
negatively impact our products and services. business. Any of the foregoing these outcomes could have an adverse effect onadversely affect our business operations, financial
condition, results of operations, and future prospects.

Risks Related to Executing Our Business Strategy
We may not realize the anticipated benefits from past or potential future acquisitions, investments, or other strategic transactions.

From time to time, we evaluate We periodically assess and may complete engage in mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures, strategic partnerships, minority investments,
or other strategic transactions, including initiatives to expand broaden our Global Points of Access. Such transactions These efforts may include strategicinvolve opportunities to
acquire or partner collaborate with ourboth domestic and international franchisees. In certain circumstances, some cases, our past and existingformer or current franchisees
may might retain a minority stake interest in the franchise shops we acquire and continue to participate be involved in the operation of the applicable shops. their operations. We
make these decisions based on individual circumstances.

Such arrangements are entered into on a case-by-case basis.

Past and potential future strategic transactions may involve various endeavors come with inherent risks, including without limitation: but not limited to:

« Expenses, The challenges, delays, or difficulties inand costs associated with integrating acquired Krispy Kreme franchised shops, Points of Access, and strategic
partnerships or investments into our organization, existing structure, including the potential failure to realize expected achieve anticipated synergies and/or the inability to
retain key personnel; staff;

« Diversion of management’s attention Diverting management focus from everyday operations or other important initiatives and/or day-to-day operations to effectively
execute implement our growth strategy;
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« Inability to generate sufficient The risk of not achieving expected revenue, profit, andor cash flowsflow from newly acquired Krispy Kreme franchised shops, Points of
Access, companies, strategic partnerships, or investments;

* The possibility that we have acquired substantial potential to inherit significant contingent or unanticipated unforeseen liabilities in connection with through acquisitions or
other strategic transactions; dealings; and

* The possibility thatrisk of significant value depreciation in our investments, we have made may decline significantly in value, which could lead possibly leading to the
potential goodwill impairment of the carrying value of goodwill associated with charges for acquired businesses. entities.

Past Our past and potential future strategic transactions may not create yield the intended value for us anticipated benefits, and may harm could negatively impact our reputation and
materially, adversely affect have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, health, and results of operations. operational outcomes.

Our franchisees may affect our operating results and reputation.

We have Our ability to influence the management of our franchisees' businesses is limited, control over how our franchisees’ businesses are run, and their inability potential failure to
operate successfully effectively could adversely affect negatively impact our overall operating results. Although While we provide certain training and support, to franchisees, our
franchisees are independently owned and operatedrun their own independent businesses. Consequently, This means that the operational quality of franchised shop
operations shops may be diminished by any number of suffer due to factors beyond outside our control. Moreover, Additionally, franchisees may might not operate always manage
their shops in a manner consistentcompliance with applicablerelevant laws and regulations or in accordancealign with our established standards and requirements.
Also, Furthermore, there's a risk that franchisees may not successfully hire struggle to recruit and train qualified competent managers and other shop personnel. Although staff.

Currently, we believe we currently generally enjoy a generally positive relationship with our franchisees, there is no assurance thatfranchisees. However, future developments,
some of which may be outside beyond our control, may not significantly harm our future could potentially strain these relationships with both existing and new franchisees. In
addition, Should our image franchisees fail to operate successfully or adhere to our standards and reputation, and requirements, it could substantially harm the image and reputation
of other both individual franchisees may suffer materially ifand our franchisees do not operate successfully, or in accordance with our standards and requirements, which overall
brand. Such scenarios could result inlead to a significant marked decline in Krispy Kreme's branded Kreme-branded sales, adversely affecting our revenues, revenue and our
profitability.

Our DFD business channels depend on key customers and are subject to risks if such key customers reduce their purchases or terminate their relationships with us.

Sales A considerable portion of our revenue comes from sales to retail customers through via our DFD channels, representwhich necessitate a substantial portion of our revenue.
The infrastructure necessary to support this business line requires significant with notable fixed and semi-fixed costs.

We have several In our global operations, we serve a number of large retail customers, around the world. However, yet no single retail customer accounted for contributed to more
than 10% of our total revenue in the fiscal years endedending December 31, 2023, January 1, 2023, January 2, 2022, or January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022. These customers
dorelationships are not enter bound by long-term contracts; instead, they make purchase decisions based on a combination of price, rather, purchases are influenced by factors like
pricing, product quality, consumer demand, and service quality. In the future, they may excellence. Looking ahead, there is a possibility that these customers might reallocate their
shelf space, including space currently used for occupied by our products, forto other products, items, possibly including private label products. The goods. Consequently, a loss of or
a significant reduction decrease in sales to one of our large these key retail customers, or significantif they encounter substantial financial difficulties in their businesses, issues,
could adversely affecthave a negative impact on our business, business's health, financial condition, stability, and results of operations. operational results.

Our reputation and brand image are essential to our business success.

Krispy Kreme is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our continued success dependshinges on our and our franchisees’ ability to
maintain uphold our brand image, extend our products to penetrate new markets and distribution channels, expand our brand imageinnovate with new product offerings, and
consistently deliver consistently high-quality, delicious delectable products to our consumers.

While we seek are committed to maintain, extend, nurturing and expand enhancing our brand image and reputation through marketing investments, including traditional advertising
and consumer promotions, we place a significant emphasis on social media for most of our marketing initiatives rely heavily on social media. We increasingly rely activities. Our
growing dependency on social media and online dissemination of digital platforms for advertising campaigns. Social and digital media increase means that the speed and extent
thatreach at which information, oras well as misinformation and opinions, can be shared. are spread is amplified. Negative posts feedback or comments commentary about us, our
brands, or our products on social or digital media could seriously damage severely harm our brands andbrand reputation. These risks are especially pronounced This risk is
particularly acute given our reliance on our social media presence to promote bolster our brand and maintain consumer loyalty and engagement.

Our reputation is based in part onalso shaped by consumers’ subjective opinions. Regulatory perceptions. Any regulatory or legal action against us, challenges, product recalls, or
other adverse negative publicity could damage tarnish our reputation and brand image, undermine our consumers’ confidence, erode consumer trust, and reduce diminish long-term
demand for our products. If we do notFailure to effectively maintain, extend, enhance, and expand grow our brand image then our business, financial condition, and results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected.
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impact our business operations, financial health, and overall performance.
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Our success depends on our ability to compete with many food service businesses.

We compete with many well-established operate in a highly competitive food service companies. At the shop level, we compete with otherlandscape, vying against numerous
established players. Our shops face competition from a diverse array of indulgence retailers and bakeries, specialty coffee retailers, shops, bagel shops, stores, quick service
restaurants, delicatessens, take-out food service companies, services, convenience stores, and supermarkets. Our Branded Sweet Treat Line competes primarily with grocery store
bakeries and packaged snack foods.

In both our shop and Branded Sweet Treat Line business channels, operations, we face challenges from aggressive pricing by our competitors or and the entrance potential entry of
new competitors players into our markets, which could reduce affect our sales and profit margins. Moreover, Additionally, many. of our competitors offer consumers a wider broader
product range of products. Many of our competitors or potential competitors have substantially and possess significantly greater financial and other resources, than we do which may
allow enabling them to reactbetter adapt to changes pricing and market shifts in pricing, marketing, and the quick service restaurant industry better than we can. As competitors
expand their operations, competition may intensify. In addition, theindustry. The relatively low start-up costs associated withfor retail indulgence and similar food service
establishments are not a significant barrier ventures also lower the barriers to entry, into the retail indulgence business, further increasing the potential for escalating competition.

In addition to the above, Furthermore, our omni-channel business approach, especially strategy, particularly exemplified by our Insomnia Cookies brand which emphasizes with its
focus on delivery, ascompetes in a key component, competes fiercely contested arena with both local and international indulgence brands in a highly competitive space. brands.
While we control and operate manage our own Ecommerce platform, we rely depend on third-party food delivery services for last-mile delivery the final leg of our products. product
distribution. We are also participate as a partner platform on such services, in whichthese platforms, where they handle the end-to-endentire consumer transaction, with
consumers, including delivery of our products, is conducted by the third-party platform. delivery. Our consumers may prefer might opt for other indulgence providers’ Ecommerce
platforms or other delivery platforms and services for a variety of competitive reasons, including due to factors like delivery availability, reach, app user experience, usability, and
overall market demand preference for food delivery. delivery services.

If we are unable fail to successfully compete we may be unable effectively, our ability to sustain or increase grow our revenues and profitability profits, as well as leverage to capitalize
on the expected growth we expect to achieve through our omni-channel business model. model, could be compromised.

Risks Related to Our Global Expansion and Growth
A key portion of our growth strategy depends on opening new Krispy Kreme shops and Points of Access both domestically and internationally.

A core part of our business strategy is expansion of Our strategic focus includes expanding our Global Points of Access, through encompassing the addition establishment of new
shops, DFD doors, Doors, and Ecommerce platforms, both in existing our current markets and new geographies. Our ability to successfully execute such anregions. However, the
effective implementation of this expansion strategy may be influenced impacted by external factors beyond our outside the control of both us and our franchisees’ control, which may
slow franchisees, potentially hindering shop development and impairimpeding our overall growth strategy. We may also be limited by logistical or other operational concerns,
including an inability to source objectives. Operational challenges, such as difficulties in sourcing product components or logistical services. Further, services, may also impose
limitations.

Additionally, our presence in certain international markets of ours are heavily reliantdepends on our franchisees and there can be franchisees. There is no assurance guarantee that
our these franchisees will successfully develop or operate manage their shops in a manner consistentalignment with our brand standards, or will have the business abilities or
access standards. Moreover, their ability to financial resources necessary to effectively open, operate, and maintain the sustain these shops required by as per their agreements and
our brand requirements. requirements may be constrained by their business capabilities or financial resources.

We will face risks as we continue to focus on expansion of our omni-channel business model.

Continued Our ongoing expansion of ourthe omni-channel business model will entail significantinvolves substantial costs and uncertainties arising uncertainties. These stem from
among other things, expanding various factors, including the expansion of Points of Access, increasing our enhancement of manufacturing capability, developing our capabilities,
development of information technology and logistics systems, and adapting adjustments in our corporate organization structure and talent. workforce.

Successful implementation will continue to rely on The success of this expansion is contingent upon our ability to capitalize effectively leverage and realize certain goals, including
identifying objectives. These include finding suitable retail partners, expanding the geographies we serveextending our market reach, and developingbuilding and
maintaining sustaining the manufacturing and logistical capacity capabilities required to meetfulfill our delivery needs. In addition, these may exacerbate commitments. Furthermore,
this expansion could intensify or be exacerbated affected by other risk factors included mentioned herein, especially particularly those related toconcerning our logistical and
manufacturing capacity capacities and ability to compete our competitiveness in the indulgence market.

There is no guarantee assurance that we will achieve attain the expected benefits we anticipate or achieve the costs cost savings, revenue generation growth, and other positive
effects necessary outcomes needed to offset counterbalance the costs and risks discussed here.

Our failure to improve the performance of our Branded Sweet Treat Line could materially and adversely affect our results of operations.

Our Branded Sweet Treat Line, which has only been deployed in the U.S., has thus far been dilutive to our adjusted EBITDA margins. There is no guarantee that it will see success
among customers in domestic markets, be deployed or be successful in international markets, or ever become accretive to our adjusted EBITDA margins either domestically or
internationally. Any
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failure to recognize the benefits we expected in pursuing associated with this business line could materially and adversely affect our results of operations.expansion.

Political, economic, currency, and other risks associated with our international operations could adversely affect our and our international franchisees’ operating
results.

As of January 1, 2023 and excluding Doughnut Factories, there were 1,346 December 31, 2023, our company operates a substantial portion of its business outside the U.S., with
1,558 Krispy Kreme shops operated outside of the U.S. and Canada, representing 69% internationally, excluding Doughnut Factories. This accounts for 72% of our total shop count.
Of this total, 862 shops were owned and operated Among these, 1,028 are managed by franchisees. Our revenues from international operations, and encompassing various
business segments, are exposed subject to numerous risks associated with doing business ininherent to foreign countries. Risks arising from our international operations markets.
These risks include, but are not limited to:

« Recessionary Exposure to recessionary or expansive growth trends in international markets; global markets, impacting consumer spending and market stability;

« Ongoing government regulatory reform, including relating to reforms in areas like public health, food safety, tariffs, and tax, taxation, sustainability, and responses to climate
change which result inresponse leading to regulatory uncertainty as well as uncertainties and potential significant increases spikes in compliance costs;

» Food safety related matters, including compliance with Challenges in adhering to international food safety regulations and ability to ensure maintaining high standards of
product quality and safety;

« Import or other Navigating varying import and business licensing requirements; requirements across countries;

» Limitations on the Constraints in fund repatriation of funds and foreign currency exchange, restrictions due to current or newinfluenced by U.S. and international
regulations; laws;

« Difficulty Difficulties in managing and staffing developing, and managing foreign international operations, and supply chain logistics, including and ensuring the consistency of
our consistent product quality and service;

« Disputes Risks associated with our franchisees, franchisee disputes, operational failures, development delays, or failures by our franchisees to operate successfully, to
develop or finance new shops or build them on suitable sites or open them on schedule; site selection issues;

* Local Complexities and costs arising from local labor laws that make it more expensive and complex to negotiate with, retain,in hiring, retaining, or terminate
employees; terminating staff;

« Competition Facing strong competition in new markets with entrenched competitors as we expand our international operations; established local players; and

« Increase Potential increase in anti-American sentiment and the identification of the affecting brand image, as Krispy Kreme is widely recognized as an American brand.

Our results of operationsfinancial performance and the value of ourasset valuation in foreign assets markets are affected by fluctuations insusceptible to currency exchange
rates rate fluctuations and liquidity which may adversely affectissues, negatively impacting reported earnings. Royalties from ourinternational franchisees, are based on calculated
as a percentage of their net sales, (as defined are subject to currency conversion risks. An increase in our franchise agreements) generated by our foreign franchisees’ operations.
Royalties payable to us by our international franchisees are based reliance on a conversion of local currencies to U.S. dollars using the prevailing exchange rate, and changes in
exchange rates could adversely affect our revenues. To the extent that the portion of our revenues generated from international operations increases in the future, amplifies our
exposure vulnerability to changes in foreign political and economic conditions instability, currency volatility, and regulatory constraints on currency fluctuations will increase. In
addition, political circumstances in certain countries where we operate may restrict the conversion of local currency into foreign currencies and in certain cases, the remittance of
currency out of the country. remittance.

Additionally, we typically export Moreover, our products, principally ourinternational operations predominantly rely on exporting doughnut mixes and doughnut mix concentrates to
franchisees. These exports are governed by a myriad of U.S. and international regulations concerning food products. In the event of a ban on any of our franchisees in markets
outside the U.S. Numerous government regulations apply ingredients, identifying suitable alternatives could be challenging and time-consuming, potentially delaying our expansion
plans.

In conclusion, our expanding international presence heightens our exposure to both the exporta diverse range of food products from the U.S. as well as the import of food products
into other countries. If one or more of the ingredients in our products are banned, alternative ingredients would need to be identified. Although we intend to be proactive in
addressing any product ingredient issues, such requirements may delay our ability to open shops in other countries in accordance risks associated with our desired schedule. foreign
market operations, regulatory environments, and global economic conditions.

Risks Related to Our Human Capital
An inability to recruit and retain personnel could have materially adverse effects on our operations.

We rely heavily on our Krispy Kremers to provide high-quality service and unique experiences. Our Krispy Kremers play a pivotal role in delivering exceptional service and creating
memorable experiences for our consumers. They are essential indispensable for continued the smooth operation of our retail and outlets, manufacturing facilities, as well as ourand
delivery logistics. They enable us Our ability to ensure that we provide a consistent maintain the highest product to our consumers, quality, whether it is in our Hot Light Theater
Shops or at one of our DFD access points. Our future points, heavily relies on their dedication.

Furthermore, our continued success also depends upon hinges on the continued ongoing contributions of our senior management and other key personnel, and the our ability to
retain and motivate them. Economic However, certain economic and social trends beyond our control, such as labor shortages, may make it difficult to recruitpose challenges in
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recruiting and retain retaining talented Krispy Kremers, including our senior management and other key personnel. The growth of

As our business can make continues to grow, it becomes increasingly difficultchallenging to locate identify and hire a sufficient numbers number of employees, to maintain
an establish effective system of internal controls for a globally dispersed enterprise, and provide comprehensive training to train employees worldwide to deliver a consistently high-
ensure consistent product quality and outstanding consumer experiences worldwide.
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quality product and consumer experience. If we are unable to recruit, retain encounter difficulties in recruiting, retaining, and motivate motivating Krispy Kremers sufficiently to
support the our projected growth and strategic initiatives, of our business, there it could be materially have significant adverse effects on our overall operations.

Changes in the availability or cost of labor could adversely affect our business.

Our business could be adversely impacted by increases inis susceptible to potential adverse impacts arising from rising labor costs, including encompassing wages and employee
benefits. Such These cost increases may be triggered by stem from various factors, including state and federal legislation, and regulatory actions regardingrelated to wages,
scheduling, and benefits; increased benefits, as well as escalating healthcare and workers’ workers' compensation insurance costs; increased expenses. Additionally, there may be a
need to enhance wages and costs of other benefits necessary to attract and retain high-quality highly skilled employees with the right skill sets and increased wages.
Furthermore, requisite expertise.

Moreover, we may experience a shortage could encounter challenges related to the availability of labor for store positions, including due toin-shop positions. This shortage may be
influenced by evolving market trends, and changing employment conditions, the availabilityemergence of new telecommuting employment options, job opportunities, and other
factors which could decrease that can reduce the pool of available qualified talent for key functions. Such changes in the availability or cost critical roles within our organization.

The fluctuating landscape of labor could have availability and costs has the potential to yield materially adverse effects on our business. business operations.

Risks Related to Our Supply Chain

We are the exclusive or primary supplier of doughnut mixes and key ingredients to shops worldwide and any problems supplying these ingredients could negatively
affect our and our franchisees’ ability to make doughnuts.

We areserve as the exclusive supplier of doughnut mixes for manyto numerous domestic and international Krispy Kreme shops and shops. Additionally, we hold the exclusive
supplier role of providing doughnut mix concentrate, which is blended with other various ingredients to produce create doughnut mixes, at both domestic and international production
facilities, forto all Krispy Kreme shops globally. We also worldwide. Furthermore, we are the exclusive sole supplier of certain other key specific critical ingredients to all domestic
Company-owned shops, most the majority of domestic franchise shops, and some select international franchise shops. We manufacture all our concentrates

Our concentrate manufacturing primarily takes place at our manufacturing facility located in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, and onto a limited scale, extent, through a
manufacturing agreement with BakeMark USA LLC (“BakeMark”). We produce Domestic doughnut mix domestically production occurs at our Winston-Salem plant and a third-party
facility in Pico Rivera, California. We distribute The distribution of doughnut mixes, and other key essential ingredients, and flavors using independent contract distributors for to
Krispy Kreme shops, both domestically and internationally. Without an internationally, is facilitated by independent contract distributors. It is important to note that any disruption in
the production of our mixes and concentrates would have a cascading effect on our global supply chain, with no adequate alternative source any shutdown or disruption of our mix
and concentrate production would disrupt our entire global supply chain. available.

The Pico Rivera facility produces mixis responsible for producing mixes for distribution to most Krispy Kreme shops west of the Mississippi River and River. In the event of a
shutdown or capacity loss at our Winston-Salem facility, Pico Rivera has the capacity capability to manufacture our doughnut mixes for other regions in the event ofregions.
Nevertheless, a shut-down or loss of capacity at our Winston-Salem facility. Nevertheless, an production interruption of production at any manufacturing facility could impede hinder
our, and our franchisees’, ability or that of our franchisees to make produce doughnuts domestically. Internationally, we produce operate several plants for doughnut mix at several
plants production, and any disruption at suchthese facilities may have regional impacts on could impact doughnut production capabilities atregionally, affecting our locations and
those of our franchisees’ locations. franchisees.

We generally ship our mixOur international shipments of mixes and concentrate internationally concentrates primarily depart from a single port in Florida. Delays Any delays in
shipping or disruptions in logistics chains could impact ours and adversely affect our franchisees’ international operations. Events that delay shipmentoperations as well as those of
our franchisees. Such delays may beresult from known or unknown,unforeseen events, including events arising in connection withthose related to adverse weather
events, conditions, customs and border shutdowns, closures, trade conflicts, and general trade route delays. In addition, if any

Furthermore, unexpected termination of our relationships with our raw material suppliers, terminate unexpectedly, even where we have when multiple suppliers exist for the same
ingredient, we may not be able hinder our ability to obtain secure adequate quantities of the same high-quality ingredients at competitive prices. As we continue to expand our global
footprint the above expansion, these risks may be exacerbated as we encounter intensify, leading to supply shortages, logistical hurdles, challenges, and other increased operational
costs associated with operating managing and supplying a global network of Krispy Kreme shops.

We are the only manufacturer of substantially all our doughnut-making equipment. If we have any problems producing this equipment, our shops’ ability to make
doughnuts could be negatively affected.

We manufacture our Our custom doughnut-making equipment in oneis exclusively manufactured at a single facility located in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Although While we
have maintain limited back-up backup sources to produce our for equipment obtaining production, the process of manufacturing new equipment quickly swiftly in the event of a loss
of disruption at our Winston-Salem facility would be difficult. present significant challenges.
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In the unfortunate event of such an event, a disruption, we would be forced compelled to rely onexplore alternative options, such as partnering with third-party manufacturers or
shift relocating production to another manufacturing facility, and we could face significant facility. This transition may entail substantial delays in the manufacturing process and result
in increased costs, which would jeopardize costs. Consequently, our ability to supply provide equipment to new newly established shops or new essential replacement parts for
maintenance in existing shops could be compromised in terms of timeliness.

This situation underscores the importance of safeguarding our manufacturing operations to ensure the consistent supply of equipment to support our expanding network of shops
and the maintenance requirements of our existing equipment in established shops on a timely basis.
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locations.

We have limited suppliers for many of the product components and services that we rely on and any interruption in supply could impair our ability to make and deliver
our signature products, adversely affecting our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Although While we own possess exclusive ownership of the recipe recipes for our glaze flavoring and glaze base, we currently rely on a single supplier. supplier for these essential
ingredients. Additionally, all the cookie dough used by for our Insomnia Cookies brand, all cookie dough is supplied by sourced from a single sole supplier. Our dependence on
suchthese suppliers subjects exposes us to the possible potential risks, of including shortages, supply interruptions, and price fluctuations.

Any interruption disruption in the delivery supply chain of glaze flavoring would adversely affect could have adverse consequences on our ability to produce and deliver our signature
products, including our the beloved hot Original Glazed doughnut, to our consumers onin a timely and competitive basis and manner. Such interruptions could adversely affectalso
impact our operating results. operational performance. In the event we cannot obtain that suitable replacement products in a timely manner, cannot be secured promptly, we risk face
the potential loss of revenue resulting from the inability to sell offer our products and related increased the associated increase in administrative and shipping costs. expenses.

Furthermore, dealing with our reliance on a limited number of providers exposes us to increased heightened risks arising from associated with the distribution networks of these
suppliers. Factors such suppliers’ distribution networks. Increases in the as fuel price of fuel, employee increases, labor strikes, organized labor activities, inclementadverse weather
conditions, and a variety of other known and unknown factors could limitvarious unforeseen variables may hinder our providers’ ability providers' capacity to service meet our
logistical needs. requirements. If we are unable to source encounter difficulties in sourcing alternative logistical providers, our costs may significantly increase and, if experience
significant escalation. If we are unable to pass on these increased distribution costs on to our consumers in the form ofthrough higher product prices, for our products, it could
adversely impact our business, financial condition, health, and results of operations could be adversely affected. operational results.

Our reliance on a single vendor for distribution of materials and supplies in the U.S. and a portion of Canada poses risks to our and our franchisees’ ability to make
doughnuts if the vendor fails to provide these materials and supplies per the agreement.

We entered into have established an exclusive distribution agreement partnership with BakeMark, which among other things, grants BakeMark the exclusive rights to BakeMark to
distribute ingredients, packaging, and supplies to both Company-owned and franchise shops in parts certain regions of the U.S. and Canada. If However, in the event that BakeMark
experiences encounters economic or operational challenges, thisit could cause potentially lead to disruptions to within our supply chain in the U.S. and Canada. We cannot control
the factors that may cause such challenges, and we may not be able to find

Finding an alternative distribution channel in a timely manner to preventmitigate these disruptions and challenges may prove difficult. In some cases, we may need to our
operations, which might even require that we temporarily stop halt production in at the affected shops until other suitable alternative arrangements are taken. Additionally, can be put
in place.

Furthermore, the cost of a replacement distribution channel may also affect could have implications for the financial performance of these shops. Severe A severe disruption to our
BakeMark could production has the potential to result in a material significant and adverse impact on our overall business, and our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows.

Ensuring the reliability and continuity of our supply chain is of utmost importance to safeguard the seamless operation of our shops in the U.S. and Canada, and we actively monitor
and assess potential risks in this regard.

Our profitability is sensitive to changes in the cost of raw materials and other commodities.

Although While we utilize employ forward purchase contracts, and futures contracts, and/or and options on such contracts to mitigate the risks related to associated with commodity
price fluctuations, suchit is important to acknowledge that these contracts do may not fully mitigate offer complete protection against commaodity price risk, particularly over the longer
term. In addition, extended timeframes. Additionally, the portion of our anticipated future commodity requirements that is subject to covered by such contracts varies from time to can
vary over time.

Our Among our essential ingredients, three most significant ingredients are stand out in significance: flour, shortening, and sugar. We also purchase Furthermore, we procure a
substantial amount quantity of gasoline to fuelfor our delivery vehicle fleet of delivery vehicles forserving our DFD business, and significantas well as substantial amounts of
packaging materials, to make, among other things, including our iconic boxes for our dozens, half-dozens, and half-dozens. The three-packs of doughnuts. Recent years have
witnessed notable volatility in the prices of key commodities such as wheat and soybean oil, which are constitute the principal primary components of flour and shortening,
respectively, and respectively. Additionally, the prices of sugar and gasoline have been volatile in recent years. We attempt exhibited fluctuations.
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While we strive to leverage our market size to achieve secure economies of scale in purchasing, but there canprocurement, it is essential to recognize that effective cost
management cannot always be no assurances that we can always do so effectively. Adverse changesguaranteed. Unfavorable shifts in commodity prices could adversely
affect have the potential to impact our profitability. profitability, underscoring the importance of ongoing diligence in managing and mitigating these risks.

Risks Related to Regulation and Litigation

We may be subject to litigation that could adversely affect us by increasing our expenses, diverting management attention, or subjecting us to significant monetary
damages and other remedies.

We are regularly involved in Our organization frequently encounters claims or disputes by involving various stakeholders, including franchisees, suppliers, employees, customers,
governments, government entities, and others related toothers. These disputes encompass a wide range of issues, including operational, foreign exchange, tax, franchise,
contractual, orand employment issues. These claims or disputes matters. They may relate also pertain to diverse areas such as personal injury, franchisees’ franchisee employment,
real estate, related, environmental concerns, tort claims, intellectual property breach disputes, breaches of contract, data privacy issues, securities litigation, derivative actions, and
various other litigation legal matters. Plaintiffs Notably, plaintiffs often seek recovery of very large substantial or indeterminate undetermined amounts in damages, and lawsuits are
subject to inherentinherently carry uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. We

It is important to note that not all current or former employees may not have valid arbitration agreements and waivers of class certification with all current or former employees, in
place, and the certain arbitration agreements that are in place may not fully protect us from certain specific claims, particularly in certain states (including such as California where
Private Attorney General Act claims in California). Unfavorable are involved. Additionally, unfavorable rulings or developments may also occur in cases we are not involved in.
Moreover, regardless unrelated to our direct involvement.

Regardless of
Table the merits ofContents

whether any such lawsuits have merit, or whether we are ultimately held liable our ultimate liability or settle, such litigation may settlement outcomes, legal proceedings can be
expensive costly to defend, may divert resources and management attention away from our core operations, and may negatively potentially impact our results of operations. With
respect to financial performance. Furthermore, in cases involving insured claims, a judgment for monetary damages in excess of any that exceeds our insurance coverage could
adversely affect have adverse implications for our financial condition or results of operations. Any position and operational results.

Moreover, any adverse publicity resulting from these allegations may also adversely affectimpact our reputations, which in turn could adversely affectreputation, potentially affecting
our results of operations. operational performance. We remain committed to addressing these challenges diligently and responsibly to safeguard our organization's interests.

Our business may be adversely affected by litigation, regulation and publicity concerning food quality, health, and other issues, which can negatively affect public
policy and consumer preferences toward our products.

As a food service business, we may be adversely affected by acknowledge the potential adverse impacts stemming from litigation, regulation, regulatory actions, and complaints
from consumers consumer or government authorities resulting from complaints related to food quality, illness, injury or otherinjuries, health concerns, or operating issues
stemming operational issues. These concerns may arise from one shopindividual shops or a limited number of shops, including shopsthose operated by our franchisees,
or franchisees. Additionally, they may emerge as we introduce new products or increase expand distribution channels, such as our DFD business channels. In addition,

It is important to note that class action lawsuits have been filed and may continue to be filed against various food service businesses, (including quick service restaurants)
alleging, including quick-service restaurants. These lawsuits may allege, among other things, that food service businesses have failedthe failure to disclose the health risks
associated with high-fat foods and that certain food service business marketing practices have encouraged that encourage obesity. Because Given that one of our core competitive
strengths is advantages lies in the taste and quality of our doughnuts and other indulgence indulgent products, adverse publicity or regulations relating related to food quality or other
similar concerns affect us have a more than it would pronounced impact on our business compared to food service businesses that primarily compete primarily on other factors. We
could also incur significant liabilities if

Furthermore, in the event that such a lawsuit lawsuits or claim results claims result in a decision against us unfavorable judgments or because of due to litigation costs, regardless of
the result. final outcome, we may face significant liabilities. We remain committed to upholding our reputation for taste and quality while diligently addressing these potential
challenges and complying with regulations to ensure the satisfaction and safety of our consumers.

We are subject to franchise laws and regulations that govern our status as a franchisor and regulate some aspects of our franchise relationships. Our ability to develop
new franchised shops and to enforce contractual rights against franchisees may be adversely affected by these laws and regulations, which could cause our franchise
revenues to decline.

As a franchisor, we are subject to regulation operate within the regulatory framework established by the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC") and by domestic and foreign laws
regulating governing the offer and sale of franchises. Our The importance of adhering to these regulations cannot be overstated, as any failure to obtain or maintain approvals to
offer for offering franchises would cause us to lose future could result in the loss of potential franchise revenues and revenues generated through our Market Development segment.
In addition,

Furthermore, it is essential to recognize that both domestic orand foreign laws thatnot only oversee the procedural aspects of offering franchises but also regulate substantive
aspects of our relationships with franchisees franchisees. These laws may limitimpose limitations on our ability to terminate or otherwise effectively resolve conflicts with our
franchisees. Compliance with these regulations is integral to the successful operation of our franchising business model and the maintenance of harmonious relationships with our
franchisees.

Healthcare legislation and other potential employment legislation could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Federal We anticipate that federal legislation regarding government-mandated concerning mandated health benefits and potential minimum wage legislation is expected regulations
will lead to increaseincreased costs for both our organization and our domestic franchisees’ costs. In the pastfranchisees. Over recent years, several years states have
increased already raised their minimum wageswage rates, and there is mounting pressure to increase minimum wage for similar increases on a federal level as well. In
addition, level. Additionally, for those of our employees paid at rates whose compensation is set above but relatedtied to the applicable minimum wage, further increases hikes in the
minimum wage could increase our result in higher labor costs, which expenses. These cost increases may also be increased influenced by inflationary pressures and any shortages
in the potential labor market. market shortages.

Various Our relationships with employees are governed by various federal and state labor laws, govern which play a pivotal role in shaping our relationships with our employees and
affect operating operational costs. These laws include encompass aspects such as employee classifications as exempt or non-exempt, minimum wage requirements,

stipulations, unemployment tax rates, workers’ workers' compensation rates, overtime regulations, family leave policies, safety standards, payroll taxes, citizenship requirements,
and other wage and benefit requirements prerequisites for employees classified as non-exempt. It is difficult to predict the overall trend

The future trajectory of government regulation, regulations in these areas remains uncertain, and we may be subject to significant and sweeping change substantial changes or
reforms arising out ofstemming from legislative initiatives surrounding related to labor laws, healthcare laws, or other laws affecting regulations impacting our labor costs.
Significant The imposition of additional government regulations could impose increased may introduce heightened compliance costs, and we may be subject to litigation arising out
of noncompliance with such regulations. Such risks, combined these regulations could potentially lead to litigation.

Considering these factors, in combination with other potential increases in our labor costs, could have expenses, there is a possibility of material adverse effects on our business,
financial condition, and operating operational results. We remain vigilant in monitoring developments in labor-related legislation to adapt and comply accordingly.

Our annual effective income tax rate can change materially as a result of changes in our geographic mix of U.S. and foreign earnings and other factors, including
changes in tax laws and changes made by regulatory authorities.

We are subject to federal, state, and local income taxes both in the U.S. and in foreign jurisdictions. Our The impact of potential changes in tax laws on our future effective tax rates
and the value of our deferred tax assets could be adversely affected by changes in tax laws, the consequences of which haveremains uncertain and has not yet been fully
determined. In addition, we Additionally, our income tax returns are subject to the examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and other tax
authorities. Although we believe While we have made taken appropriate provisions measures to provision for taxes in the jurisdictions in which where we operate, changes alterations
in the tax laws or challenges from tax authorities under based on existing tax laws could adversely affecthave adverse repercussions on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.
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operational results.

Our overall effective income tax rate is equal to calculated as our total tax expense as a percentage ofrelative to total earnings before tax. However, It is important to note that
income tax expense and benefits are not recognized on a global basis but rather on a jurisdictional or legal entity basis. basis, rather than on a global scale. Losses incurred in one
jurisdiction may not be used to offset profits in other jurisdictions, and may cause potentially resulting in an increase in our overall tax rate. Changes in the mix distribution of earnings
(or losses) betweenamong different jurisdictions and the assumptions used employed in the calculation of calculating income taxes, among other factors, could have can exert a
significant effectinfluence on our overall effective income tax rate. Additionally, changes in Furthermore, adjustments to tax laws and changes modifications made by regulatory
authorities could have a significant effect onthe potential to significantly impact our overall effective income tax rate. For example, member countries of the Organization for
Economic Co-operation and Development have enacted or are in the process of enacting legislation related to the implementation of a global minimum tax rate of 15% as early as
2024. As legislation becomes effective in countries in which we do business, our taxes could increase and negatively impact our effective tax rate. Additionally, the cost of complying
with new legislation could negatively impact our results.

The full realization of our deferred tax assets may be affected by a number of factors, including future earnings and the feasibility of ongoing planning strategies.

We have hold deferred tax assets, includingencompassing federal, state, and foreign net operating loss carryforwards, accruals not yet deductible for tax purposes, tax credits, and
other items. We have established valuation allowances, to reduce reducing the deferred tax assets related to associated with U.S. federal tax credits, as well as foreign and state
and local net operating loss carryforwards, to an amount that isdeemed more likely than not to be realized. Our ability to utilize the The realization of these deferred tax assets
depends in part upon hinges on our ability to generate future taxable income within each respective jurisdiction during the periods in whichwhen these temporary differences
reverse, or our ability capability to carryback carry back any losses created by resulting from the deduction of these temporary differences.

Duelt is essential to acknowledge that our existing deferred tax assets and tax credits could potentially expire or become unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities due to
legal or regulatory changes. Such changes such as suspensions may include suspension on the use of deferred tax assets and tax credits imposed by certain jurisdictions, possibly
with retroactive effect, our existing deferred tax assets and tax credits could expire or otherwise be unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities. effects. For example,
California instance, during the COVID-19 pandemic, lllinois temporarily suspended the use of certain specific net operating losses and tax credits to offset revenue losses associated
with the COVID-19 pandemic. Other jurisdictions could also impose losses. Similar limitations on the use of certain deferred tax assets and tax credits. credits could be enforced by
other jurisdictions.

We expect to realize the anticipate realizing these deferred tax assets over an extended period. If However, if we are unable to generate encounter challenges in generating sufficient
future taxable income in the U.S. and/or certain foreign jurisdictions, or if there is a significant change alteration in the time period timeframe within which the underlying temporary
differences become taxable or deductible, we couldmay be required compelled to increase augment our valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets. OurSuch an
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adjustment could lead to an increase in our effective tax rate would increase if we were required rate. We remain diligent in managing these considerations to increase optimize our
valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets. financial position.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our failure or inability to obtain, maintain, protect, and enforce our trademarks or other intellectual property could adversely affect our business and the value of our
brands.

We own certain possess common-law trademark rights in the U.S., as well as complemented by numerous trademark and service mark registrations in the U.S. both domestically
and in other jurisdictions. We possess internationally. Our intellectual property that includes portfolio encompasses ingredient formulas, trademarks, copyrights, patents, business
processes, and other valuable trade secrets. We believe thatview our trademarks and other intellectual property rights are important as integral to our success and our competitive
position. We positioning. To safeguard these assets, we rely on a combination ofcomprehensive strategy encompassing legal protections provided offered by trademark
registrations, contracts, copyrights, patents, and common law rights, such as protections against unfair competition, passing off, and trade secret laws to protect our intellectual
property from potential infringement. violations.

Despite our proactive efforts to obtain, secure, maintain, protect, safeguard, and enforce our trademarks, service marks, and other intellectual property rights, there can be no
assurance absolute guarantee that these protections will be available in all cases, and our trademarks, service marks, universally applicable. Challenges such as potential
infringements, challenges to validity, declarations of generic status, circumvention, or other intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated, declared generic,
circumvented, infringed, or otherwise violated. In addition, effective violations may arise. Furthermore, the effectiveness of intellectual property protection may not be available in
every country in which vary across countries where our brands have existing or potential shops or facilities. The intellectual property laws of certain foreign countries may not provide
the same level of protection as those in the future open or franchise, a shop or other facility and U.S.

We acknowledge the laws of some foreign countries do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S. There can be no assurance possibility that
the steps measures we have takenimplemented to protect safeguard our intellectual property, oralong with the available legal protections, that may be available will be adequate
ornot always prove sufficient. Additionally, it is not assured that our franchisees will maintain consistently uphold the quality of the goods and services offered under our
brands’ brand trademarks or always act in accordance with consistently adhere to the guidelines we setestablish for maintaining preserving our brands' brand's intellectual property
rightsrights. The defense and defending or enforcing enforcement of our trademarks and other intellectual property could result entail substantial resource allocation and potentially
impact our business, reputation, financial standing, and operational results.

Furthermore, our brands may become targets of infringement claims, potentially impacting the use of specific names, trademarks, or proprietary knowledge, recipes, and trade
secrets integral to our business. The defense against such claims can be costly, and in some cases, it may lead to restrictions on our use of proprietary information in the
expenditure future or require the payment of significant resources damages, royalties, or result insignificant harm other fees for the continued use of such proprietary information. Any
of these outcomes has the potential to exert a negative influence on our business, reputation, financial condition, and results of operations. Our brands may also be targets of
infringement claims that could interfere with the use of certain names or trademarks and/or the proprietary know-how, recipes, or trade secrets used operational results. We remain
vigilant in protecting and managing our business. Defending against such claims is costly, and as a result of defending such claims, we may be prohibited from using such
proprietary information in the future or forced to pay damages, royalties, or other fees for using such proprietary information, any of which could negatively affect our business,
reputation, financial condition, and results of operations.
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intellectual property assets.

Loss of our trade secret recipes could adversely affect our sales.

We derive significant Our competitive benefit from advantage is significantly driven by the fact that our doughnut recipes and formulations are closely guarded trade secrets.
Although While we take reasonable stepsprecautions to safeguard our protect these trade secrets, should they become knownany inadvertent disclosure to competitors could
potentially have a substantial adverse impact on our competitive position could suffer substantially. Furthermore, standing. It is essential to acknowledge that safeguarding trade
secrets can be difficult to protect. We seek to protecta complex endeavor.

To fortify the protection of our trade secrets and other know-how, proprietary knowledge, we engage in part, bythe practice of entering into non-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with partiesindividuals and entities who may have access to them, such asthis confidential information. This includes our employees, corporate collaborators,
outside external contractors, consultants, advisors, and other third parties. We However, we cannot guarantee that we have entered into such agreements have been established
with each every relevant party, and there exists the possibility that any of these parties may breach the these agreements, and disclose thereby divulging our proprietary information.
Enforcing a claim that Furthermore, pursuing legal action against a party illegally alleged to have unlawfully disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult, expensive, a
challenging, costly, and time-consuming and the outcome process with an uncertain outcome.

Moreover, it is unpredictable. In addition, feasible that others may independently discover our trade secrets and confidential information, and ininformation. In such cases, instances,
we could notwould be unable to assert any trade secret rights against such these parties. We remain vigilant in our efforts to protect our trade secrets, recognizing the critical role
they play in maintaining our competitive edge.

Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditions

Adverse economic conditions or disruptions in the markets where we operate could adversely impact our business, results of operations, and financial condition.
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Adverse Unfavorable economic conditions circumstances or disruptions inmarket disturbances within the marketsregions where we and our franchisees operate could result
in conduct business have the potential to lead to higher unemployment rates, shortages in the labor shortages, increases in inflation, market, inflationary pressures, and declines a
decrease in consumer confidence and spending. Our products are an indulgence, which is highly fall into the category of indulgences, making them particularly sensitive to shifts in
discretionary spending trends. If patterns. In the event of such adverse conditions, occur, our customers consumers may have less money for discretionary purchases and may stop
or reduce find themselves with reduced disposable income, leading to potential reductions in their purchases consumption of our products. There can be no assurance

It is crucial to acknowledge that government responsesinterventions in response to economic disruptions will restoredo not always guarantee the restoration of consumer
confidence. Ongoing Prolonged disruptions in national both domestic and global economies may adversely impact have the potential to exert adverse effects on our business, results
of operations, financial performance, and overall financial condition. health. We remain vigilant in monitoring economic developments and their potential impact on our operations.

Risks Related to Crises, Catastrophic Events, and Business Continuity

Public health outbreaks, epidemics, or pandemics, including the global COVID-19 outbreak, have disrupted and may continue to disrupt, our business, and could
materially affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Health epidemics or pandemics can adversely affecthave detrimental effects on consumer spending, and confidence levels, and supply chain availability, and associated costs
inwithin the markets in which where we and our franchisees operate, all of which operate. These factors can affect collectively influence our business, financial condition, standing,
and results operational results. A notable instance of operations. For example, this was the global spread of the COVID-19 epidemic spread globally in recent years, disrupting which
disrupted global health, economic and market conditions, consumer behavior, behaviors, and food service operations.

While we have enacted protectionsimplemented measures to manage large scaleaddress significant public health risks on a large scale, we may nonetheless be affected
by acknowledge the potential for future outbreaks into impact our shops and other facilities, resulting facilities. Such outbreaks may result in a significant percentage substantial
portion of our workforce or the workforce of our business partners being unable to work.

In addition, Furthermore, our business is affectedinfluenced by shifting consumer preferences and perceptions. The risk of contracting viruses has Concerns regarding virus
transmission have prompted employees and could continue to cause employees or guests to avoid gathering congregating in public places, which has had, and could further
have, leading to adverse effects on ours and guest traffic at our franchisees’ guest traffic locations and the ability to adequately staff shop locations.Many our shops. The COVID-19
pandemic has triggered changes in consumer behaviors, some of which may endure or continue evolving even after the pandemic subsides. These shifts have changed during the
COVID-19 pandemicalready had and may persist or continue to change beyond the end of the pandemic. These changes have and could continue to negatively impactexert
negative impacts on consumer traffic and the sales of both our Company-owned and franchisee-operated shops. We remain attentive to evolving consumer trends and their
potential implications for our franchisees’ sales.business and operational performance.

Adverse weather conditions could adversely affect our business.

Adverse Unfavorable weather conditions can impact have the potential to affect guest traffic at our Company-owned and our franchisees’ shops and, in franchisee-operated shops. In
more severe cases extreme scenarios, such as hurricanes, tornadoes, flooding, or other natural disasters, (which canwhich may be worsened exacerbated by the effects of climate
change), cause change, temporary shop closures may become necessary, sometimes for prolonged periods, which extended durations. Such closures would negatively invariably
have an adverse impact on our shop sales. Changes

Moreover, fluctuations in weather could result inpatterns can lead to construction delays, interruptions todisruptions in the availability of utilities, and potential shortages or
interruptions in the supply of food items and other supplies, which could essential supplies. These developments have the potential to increase our costs. operational costs and pose
challenges to our supply chain. We remain vigilant in monitoring weather-related risks and their potential consequences for our business operations.

Risks Related to Environmental, Social, and Governance Responsibility Matters

We may be affected by matters related to environmental, social, and governance (“Responsibility”) trends and events, including governmental regulation and supply
chain disruptions, that may adversely impact our business.

Additionally, increased focus Furthermore, the growing emphasis on environmental, social, and governance (‘ESG”) matters from Responsibility considerations by consumers,
investors, governmental authorities, and third-party various stakeholders could affect may impact our operations and compliance obligations. ESG matters include, but are not limited
to, Responsibility encompasses a broad spectrum of factors, including climate change, greenhouse gases,gas emissions, packaging and waste management, human rights,
sustainable supply chain practices, animal health and welfare, deforestation, and responsible use of land, energy, and water use. For example, resources. Recent years have seen
the introduction of disclosure requirements have been proposed or adopted in recent years by entities such as the U.S. Congress, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission,
the European
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Union, and the Nasdaq stock exchange, thatwhich either have already prompted or may in the future encourage or require mandate us to adopt new practices for managing and
reporting ESG-related on Responsibility-related risks. These The evolving nature and complexity of these rules and regulations continue to evolve in scope and complexity,
making render compliance more difficultchallenging and uncertain. These Consequently, these changing rules, regulations, andregulatory frameworks, together with evolving
stakeholder expectations, have resulted in, and are likelyled to continue to result in, increased general and administrative expenses and increased have necessitated greater
management time and attention spent complying with or dedicated to achieving compliance and meeting such regulations and expectations. these standards.

Furthermore,
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Moreover, as part of our commitment to making a positive global impact, on the world, we have established specific commitments, targets, and goals and are evaluating their
expansion related to ESG matters. Our Responsibility concerns. We are also evaluating opportunities to expand these commitments further. It is important to note that our
competitors may not seek to establish share a similar level of ambition in setting environmental or sustainability goals at a comparable level objectives, potentially leading to ours,
which could result in lower supply chain or operating and operational costs for our competitors. them. We may choose to communicate these commitments, targets, and goals
through public disclosures. Our Nevertheless, our ability to meet such these commitments targets, and goals navigate the associated risks is subject to risks various external factors
and uncertainties, many of which are outside of beyond our control. If we are not effective, successful, or if we are not perceived to be effective, as ineffective, in achieving our
ESG Responsibility strategy or in mitigating ESG-related Responsibility-related risks to our business, we could be subjectexposed to market, operational, reputational, and execution
costs or risks. challenges and costs.

Risks Related to an Investment in Us

Certain provisions of Delaware Law, the Investors’ Rights Agreement, our certificate of incorporation, and our bylaws could hinder, delay, or prevent a change in
control of us, which could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Certain Several provisions ofwithin Delaware Law, our certificate of incorporation, and our bylaws will contain provisions that could make it more difficultare designed to create
obstacles for a third party to acquire us third-party acquisition attempts without the consent of our Board of Directors or JAB Holdings B.V. (“JAB” ("JAB"), as the our largest beneficial
owner of our common stock. shareholder.

As a Delaware corporation, we are subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended (the “DGCL"), particularly
Section 203, which prevents somerestricts certain shareholders holding more thanowning over 15% of our outstanding common stock (“interested shareholder” (referred to as
"interested shareholders") from engaging in certain specific business combinations without approval from the holders of at least two-thirds of our outstanding common stock not held
by the interested shareholder.

Furthermore, Moreover, JAB controls awields substantial portion of the voting power of the over shares of our common stock eligible to vote in the election of our directors director
elections and on other matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders shareholder votes through its affiliate, and JAB may be able to influence the outcome of matters submitted to
a shareholder vote. potentially influencing outcomes significantly.

In addition, under Additionally, our certificate of incorporation grants our Board of Directors has the authority to cause issue preferred stock at their discretion, without the need for
shareholder approval. This flexibility extends to the issuance of preferred stock from time to time in one or more series and to establish the terms, preferences, and rights of any
such series of preferred stock, all without approval of our shareholders. Nothing in our certificate of incorporation will preclude future issuances without shareholder approval of the
authorized but unissued shares of our common stock. These factors could have provisions can complicate and protract the effectprocess of making the replacement of replacing
incumbent directors more time consuming and difficult. directors.

These provisions may make measures collectively serve as deterrents, potentially making it difficult costly and expensive challenging for a third party to pursue initiate a tender offer,
execute a change in control, or attempt a takeover attempt that is opposed by faces opposition from JAB, our management, or our Board of Directors. Public shareholders who might
desire to participate interested in these types of participating in such transactions may not have an opportunity find it difficult to do so, even if the transaction is favorable to deal
would be beneficial for shareholders. These Ultimately, these anti-takeover provisions could substantially impede the significantly hinder public shareholders' ability of public
shareholders to benefitrealize benefits from a change in control or change alterations in our management and Board of Directors, and, as a result, may adversely affect potentially
impacting the market price of our common stock and your ability the opportunity to realize secure any potential change of control premium.

We have entered into Under the Investors’ Investors' Rights Agreement with JAB, that provides themthey have specific rights to access certain Company information, which JAB
mustis obligated to treat as confidential, including management’s confidential. This information includes management's monthly financial review reports, the consolidated financial
results for each fiscal quarter, and other information as JAB may reasonably request from time to time. As a result of requested by JAB. Given these rights and the representatives of
JAB who serve JAB's representation on our Board of Directors, JAB has greater enjoys privileged access to our management and earlier access to early insights into our financial
results than compared to our other investors. While Although JAB remains subjectmust adhere to applicable relevant U.S. securities laws regarding governing the trading of our
securities while in possession of material non-public information, it will nonetheless still have a better view as to more comprehensive understanding of our business and financial
condition than you individual shareholders for soas long as its information rights continue persist under the Investors’ Investors' Rights Agreement.

If the ownership of our common stock continues to be highly concentrated, it may prevent shareholders from influencing significant corporate decisions and may
result in conflicts of interest.

As of December 31, 2023, JAB beneficially owned held approximately 45% of our common stock through its affiliate, as of January 1, 2023. As a result, JAB can exercise conferring
upon it significant influence over all crucial matters requiring a shareholder vote, including: the election of directors; approval. This influence extends to decisions such as electing
directors, facilitating mergers,
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consolidations, and acquisitions; the saleacquisitions, disposing of all or substantially all of oursubstantial assets, and other decisions affectingshaping our capital
structure; structure. Additionally, JAB possesses the amendment of authority to amend our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws; bylaws, and influence our winding up and
dissolution. dissolution procedures.

This concentration level of concentrated ownership may delay, deter, could potentially lead to delays, deterrents, or prevent acts the prevention of actions that would may be favored
by our other shareholders. Thelt is important to note that JAB's interests of JAB may not always coincide align with our interests or the intereststhose of our other shareholders.
This broader shareholder base. Furthermore, this concentration of ownership may also have has the effect of delaying, preventing, potential to hinder or deterring discourage any
attempts at a change in control of us. our Company.
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The concentration of voting power could deprive you of analso impact shareholders by limiting the opportunity to receive a premium for your shares of their common stock as
partshares in the event of a sale of the sale of us and ultimately might Company, which, in turn, may affect the market price of our common stock. Also, JAB may might also seek to
cause push us to take courses of actionin directions that init deems beneficial for its judgment, own investment but could enhance its investment in us, but which might involve carry
risks to our for other shareholders or adversely affect us or negatively impact our other shareholders. Company and its stakeholders.

As a result, there is a possibility that the market price of our common stock could decline, or shareholders mightmay not receive a premium over above the then-current prevailing
market price in the event of our common stock upon a change in control. In addition, Furthermore, this concentration of share ownership may adversely affectmight be viewed
negatively by investors, potentially affecting the trading price of our common stock, because investorsas some may perceive disadvantagesdrawbacks in owning shares in a
company with heavily influenced by a few significant shareholders.

The market price of our common stock could be negatively affected by sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public markets.

JAB's JAB's affiliate may have possess the ability capability to sell the shares of the Company’s Company's common stock thatshares they hold intoto the public markets, in in
accordance withfollowing the requirements of stipulations outlined in Rule 144. The sale by JAB's affiliate of a substantial numbersale of our shares by JAB's affiliate, or a
perception thatthe mere anticipation of such sales, would occur, could significantly reduce potentially exert a significant downward pressure on the market price of our common
stock. A decline decrease in the price value of our common stock might impede could hinder our ability capacity to raise capital through the issuance of additional common stock or
other equity securities.

We may be unable to pay dividends on our common stock.

We intend plan to pay distribute cash dividends onto our common stock stockholders on a quarterly basis, subject to contingent upon the discretion of our Board of Directors and our
compliance with adherence to applicable law, and depending onregulations. The decision to declare dividends will be influenced by a range of factors, including our results of
operations, financial performance, capital requirements, financial condition, needs, business prospects, legal requirements, contractual restrictions, obligations, restrictions imposed
by applicable laws, and other factors thatrelevant considerations, all of which will be evaluated by our Board of Directors deems relevant. Our ability Directors.

Furthermore, our capacity to pay dividends may also be restricted constrained by the terms ofoutlined in our existing debt agreements or any future debt or preferred equity
securities. Our securities we may undertake. It is important to recognize that our dividend policy entails certain carries inherent risks and limitations, constraints, particularly with
respectregarding our available liquidity. When we opt to our liquidity. By paying distribute cash dividends rather than investing that cashinstead of reinvesting those funds in our
business or repaying any outstanding debt, we risk, among other things, slowing the expansion of our business, having insufficient cash to fund our operations or make capital
expenditures, repaying outstanding debts, we run the risk of impeding our business expansion, potentially facing liquidity challenges, or limiting our ability to incur borrowings.
secure additional financing.

Our Board of Directors will periodically review regularly assess the cash generated from our business operations and the capital expenditures required requirements necessary to
finance support our growth plans and determine whether strategies. Based on this evaluation, they may decide to modify the amount of regular dividends and/or declare any and
may also consider declaring periodic special dividends. There can be However, it is essential to note that there is no assurance guarantee that our Board of Directors will not
adjust make adjustments to the amounttiming or timing amount of regular cash dividends or cause us decide to cease paying dividends discontinue dividend payments altogether.

We have incurred significant indebtedness, which could adversely affect us, including decreasing our business flexibility and increasing our interest expense.

We have significant Our Company bears a substantial burden of indebtedness, which could adversely affect us, including decreasing carries potential adverse consequences, such
as constraining our operational flexibility and elevating our interest expenses. This indebtedness has the potential to limit the funds available for critical aspects of our business,
flexibility and increasing our interest expense. Our indebtedness could also reduce funds available forincluding working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, the
repaymentand fulfilling our obligation to repay or refinancing of our indebtedness as it becomes due, and refinance maturing debt, in addition to other general corporate purposes. It
may also create requirements. Furthermore, it places us at a competitive disadvantages for us disadvantage relative to other companies with lower debt levels. levels of debt. If our
financial performance does not meetfalls short of current expectations, servicing our ability to service our indebtedness may be adversely impacted. debt could become challenging.

We Additionally, there is the possibility that we may incur additional indebtedness, guarantees, commitments, or other liabilities in the future. We may The need to refinance all for
refinancing, in part or a portionin full, of our existing indebtedness on or before maturity. maturity is a distinct possibility. There is no assurance guarantee that we will be able to
refinance any of our indebtedness secure refinancing on favorable terms, orif at all. If Should our business does notfail to generate sufficient cash flow from operations or if we
encounter difficulty securing future debt or equity financings are not available to usfinancing on acceptable terms and in sufficient amounts sufficient to pay meet our
indebtedness debt obligations or to fundaddress other liquidity needs, requirements, our financial conditionhealth and operational results of operations may be adversely
affected. suffer.

Additionally, in assessing our credit strength, Moreover, credit rating agencies consider assess our creditworthiness by considering our capital structure, and financial policies, as well
as our results of operations financial position and financial position operating results at the time. If our credit ratings were to be downgraded because of changes in our capital
structure, changes in the credit rating agencies’ methodology in assessing our credit strength, the credit agencies’ perception of the impact of credit market conditions on our current
or future results of operations and financial position, or for any other reason, our cost of borrowing could increase. Furthermore, a significant A downgrade in our credit ratings could
limitoccur due to changes in our capital structure, shifts in the methodology used by credit rating agencies to evaluate our creditworthiness, their perceptions of credit market
conditions impacting our current or future financial position, or other factors. Such a downgrade could lead to increased borrowing costs. Furthermore, a significant credit rating
downgrade may reduce financial institution's institutions' willingness to participate in our accounts payable programvendor finance programs and reduce the diminish their
attractiveness of the accounts payable program to participating suppliers who may seek to sell payment obligations from us to financial institutions. In addition, Additionally, a
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significant credit rating downgrade inmight restrict our credit ratings may reduce business's flexibility of our business to engage in certain transactions, such asincluding the
execution and renewal of certain specific leases.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurity

We have processes in place for assessing, identifying, and managing material risks from potential unauthorized occurrences on or through our electronic information systems that
could adversely affect the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of our information systems or the information residing on those systems. These include a wide variety of
mechanisms, controls, technologies, methods, systems, and other processes that are designed to prevent, detect, or mitigate data loss, theft, misuse, unauthorized access, or other
security incidents or vulnerabilities affecting the data. The data include confidential, proprietary, and business and personal information that we collect, process, store, and transmit
as part of our business, including on behalf of third parties. We also maintain a third-party security program to identify, prioritize, assess, mitigate and remediate third-party risks;
however, we rely on the third parties we use to implement security programs commensurate with their risk, and we cannot ensure in all circumstances that their efforts will be
successful.

As part of our risk management process, we conduct application security assessments, vulnerability management, penetration testing, security audits, and ongoing risk
assessments. We also maintain a variety of incident response plans that are utilized when incidents are detected. Our incident response plans coordinate the activities that we and
our third-party cybersecurity provider take to prepare to respond and recover from cybersecurity incidents, which include processes to triage, assess severity, investigate, escalate,
contain, and remediate an incident, as well as to comply with potentially applicable legal obligations and mitigate brand and reputational damage. We require employees with access
to information systems, including all corporate employees, to undertake data protection and cybersecurity training and compliance programs periodically.

Our systems periodically experience directed attacks intended to lead to interruptions and delays in our operations as well as loss, misuse or theft of personal information (of third
parties, employees, and our members) and other data, confidential information, or intellectual property. Risk from cybersecurity threats, including relating to past incidents, have not
materially affected our systems or business. Any significant disruption to our operations or access to our systems could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
Further, a penetration of our systems or a third party’s systems or other misappropriation or misuse of personal information could subject us to business, regulatory, litigation, and
reputation risk, which could have a negative effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See "Risk Factors - Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Data Privacy,
and Information Technology.”

The Chief Information Officer (“ClO”) leads our global information security organization responsible for overseeing the Company'’s information security program. Our CIO has over
25 years of industry experience, including serving in similar roles leading and overseeing cybersecurity programs at other public companies. Team members who support our
information security program have relevant educational and industry experience, including holding similar positions at large technology companies. The teams provide regular
reports to senior management and other relevant teams on various cybersecurity threats, assessments, and findings.

Our cybersecurity risk management program is integrated into our overall enterprise risk management program and shares common methodologies, reporting channels, and
governance processes that apply across the enterprise risk management program to other legal, compliance, strategic, operational, and financial risk areas. The Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors oversees our annual enterprise risk assessment, where we assess key risks within the Company, including security and technology risks and cybersecurity
threats. The Audit Committee also oversees our cybersecurity risk and receives regular reports from our CIO on various cybersecurity matters, including risk assessments,
mitigation strategies, areas of emerging risks, incidents and industry trends, and other areas of importance.

Item 2. Properties

The material properties used by Krispy Kreme, Inc. in connection with its manufacturing, warehousing, distribution, and corporate administrative operations, serving all segments,
are as follows:

Approximate Size in Square

Location Feet Purpose Type
Winston-Salem, NC 107,000 Mix Production Plant and Distribution Owned Leased
Winston-Salem, NC 101,710 Equipment Manufacturing Facility Owned
Charlotte, NC 31,776 Corporate Administrative Leased

In the U.S., we operate four Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana, Monroe, Ohio, New York, New York, and Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, for our equity
markets, we operate 14 Doughnut Factories. Each Doughnut Factory manufactures daily to provide finished products to shops and to support our DFD routes. The majority of our
Doughnut Factories are leased.

Additionally, as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, Krispy Kreme, Inc. had 1,021 1,093 Company-owned shops globally, a majority of which are leased. We also lease space in
various locations globally for regional, district, and other administrative offices, training facilities, and storage.

Specific to the Branded Sweet Treat Line, we utilize two manufacturing, warehousing and distribution facilities, serving the U.S. and Canada segment. We utilize our leased
Concord, North Carolina production facility for manufacturing. In addition, at the end of fiscal 2022, we began to transition manufacturing capacity of Branded Sweet Treat Line
products to our mix plant in Winston-Salem, North Carolina (after exiting the co-manufacturer production facility located in Burlington, lowa). After manufacturing, packaging, and
palletizing our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, we transport the products to a third-party warehousing and distribution vendor. This vendor warehouses, consolidates, and
provides direct shipments to our retail partners’ supply networks.
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We believe our existing facilities, both owned and leased, are in good condition and suitable for the conduct of our business.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of conducting our business, we have in the past and may in the future become involved in various legal actions and other claims. We may also become
involved in other judicial, regulatory, and arbitration proceedings concerning matters arising in connection with the conduct of our businesses. Some of these matters may involve
claims of substantial amounts. These legal proceedings may be subject to many uncertainties and there can be no assurance of the outcome of any individual proceedings. See
Note 1415, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information regarding
certain legal proceedings in which we are involved.

Shareholder Derivative Suit

On December 3, 2021, a shareholder of the Company brought a shareholder class and derivative action complaint against the members of the Company’s Board of Directors, the
Company, JAB Holdings, and certain entities related to JAB Holdings (JAB Holdings and the related entities collectively, the “JAB Entities”). The plaintiff alleged that the members of
the Company’s Board breached their fiduciary duty by allowing the JAB Entities to conduct a creeping takeover of the Company and that the JAB Entities aided and abetted those
breaches. On October 31, 2022, the Company paid $0.2 million as its share of the full resolution of this matter, for which the related payment has been reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “DNUT” since our initial public offering on July 1, 2021. Prior to that time, there was no
public market for our common stock.

Holders

The approximate number of shareholders of record of our common stock as of February 17, 2023 February 15, 2024, was 217.213. This does not include persons whose stock is in
nominee or “street name” accounts through brokers.

Dividend Policy

For the fiscal quarters ending April 3, 2022 April 2, 2023, July 3, 2022 July 2, 2023, October 2, 2022 October 1, 2023, and January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, we paid quarterly
cash dividends on our common stock of $0.035 per share, which were paid in May 2022, 2023, August 2022, 2023, November 2022, 2023, and February 2023, 2024, respectively.
We expect to pay a dividend after the close of each quarter.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on many factors, including
economic conditions, our financial condition and operating results, our available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capital requirements, contractual, legal, tax and
regulatory restrictions, including restrictive covenants contained in certain of our subsidiaries’ credit facilities, and such other factors as our Board of Directors may deem relevant.
See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to an Investment in Us — We may be unable to pay dividends on our common stock.”

Under Delaware law, dividends may be payable only out of surplus, which is calculated as our net assets less our liabilities and our capital, or, if we have no surplus, out of our net
profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Shares under our ongoing share repurchase program may be repurchased in open market transactions, including pursuant to a trading plan adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-
1 of the Exchange Act, as amended, or through privately negotiated transactions. The timing, manner, price, and amount of repurchases will be determined at our discretion, and the
share repurchase program may be suspended, terminated or modified at any time for any reason. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, all outstanding shares remained
available for repurchase under current authorizations.

Performance Graph

The following graph depicts the total return to shareholders from the IPO on July 1, 2021 through our fiscal year end date of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, relative to the
performance of the Russell 2000 Index, the NASDAQ Composite Index, and the Standard & Poor’s Consumer Discretionary Sector. All indices shown in the graph have been reset
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to a base of 100 as of July 1, 2021 and
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assume an investment of $100 on that date and the reinvestment of dividends paid since that date. The stock price performance shown in the graph is not necessarily indicative of
future price performance.

#3027

July 1, January 2, January
2021 2022 1, 2023

July 1, 2021 July 1, 2021 January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023

Krispy Krispy
Kreme, Inc. Kreme, Inc. $100.00 $111.29 $60.71
Russell 2000 Russell 2000 100.00 96.39 75.61

NASDAQ  NASDAQ
Composite Composite 100.00 107.73 72.07

S&P S&P
Consumer  Consumer
Discretionary Discretionary 100.00 112.01 69.92

Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This section of the Annual Report on Form 10-K generally discusses fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022 items and year-to-
year comparisons of fiscal 2023 to fiscal 2022. Discussions of fiscal 2021 items and year-to-year comparisons of fiscal 2022 to fiscal 2021. Discussions of fiscal 2020 items and
year-to-year comparisons of fiscal 2021 and fiscal 20202021 are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and can be found in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023. This discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The words “believe,” “may,” “could,” “will,” “should,” “would,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “objective,” “seek,” “strive” or
similar words, or the negative of these words, identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and estimates that we
consider reasonable but are subject to various risks and uncertainties and assumptions relating to our operations, financial results, financial conditions, business, prospects, growth
strategy and liquidity. Accordingly, there are, or will be, important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements including,
without limitation, those described under the heading “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The inclusion of this forward-looking information should not be regarded as
a representation by us that the future plans, estimates or expectations contemplated by us will be achieved. Our actual results could differ materially from the forward-looking
statements included herein. These forward-looking statements are made only as of the date of this document, and we do not undertake any obligation, other than as may be
required by applicable law, to update or revise any forward-looking or cautionary statement to reflect changes in assumptions, the occurrence of events, unanticipated or otherwise,
or changes in future operating results over time or otherwise.

General

Krispy Kreme is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. OurKrispy Kreme operates in 39 countries with our transformational omni-channel
strategy, which focuses on delivering fresh doughnuts such as our iconic Original Glazed doughnut, which is universally recognized for its hot-off-the-line, melt-in-your-mouth
experience. Krispy Kreme operates in over 30 countries through its experience, to where our consumers are located and want to have access to them. Global Points of Access are a
key metric and we define them as our unique network of fresh Doughnut Shops, partnerships with leading retailers (DFD Doors), and a rapidly growing Ecommerce and delivery
business. Our purpose of touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is Krispy Kreme guides how we operate every day and is reflected in the love we have for our people,
our communities, and the planet.

We operate and report financial information on a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31. Fiscal year 2023 reflects our results of operations for the
52-week period ended December 31, 2023. Fiscal year 2022 reflects our results of operations for the 52-week period ended January 1, 2023. Fiscal year 2021 reflects our results of
operations for the 52-week period ended January 2, 2022.

We conduct our business through the following three reported segments:

. U.S. and Canada:: Includes all our Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada,, including our Krispy Kreme Kreme-branded shops and Insomnia Cookies-
branded shops, Cookies Bakeries, DFD, and our the recently exited Branded Sweet Treat Line; Treats business;

. International International:: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand and Mexico; and
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. Market Development Development:: Includes franchise operations across the globe, as well as the Company-owned operations in Japan. Japan and Canada.

The following table presents a summary of our financial results for the periods presented:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in th except per January 1, 2023 (52 weeks) January 2, 2022 (52 weeks) % Change

Total Net Revenues (1) $ 1,529,898 $ 1,384,391 10.5 %
Net Loss (8,775) (14,843) 40.9 %
Adjusted Net Income (2) 56,975 66,723 -14.6 %
Adjusted EBITDA (o 190,729 187,945 15%

Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2023 (52

(in th except per ) weeks) January 1, 2023 (52 weeks) % Change

Net Revenues q $ 1,686,104 $ 1,529,898 10.2 %
Net Loss Attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc. (37,925) (15,622) -142.8 %
Adjusted Net Income, Diluted ¢ 46,182 49,611 -6.9 %
Adjusted EBITDA ¢ 211,624 190,729 11.0 %

@ We generated 12.1% 12.2% and 12.5% 12.1% organic revenue growth in fiscal 2022 2023 and fiscal 2021, 2022, respectively.

o)) Refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” below for more information as to how we define and calculate Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income,

Diluted and for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income, Diluted to net loss, the most comparable GAAP measure.
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Significant Events and Transactions
Executing on our Transformation Omni-Channel Strategy

We made strong progress on the execution of our omni-channel strategy in fiscal 2022, where 2023, as we focus on being able to deliver fresh doughnuts and cookies to where our
consumers are located. We continued continue to add quality Global Points of Access across our network as we and convert markets into fully implemented Hub and Spoke models
including (refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” below for more information as to how we define the Hub and Spoke model). We added a net total of
1,4102,310 new Global Points of Access in fiscal 20222023 to surpass 11,800 reach 14,147 Global Points of Access. The primary driver of the increased Points of Access during
the year was the continued expansion of our low capital DFD network in alignment with our transformation strategy, as we added 1,2732,068 DFD Doors globally, including
537 1,079 DFD Doors to the U.S. and Canada segment, 544 661 to the International segment, and 192 328 to the Market Development segment. As highlighted by The increase in
DFD Doors is the more developed model within result of our focus on executing our omni-channel strategy to drive our transformation, and includes expansion with key customers
during the International segment, the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke distribution model increases accessibility to our consumers and drives higher profitability and increased
margins. year. We expect DFD growth to continue to be one of our most significant drivers of earnings growth, through both increased door count and growth in average revenue per
door per week (“APD”), which rose by 9.9% 10.2% in the U.S. and Canada in fiscal 2022 2023 compared to fiscal 2021.

2022. The increase in Points of Access and the strong growth in APD in the U.S. and Canada allowed led to our trailing four quarters Sales per Hub to increase 15.0% increasing by
8.9% from $4.0 million $4.5 million in fiscal 2021 2022 to a record high $4.6 million $4.9 million in fiscal 2022. Our trailing four quarters International Sales per Hub also increased by
7.7% from $9.1 million to $9.8 million for the same periods. 2023. The increase in our Sales per Hub domestically and internationally led contributed to 10.5% net revenue growth
and 12.1% U.S. segment organic revenue growth of 12.6% and Adjusted EBITDA margin expansion of 80 basis points to 11.9% in fiscal 2022. 2023. Our goal is to continue to grow
our Sales per Hub over time, which we believe will drive higher margins and higher return on invested capital.

In addition to grocery and convenience stores, we have are also begun to look strategically attesting additional DFD channels such as Quick Service Restaurant (“QSR”), QSR, club
membership, and drug stores to further broaden availability of our doughnuts to consumers. At the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022, As previously announced, we
announced launched a partnership with McDonald’s on a small-scale test to offer doughnuts at McDonald's restaurants in Louisville, Kentucky and the surrounding area, which
began October 26, 2022.in October 2022. While nothing has been finalized, we are in advanced discussions about expanding the collaboration and are making investments in the
U.S. that reflect our confidence in further scaling our DFD network. We have also recently begun smallsmall-scale tests with other customers such as Costco and Target.in
international markets. We continue to look for new ways to increase access to fresh doughnuts through our DFD network — a key element of our omni-channel strategy to attain
more than 75,000 Global Points of Access.
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During fiscal 2022, the macroeconomic environment has continued to be challenging with supply chain disruption, inflationary pressures in commodities and labor
costs, and inflationary pressures on consumer demand. These effects have been felt most heavily by our KKUK business. To protect margins, we increased prices
globally throughout the year. At the same time, we reduced the level of discounting beginning late in the third quarter of fiscal 2022, seeing a beneficial impact on
adjusted EBITDA margins in the fourth quarter.

Additionally, during fiscal 2022, we continued to progress on portfolio optimization efforts for our legacy Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada business, with a focus on our Hubs without
Spokes and overall efficiencies. Some of this optimization includes converting shop types to better leverage labor costs and to better facilitate the expansion of DFD, reviewing the
overall cost structure, and other actions. We believe this will enable us to focus even more on capital-efficient expansion in key strategic markets and to improve overall margins. As
part of these efforts, we decided to exit additional Doughnut Shops in the U.S. during the second half of fiscal 2022. We will continue to assess the Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada
portfolio and business lines heading into fiscal 2023.
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Increasing Growing Our Global Presence

Another of our key strategic initiatives is initiative on our journey to increase our global presence as we become the Most Loved Sweet Treat Brand in the World. We continue World
is to grow increase our global presence, focusing on the percentage of our revenues and Adjusted EBITDA generated outside the U.S. We expect met our goal to open establish the
Krispy Kreme brand in at least three five new countries a year, with a key focus in Western fiscal 2023, which included our first expansion to continental Europe and select Asian and
South American countries. We have signed central Asia. In total, we opened shops in seven new franchise agreements with plans to open Krispy Kreme-branded shops in countries:
Chile, Costa Rica, Switzerland, Ecuador, France, Jamaica, and Kazakhstan, and we Switzerland. In addition, the Insomnia Cookies brand expanded outside of the U.S. for the first
time, with Cookie Bakery openings in Canada and the U.K. during the year. We expect to have further announcements in fiscal 20232024 as we grow our global business. In fiscal
2022, we also signed a new agreement for 33% equity ownership of Krispy Kreme development rights in France, with shop openings expected in the future.

Ecommerce, Brand, and Innovation

Ecommerce represented 18.0% 19.3% of our Doughnut and Cookie Shop Bakery sales (excluding DFD) for fiscal 2022, 2023, up from less than 10% pre-COVID-19 pandemic 18.0%
for fiscal 2022, and 17.2% for fiscal 2021. We are also expanding continue to expand the delivery radius in several key markets around the world through partnerships with third-
party aggregators.

Innovation is a significant driver of frequency as we create and introduce premium fresh and buzz-worthy offerings to consumers across our Global Points of Access. High profile
initiatives during During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 included holiday 2023 we delivered the joy that is Krispy Kreme through powerful specialty doughnuts and seasonal
activations such asincluding Halloween, Thanksgiving, and Christmas among many others around the world.

le.Christmas Around the Globe.jpg

Exiting the Branded Sweet Treats Business

During the first quarter of fiscal 2023, we decided to exit our pre-packaged Branded Sweet Treats business due in part to its dilutive impact on profit margins, as well as to allow us
to focus on our fresh doughnuts business. In fiscal 2022, the Branded Sweet Treats business generated approximately $36 million revenues and had a dilutive impact on Adjusted
EBITDA margins. As a result, we discontinued production at our Concord, North Carolina and Winston-Salem, North Carolina manufacturing facilities. As such, we recognized non-
recurring expenses, including property, plant and equipment impairments, inventory write-offs, employee severance, and other related costs, totaling approximately $17.9 million
(gross of income taxes) in fiscal 2023.

Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures

We monitor the key business metrics and non-GAAP metrics set forth below to help us evaluate our business and growth trends, establish budgets, measure the effectiveness of
our sales and marketing efforts, and assess operational efficiencies. The calculation of the key business metrics discussed below may differ from other similarly titled metrics used
by other companies, securities analysts, or investors.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we utilize “Global Points of Access” as a key performance indicator. Global Points of Access reflect all locations at which fresh
doughnuts or cookies can be purchased. We define Global Points of Access to include all Hot Light Theater Shops, Fresh Shops, Carts and Food Trucks, DFD Doors, Cookie
Shops, Bakeries, and other defined points at both Company-owned and franchise locations as of the end of the respective reporting period. We monitor Global Points of Access as a
metric that informs the growth of our omni-channel presence over time and believe this metric is useful to investors to understand our footprint in each of our segments and by asset
type.
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The following table presents our Global Points of Access, by segment and type, as of the end of fiscal 2022, 2023, fiscal 2021, 2022, and fiscal 2020: 2021:

Global Points of Access (1)

Fiscal Years Ended
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January January January 3,

1,2023  2,2022 2021

U.S. and Canada:

Global Points of Access @) Global Points of Access (1
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

U.S.: %]
Hot Light Theater Shops
Hot Light Theater Shops

Hot Light Hot Light

Theater Shops  Theater Shops 238 241 229
Fresh Fresh

Shops Shops 68 66 47
Cookie Shops 231 210 184
Cookie
Bakeries
Carts, Food Carts, Food
Trucks, and Trucks, and
Other @ Other @ — 2 —
DFD Doors 5,741 5,204 4,137
DFD Doors
®)

Total Total 6,278 5,723 4,597

International:  International:
Hot Light Theater Shops
Hot Light Theater Shops

Hot Light Hot Light
Theater Shops  Theater Shops 37 32 28
Fresh Fresh
Shops Shops 388 370 359
Carts, Food Carts, Food
Trucks, and Trucks, and
Other @ Other 14 1 —
DFD Doors DFD Doors 3,032 2,488 1,986
Total Total 3,471 2,891 2,373
Market Market

Development:  Development:
@ @
Hot Light Theater Shops. 111 109 119
Hot Light Theater Shops
Hot Light Theater Shops
Hot Light Theater Shops

Fresh Fresh

Shops Shops 867 782 732
Cookie
Bakeries Cookie Bakeries 2 —
Carts, Food Carts, Food
Trucks, and Trucks, and
Other Other @ 27 31 30
DFD Doors DFD Doors 1,083 891 465

Total Total 2,088 1,813 1,346
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Total Global Total Global

Points of Points of

Access (as Access (as

defined) defined) 11,837 10,427 8,316
Total Hot Light ~ Total Hot Light

Theater Shops  Theater Shops 386 382 376
Total Fresh Total Fresh

Shops Shops 1,323 1,218 1,138
Total Cookie Shops 231 210 184
Total Cookie

Bakeries

Total Shops Total Shops 1,940 1,810 1,698
Total Carts, Total Carts,

Food Trucks, Food Trucks,

and Other and Other 41 34 30

Total DFD Doors Total DFD Doors 9,856 8,583 6,588
Total Global Total Global

Points of Points of
Access (as Access (as
defined) defined) 11,837 10,427 8,316

(1) Excludes the recently exited Branded Sweet Treat Line Treats distribution points.

@ Includes Points of Access that were acquired from franchisees in the U.S. and Canada. These Points of Access were previously included in the Market Development segment
prior to the respective acquisition dates. See Note 2, Acquisitions, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

3 Carts and Food Trucks are non-producing, mobile (typically on wheels) facilities without walls or a door where product is received from a Hot Light Theater Shop or Doughnut
Factory. Other includes a vending machine. Points of Access in this category are primarily found in international locations in airports, train stations, etc.

() Includes locations in Japan and Canada, which are Company-owned. All remaining Points of Access in the Market Development segment relate to our franchise business. As
of December 31, 2023, there were five Hot Light Theater Shops, 61 Fresh Shops, and 241 DFD Doors operating in Japan and four Hot Light Theater Shops, nine Fresh
Shops, and 43 DFD Doors operating in Canada. As of January 1, 2023, there were five Hot Light Theater Shops, 54 Fresh Shops, and 166 DFD Doors operating in Japan
operating. As of January 2, 2022, there were and four Hot Light Theater Shops, 48 six Fresh Shops, and 105 12 DFD Doors operating in Japan operating. Canada.

(5) Includes over 160 McDonald's test shops located in Louisville and Lexington, Kentucky and the surrounding area as of December 31, 2023.
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As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, we had 11,837 14,147 Global Points of Access, with 1,9402,177 Krispy Kreme and Insomnia Cookies-branded Cookies branded shops,
4146 Carts and Food Trucks, and 9,856 11,924 DFD Doors. During fiscal 2022,2023, we added a net 1,4102,310 Global Points of Access, with a net 130237 additional shops
globally, including four three Hot Light Theater Shops, 105198 Fresh Shops, and 2136 Insomnia Cookie Shops. Bakeries. Hot Light Theater Shop openings during the year included
expansion in Staten Island, New York Atlanta, Georgia, Mayfield Heights, Ohio, and Indianapolis, Indiana Temecula, California for the U.S. segment, and Canada segment, Dublin,
Ireland Torre6n, Mexico and Queretaro, Chihuahua, Mexico for the International segment, and Amman, Jordan for segment. We also continued to grow our international presence as
we expanded into seven new countries in the Market Development segment: Chile, Costa Rica, Ecuador, France, Jamaica, Kazakhstan, and Switzerland. In addition, the Insomnia
Cookies brand expanded outside of the U.S. for the first time, with Cookie Bakery openings in Canada and the U.K. during the year. The growth for the U.S. segment which
represents our first franchise shop in Jordan. These additions were was offset some by the strategic exit of certain Hot Light Theater Shops in connection with our shop optimization
program centered on Hubs without Spokes.

We added a net 2,068 new DFD Doors during the U.S. discussed in “Significant Events fiscal year as we continue to focus on the expansion of our Hub and Transactions.” Spoke
model and our expansion into QSR channels. We plan to continue adding new locations and expanding our Ecommerce and delivery platform in order to extend the availability of
and access to our products. We are excited about our continued collaboration with McDonald'’s, which we believe has validated the attractiveness of the QSR channel. While
nothing has been finalized, we are in advanced discussions about expanding the collaboration and are making investments in the U.S. that reflect our confidence in further scaling
our DFD network.

We also utilize “Hubs” as a key performance indicator. Our transformation is driven by the implementation of an omni-channel strategy to reach more consumers where they are and
drive revenue growth, and this strategy is supported by a capital-efficient Hub and Spoke distribution model that provides a route to market and powers profitability. Our Hot Light
Theater Shops and Doughnut Factories serve as centralized production facilities (“Hubs”). From these Hubs, we deliver doughnuts to our Fresh Shops, Carts and Food Trucks, and
DFD Doors (“Spokes”) primarily through an integrated network of Company-operated delivery routes, ensuring quality and freshness. Specific to the U.S. and Canada segment,
certain legacy Hubs have not historically had Spokes. Many Hubs in the U.S. and Canada segment are being converted to add Spokes while certain legacy Hubs will never have the
ability or need to add Spokes.

The following table presents our Hubs, by segment and type, as of the end of fiscal 2023, fiscal 2022, and fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020, respectively:

Hubs
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Fiscal Years Ended

January January January

1,2023 2,2022 3,2021

U.S. and Canada:

Hubs Hubs
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

UsS.:
Hot Light Theater Shops «
Hot Light Theater Shops

Hot Light Hot Light

Theater Theater

Shops o Shops o 232 238 226

Doughnut Doughnut

Factories Factories 4 4 &)

Total Total 236 242 231

Hubs with Hubs with

Spokes Spokes 137 126 113

Hubs Hubs

without without

Spokes Spokes 99 116 118
International: International:

Hot Light Hot Light

Theater Theater

Shops o Shops @ 28 25 27

Hot Light Theater Shops o
Hot Light Theater Shops o

Doughnut Doughnut
Factories Factories 11 11 9
Total Total 39 36 36

Hubs with Hubs with

Spokes Spokes 39 36 36
Market Market
Development: Development:

Hot Light Hot Light

Theater Theater

Shops @ Shops @ 106 106 116

Hot Light Theater Shops o
Hot Light Theater Shops o

Doughnut Doughnut
Factories Factories 27 27 26
Total Total 133 133 142
Total Hubs  Total Hubs 408 411 409

(1) Includes only Hot Light Theater Shops and excludes Mini Theaters. A Mini Theater is a Spoke location that produces some doughnuts for itself and also receives doughnuts
from another producing location.

Non-GAAP Measures

We report our financial results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S. (“GAAP”); however, management evaluates our results of operations using,
among other measures, organic revenue growth, adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”), and Adjusted Net Income, Diluted as
we believe these non-GAAP measures are useful in evaluating our operating performance.
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These non-GAAP financial measures are not universally consistent calculations, limiting their usefulness as comparative measures. Other companies may calculate similarly titled
financial measures differently than we do or may not calculate them at all. Additionally, these non-GAAP financial measures are not measurements of financial performance under
GAAP. In order to facilitate a clear understanding of our consolidated historical operating results, you should examine our non-GAAP financial
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measures in conjunction with our historical audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Organic Revenue Growth

Organic revenue growth measures our revenue growth trends excluding the impact of acquisitions and foreign currency, and we believe it is useful for investors to understand the
expansion of our global footprint through internal efforts. We define “organic revenue growth” as the growth in revenues, excluding (i) acquired shops owned by us for less than 12
months following their acquisition, (ii) the impact of foreign currency exchange rate changes, (iii) the impact of shop closures related to restructuring programs such as the shop
portfolio optimization program initiated for Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada during fiscal 2022, and (iv) the impact of the Branded Sweat Treats business exit, and (v) revenues
generated during the 53 week for those fiscal years that have a 53¢ week based on our fiscal calendar defined in the “Overview” section. See “Results of Operations” for our
organic growth calculations for the periods presented.

Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS

We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as earnings before interest expense, net, (including interest payable to related parties), income tax expense/(benefit), expense, and depreciation and
amortization, with further adjustments for share-based compensation, certain strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, and other certain non-recurring, infrequent or
non-core income and expense items. Adjusted EBITDA enablesis a principal metric that management uses to monitor and evaluate operating performance to be reviewed and
provides a consistent benchmark for comparison across reporting periods on a consistent basis and is one of the principal measures used by management to evaluate and monitor
our operating performance. periods.

We define “Adjusted Net Income” Income, Diluted” as net loss attributable to common shareholders, adjusted for interest expense, — related party, share-based compensation,
certain strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, amortization of acquisition-related intangibles, the tax impact of adjustments, and other certain non-recurring,
infrequent or non-core income and expense items. “Adjusted EPS” is Adjusted Net Income, Diluted converted to a per share amount.

Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjust Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS have certain limitations, including adjustments for income and expense items that are required by
GAAP. In evaluating these non-GAAP measures, you should be aware that in the future we will incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in this
presentation, such as share-based compensation. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS should not be construed to imply
that our future results will be unaffected by any such adjustments. Management compensates for these limitations by relying on our GAAP results in addition to using Adjusted
EBITDA, and Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS supplementally.

The following tables present a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA and net loss to Adjusted Net Income, Diluted and Adjusted EPS for the periods presented:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands) January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
Net loss $ (8,775) $ (14,843) $ (60,940)
Interest expense, net 34,102 32,622 34,741
Interest expense — related party () — 10,387 22,468
Income tax expense 612 10,745 9,112
Depreciation and amortization expense 110,261 101,608 80,398
Share-based compensation 18,170 22,923 11,601
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation 312 2,044 —
Other non-operating expense/(income), net () 3,036 2,191 (1,101)
New York City flagship Hot Light Theater Shop opening @3 = = 6,513
Strategic initiatives () 2,841 — 20,517
Acquisition and integration expenses () 2,333 5,255 12,679
New market penetration expenses (6) 1,511 — —
Shop closure expenses (7) 19,465 2,766 6,269
Restructuring and severance expenses (s 7,125 1,733 —
IPO-related expenses (9 — 14,534 3,184
Gain on sale-leaseback (6,549) (8,673) —
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Other (10)

Adjusted EBITDA

(in thousands)
Net loss
Interest expense, net
Interest expense — related party
Income tax (benefit)/expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Share-based compensation
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation
Other non-operating expense, net @
Strategic initiatives @
Acquisition and integration expenses
New market penetration expenses
Shop closure expenses )
Restructuring and severance expenses
IPO-related expenses @
Gain on sale-leaseback

Other

Adjusted EBITDA
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(in thousands)
Net loss
Interest expense — related party ()
Share-based compensation
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation
Other non-operating expense/(income), net ()
New York City flagship Hot Light Theater Shop opening @)
Strategic initiatives (4)
Acquisition and integration expenses ()
New market penetration expenses ()
Shop closure expenses (7)
Restructuring and severance expenses (s
IPO-related expenses (9
Gain on sale-leaseback
Other (o)
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles (1)
KKI Term Loan Facility interest and debt issuance costs (12)
Tax impact of adjustments (13)

Tax specific adjustments (14)

Adjusted net income

6,285 4,653 )
190,729 187,945 145,434
Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022
(36,647) (8,775) $ (14,843)
50,341 34,102 32,622
= = 10,387
(4,347) 612 10,745
125,894 110,261 101,608
24,196 18,170 22,923
395 312 2,044
3,798 3,036 2,191
29,057 2,841 =
511 2,333 5,255
1,380 1,511 =
17,335 19,465 2,766
5,050 7,125 1,733
= = 14,534
(9,646) (6,549) (8,673)
4,307 6,285 4,653
211,624 190,729 187,945
Fiscal Years Ended
January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
(8,775) (14,843) $ (60,940)
— 10,387 22,468
18,170 22,923 11,601
312 2,044 =
3,036 2,191 (1,101)
= = 6,513
2,841 = 20,517
2,333 5,255 12,679
1,511 — —
19,715 2,766 6,269
7,125 1,733 =
= 14,534 3,184
(6,549) (8,673) —
6,285 4,653 7)
28,456 29,803 26,328
= 2,448 =
(14,609) (12,434) (27,629)
(2,876) 3,936 22,464
56,975 $ 66,723 $ 42,346
35/265
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, 2023

January 1, 2023

January 2, 2022

Net loss (36,647) $ (8,775) $ (14,843)
Interest expense — related party — — 10,387
Share-based compensation 24,196 18,170 22,923
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation 395 312 2,044
Other non-operating expense, net ¢ 3,798 3,036 2,191
Strategic initiatives @ 29,057 2,841 —
Acquisition and integration expenses « 511 2,333 5,255
New market penetration expenses @ 1,380 1,511 —
Shop closure expenses ) 17,335 19,715 2,766
Restructuring and severance expenses ) 5,050 7,125 1,733
IPO-related expenses — — 14,534
Gain on sale-leaseback (9,646) (6,549) (8,673)
Other @ 4,307 6,285 4,653
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles ao 29,373 28,456 29,803
KKI Term Loan Facility interest and debt issuance costs ay — — 2,448
Loss on extinguishment of 2019 Facility 2 472 — —
Tax impact of adjustments a3 (20,729) (14,609) (12,434)
Tax specific adjustments s (1,364) (2,876) 3,936
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (1,278) (6,847) (9,663)
Adjustment to adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders — (374) (1,468)
Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders - Basic 46,210 $ 49,754 $ 55,592

Additional income attributed to noncontrolling interest due to subsidiary potential

common shares (28) (143) (122)
Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders - Diluted 46,182 $ 49,611 $ 55,470
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 168,289 167,471 147,655

Dilutive effect of outstanding common stock options, RSUs, and PSUs 2,204 2,005 2,674
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 170,493 169,476 150,329
Adjusted net income per share attributable to common shareholders:

Basic $ 027 $ 030 $ 0.38

Diluted $ 027 $ 029 $ 0.37

1)
@
(©)

@

Consists of interest expense related to the Related Party Notes which were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021.

Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period.

Consists Fiscal 2023 consists primarily of pre-opening costs associated with global transformation and U.S. initiatives such as the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats
business, including property, plant and equipment impairments, inventory write-offs, employee severance, and other related to our New York City flagship Hot Light Theater
Shop opening, including shop design, rent, and additional consulting and training costs incurred and reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses.

(approximately $17.9 million of the total). Fiscal 2022 consists mainly of equipment disposals, equipment relocation and installation, consulting and advisory fees, and other
costs associated with our shift of Branded Sweet Treat Line Treats manufacturing capability from Burlington, lowa to Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Fiscal 2020 consists mainly
of consulting and advisory fees, personnel transition costs, and network conversion and set-up costs related to the evolution of the Company’s legacy wholesale business in the
u.s.

G @ Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise acquisitions, including legal, due diligence, consulting and

O]

advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition-related acquisition and integration-related activities for the applicable period.

() Consists of start-up costs associated with entry into new countries for which the Company’s brands have not previously operated, including the Insomnia Cookies brand

entering Canada and the U.K.

@® IncludesFiscal 2023 includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment. Shop closure equipment, primarily

associated with strategic shop exits, primarily in the U.S. (approximately $16.0 million of the total). Fiscal 2022 includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment, primarily
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associated with strategic shop exits. Fiscal 2022 expenses included in Adjusted Net Income for fiscal 2022 are also inclusive of accelerated depreciation related to replacing a
point of sale system.

® Fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022 consists consist primarily of costs associated with restructuring of the global and U.S. executive teams. team. Fiscal 2021 consists of severance
and related benefits costs associated with the Company’s realignment of the Company Shop organizational structure to better support the DFD and Branded Sweet Treat
Line Treats businesses.

©@@® Includes consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with preparation for and execution of the Company'’s IPO.

@oy9) Fiscal 2023, fiscal 2022, and fiscal 2021 consist primarily of legal and other regulatory expenses incurred outside the ordinary course of business on matters described in
Note 1415, Commitments and Contingencies, to the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements, including the net settlement of approximately $3.3 million
negotiated with TSW Foods, LLC in fiscal 2022. Fiscal 2020 consists primarily of fixed asset and impairment expenses, net of a gain on the sale of land, as well as $1.2 million
of management fees paid to JAB.

@y o Consists of amortization related to acquired intangible assets as reflected within depreciation and amortization in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

@@y Includes interest expense and debt issuance costs incurred and recognized as expenses in connection with the extinguishment of the KKI Term Loan Facility within four
business days of receipt of the net proceeds from the IPO.

@2 Includes interest expenses related to unamortized debt issuance costs from the 2019 Facility associated with extinguished lenders as a result of the March 2023 debt
refinancing described in Note 8, Long-Term Debt to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

a3 Tax impact of adjustments calculated applying the applicable statutory rates. The Company’s adjusted effective tax rate is 24.1%27.2%, 22.4% 24.1%, and 25.2% 22.4% for
each of the fiscal years 2023, 2022, and 2021, and 2020, respectively. Fiscal 2023 also includes the impact of disallowed executive compensation expense. Fiscal 2022
includes the impact
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of disallowed executive compensation expense and a discrete tax benefit related to a legal accrual. Fiscal 2021 includes the impact of disallowed executive compensation
expense incurred in connection with the IPO.

a4 Fiscal 2023 consists of the recognition of a previously unrecognized tax benefit unrelated to ongoing operations, the effect of tax law changes on existing temporary differences,
and a discrete tax benefit unrelated to ongoing operations. Fiscal 2022 consists of the recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefits unrelated to ongoing operations, as
well as benefits attributable to multiple tax years due to lapse of the statute of limitations. Fiscal 2022 also includes the effect of discrete adjustments to the Company’s deferred
tax liabilities that are unrelated to the Company’s ongoing operations. Fiscal 2021 consists primarily of the effect of tax law changes on existing temporary differences. Fiscal
2020 includes a valuation allowance of $20.5 million associated with tax attributes primarily attributable to incremental costs removed from the calculation of Adjusted Net
Income.

Sales Per Hub

In order to measure the effectiveness of our Hub and Spoke model, we use “Sales per Hub” on a trailing four-quarter basis, which includes all revenue generated from a Hub and its
associated Spokes. Sales per Hub equals Fresh Revenues from Hubs with Spokes, divided by the average number of Hubs with Spokes during the period. Fresh Revenues include
product sales generated from our Doughnut Shop business (including Ecommerce and delivery), as well as DFD sales, but excluding sales from our legacy wholesale business and
our Branded Sweet Treat Line. It also excludes all Insomnia Cookies revenues as the measure is focused on the Krispy Kreme business. The Average Hub with Spokes for a period
is calculated as the average of the number of Hubs with Spokes at the end of the five most recent quarters. The Sales per Hub performance measure allows us and investors to
measure our effectiveness at leveraging the Hubs in the Hub and Spoke model to distribute product and generate cost efficiencies and profitability.

Sales per Hub was as follows for each of the periods below:
Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands,  (in thousands,

unless unless January 1, January 2, January 3,
otherwise otherwise 2023 (52 2022 (52 2021 (53
stated) stated) weeks) weeks) weeks) (in thousands, unless otherwise stated) December 31, 2023 (52 weeks) January 1, 2023 (52 weeks) January 2, 2022 (52 weeks)
U.S. and Canada:
Us.:
Revenues
Revenues

Revenues Revenues $1,033,125 $928,413 $782,717

Non-Fresh Non-Fresh
Revenues 1) Revenues (1) (38,380) (37,311) (128,619)
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Fresh Fresh

Revenues Revenues

from from

Insomnia Insomnia

Cookies and = Cookies and

Hubs without' Hubs without

Spokes (2) Spokes (2) (407,558) (415,768) (323,079)
Sales from Sales from
Hubs with Hubs with
Spokes Spokes 587,187 475,334 331,019
Sales per Sales per
Hub Hub
(millions) (millions) 4.6 4.0 3.5

International: International:

International:

International:

Sales from Sales from

Hubs with Hubs with

Spokes () Spokes (3 $ 365,916 $332,995 $230,185
Sales per Hub (millions) 9.8 9.1 6.4
Sales from Hubs with

Spokes @

Sales from Hubs with

Spokes @

Sales per

Hub

(millions) «

@ Includes legacy wholesale business revenues and the exited Branded Sweet Treat Line Treats business revenues.

@ Includes Insomnia Cookies revenues and Fresh Revenues generated by Hubs without Spokes.

@ Total International net revenues is equal to Fresh Revenues from Hubs with Spokes for that business segment.

@ International sales per Hub comparative data has been restated in constant currency based on current exchange rates.

In our International segment, where the Hub and Spoke model is most developed, originated, Sales per Hub reached $9.8 was $10.0 million, up slightly down from $9.1 $10.1 million
in the full fiscal year 2021, 2022, and also up from $6.4 $8.7 million in the full fiscal year 2020.2021. The International segment illustrates the benefits of leveraging our Hub and
Spoke model inas the most efficient way to grow the business, as shown by the International segment’s quick recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic consistent
Sales per Hub and growth in profit margins. sequential adjusted EBITDA margin improvement despite elevated commodity costs and macroeconomic conditions. In the U.S. and
Canada, segment, we reached had Sales per Hub of $4.6 $4.9 million, up from $4.5 million in the full fiscal year 2022 and up from $4.0 million in the full fiscal year 2021 and up from
$3.5 million in the fiscal year 2020.2021. U.S. and Canada growth was driven by our efforts to increase the number of DFD Doors served by our Hubs and to increase APD for the
DFD Door portfolio, as the segment makes progress toward optimizing the model to look more like the our International segment. As we further extend the Hub and Spoke model

into existing and new markets around the world, we expect to see this measure continue to grow.
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Results of Operations

The following comparisons are historical results and are not indicative of future results which could differ materially from the historical financial information presented.

Fiscal Year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 compared to the Fiscal Year ended January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023

The following table presents our audited consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2022 2023 and fiscal 2021: 2022:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2,
2023 (52 weeks) 2022 (52 weeks) Change
(in except per Amount % of Revenue Amount % of Revenue $ %
Net revenues
Product sales $ 1,497,882 97.9% $ 1,353,466 97.8% $ 144,416 10.7 %
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Royalties and other revenues

Total net revenues

Product and distribution costs
Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expense
Marketing expenses

Pre-opening costs

Other expenses/(income), net
Depreciation and amortization expense
Operating income

Interest expense, net

Interest expense — related party

Other non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net loss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc.

32,016 21% 30,925 2.2 % 1,091 3.5 %
1,529,898 100.0 % 1,384,391 100.0 % 145,507 10.5 %
406,227 26.6 % 354,093 25.6 % 52,134 14.7 %
704,287 46.0 % 630,239 455 % 74,048 11.7 %
223,198 14.6 % 222,394 16.1 % 804 0.4 %

42,566 2.8 % 39,489 2.9 % 3,077 7.8 %

4,227 0.3 % 5,568 0.4 % (1,341) 241 %

10,157 0.7 % (10,102) 0.7 % 20,259 200.5 %

110,261 72 % 101,608 7.3 % 8,653 8.5 %

28,975 1.9 % 41,102 3.0% (12,127) -29.5 %

34,102 22 % 32,622 2.4 % 1,480 45%

= — % 10,387 0.8 % (10,387) -100.0 %

3,036 0.2 % 2,191 0.2 % 845 38.6 %

(8,163) 0.5 % (4,098) 0.3 % (4,065) -99.2 %

612 — % 10,745 0.8 % (10,133) -94.3 %

(8,775) 0.6 % (14,843) 11 % 6,068 40.9 %

6,847 0.4 % 9,663 0.7 % (2,816) 29.1 %

$ (15,622) 1.0% $ (24,506) 18% $ 8,884 36.3 %

Product sales: Product sales increased $144.4 million, or 10.7%, from fiscal 2021 to fiscal 2022. Approximately $20.3 million of the increase in product sales was attributable to
shops acquired from franchisees. However, product sales growth was partially offset by $37.3 million attributable to foreign currencies weakening against the U.S. dollar.

(in except per

Net revenues

Product sales

Royalties and other revenues

Total net revenues

Product and distribution costs
Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expense
Marketing expenses

Pre-opening costs

Other expenses, net

Depreciation and amortization expense
Operating income

Interest expense, net

Other non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes

Income tax (benefit)/expense

Net loss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, January 1,
2023 (52 weeks) 2023 (52 weeks) Change
Amount % of Revenue Amount % of Revenue $ %

$ 1,651,166 979 % $ 1,497,882 979% $ 153,284 10.2 %
34,938 21 % 32,016 21 % 2,922 9.1 %
1,686,104 100.0 % 1,529,898 100.0 % 156,206 10.2 %
443,243 26.3 % 406,227 26.6 % 37,016 9.1 %
776,589 46.1 % 704,287 46.0 % 72,302 10.3 %
266,863 15.8 % 223,198 14.6 % 43,665 19.6 %
45,872 2.7 % 42,566 2.8 % 3,306 7.8 %
4,120 0.2 % 4,227 0.3 % (107) -25 %
10,378 0.6 % 10,157 0.7 % 221 22%
125,894 7.5 % 110,261 72 % 15,633 142 %
13,145 0.8 % 28,975 1.9 % (15,830) -54.6 %
50,341 3.0 % 34,102 22 % 16,239 47.6 %
3,798 0.2 % 3,036 0.2 % 762 251 %
(40,994) -2.4 % (8,163) -0.5 % (32,831) -402.2 %
(4,347) -0.3 % 612 — % (4,959) -810.3 %
(36,647) 2.2 % (8,775) -0.6 % (27,872) -317.6 %
1,278 0.1 % 6,847 0.4 % (5,569) -81.3 %
$ (37,925) 22% $ (15,622) -1.0% $ (22,303) -142.8 %

Royalties and other revenues: Royalties and other revenues increased $1.1 $2.9 million, or 8.5% 9.1%, from fiscal 2021 2022 to fiscal 2022, reflecting 2023, led by performance of
the impact of international franchise expansionsbusiness and expansion into new markets, such as Egypt and Jordan, partially offset by the impact of franchise acquisitions
including U.S. franchisees during fiscal 2021 and the third quarter of fiscal 2022, and KK Canada during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021. continued foreign exchange headwinds.
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The following table presents a further breakdown of total net revenue and organic revenue growth by segment for the periods indicated:

(in th I (in th
except DEZl U.S. and Market
per ges) P ) Canada Internati D K Total Comg (in th ds, except per ges) u.s. International Market Develoy it Total Company
Total net
revenues in
fiscal 2023 (52
weeks)
Total net Total net
revenues in revenues in
fiscal 2022 (52 fiscal 2022 (52
weeks) weeks) $1,033,125 ¢ 365916 $ 130,857 $1,529,898
Total net revenues in fiscal
2021 (52 weeks) 928,413 332,995 122,983 1,384,391
Total Net Total Net
Revenue Revenue
Growth Growth 104,712 32,921 7,874 145,507
Total Net Total Net
Revenue Revenue
Growth % Growth % 11.3 % 9.9 % 6.4 % 10.5 % Total Net Revenue Growth % 9.4 % 9.8 % 16.7 % 102 %
Less: Less:
Impact of Impact of
shop shop
optimization  optimization
program program
closures closures (1,374) — — (1,374)
Adjusted net revenues in fiscal
2021 927,039 332,995 122,983 1,383,017
Less:
Impact of
Branded
Sweet
Treats exit
Adjusted net
revenues in
fiscal 2022
Adjusted Net Adjusted Net
Revenue Revenue
Growth Growth 106,086 32,921 7,874 146,881
Impact of Impact of
acquisitions acquisitions  (24,391) — 6,899 (17,492)
Impact of Impact of
foreign foreign
currency currency
translation translation 2,299 26,052 8,991 37,342
Organic Organic
Revenue Revenue
Growth Growth $ 83994 $ 58973 §$ 23,764 $ 166,731
Organic Organic
Revenue Revenue
Growth % Growth % 9.1 % 17.7 % 19.3 % 12.1 % Organic Revenue Growth %  12.6 % 7.0 % 216 % 122 %

Total net revenue growth of $145.5 $156.2 million, or approximately 10.5% 10.2%, and organic revenue growth of $166.7 million $181.7 million, or approximately 12.1% 12.2%, was
driven by the continued and successful execution of our omni-channel growth strategy globally, high impact brand activations, and transformation deploying our omni-channel
approach globally. product premiumization efforts. We have continued to increase availability through new Global Points of Access, particularly the expansion of Spokes, including
capital-light DFD Doors, for existing Hubs with Spokesand via Ecommerce and delivery during fiscal 2022. 2023. Additionally, we have continued to take pricing actions to offset cost
inflation throughout fiscal 2023.
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U.S. segment revenue grew $94.7 million, or approximately 9.4% from fiscal 2022 to fiscal 2023, and Canada segment growth was drivenimpacted by a combination of continued
execution of our omni-channel strategy as well as franchise acquisitions (17 shops decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats business in the first quarter of fiscal 2021, ten shops
in2023 as well as shop optimization program closures near the fourth quarterend of fiscal 2021, and six shops in the third quarter of fiscal 2022). U.S. and Canada net2022.
Organic revenue grew $104.7 $123.0 million, or approximately 11.3% 12.6%, from fiscal 2021 2022 to fiscal 2023, driven by an additional 1,116 Points of Access compared to fiscal
2022, while organic revenue grew $84.0 million, or approximately 9.1%, from fiscal 2021 to fiscal 2022. Organic growth was driven by significant expansion of the low capital DFD
business, with DFD Doors increasing by 537 and APD up 9.9% compared to fiscal 2021. Organic growth was aided by including an increase of 21 Insomnia Cookies shops during
fiscal 2022, increased leverage of 1,079 DFD Doors, higher Ecommerce and delivery channels, revenues, growth from Insomnia Cookies, and successful LTOs. growth in DFD APD
as we continue to expand the types of premium products available to consumers such as specialty doughnuts. Our organic growth has also been supplemented by effective pricing
increases, taken in the second half of fiscal 2021 and again during the second half of fiscal 2022, leading to significantan increase in the average transaction size, but offset some
by transaction declines.softness.

Our International segment net revenue grew $32.9 $35.9 million, or approximately 9.9%9.8%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal 2022, 2023, aided byin spite of foreign currency
translation impacts of $26.1 million $10.4 million from a strengthening U.S. dollar British pound and Mexican peso. International organic revenue grew $59.0 million $25.5 million or
approximately 17.7%7.0%, from fiscal 2021 2022 to fiscal 2022. Organic growth for the period was 2023, driven by successful LTOs, effective increased pricing increases, and an
increased leverage Points of DFD channels, Access growth of 686, or 19.8%, compared to fiscal 2022 with DFD Doors increasing by 544 661. International organic revenue growth
was offset some by softer transaction volume compared to fiscal 2021. Growth was strong in Mexico, Australia, and New Zealand, and we still saw double-digit organic growth last
year as a result of the inflationary impact on consumers as well as regulatory initiatives in the U.K. which impacted placement and Ireland despite inflationary pressures contributing
to a decline in consumer traffic in promotion of our shops. products within grocery stores.

Our Market Development segment net revenue grew $7.9$25.6 million, or approximately 6.4% 16.7%, from fiscal 2021 2022 to fiscal 2022, 2023, in spite of the impacts of franchise
acquisitions such as KK Canada and certain foreign currencies devaluing against the U.S. dollar. When adjusted for the impacts of acquisitions and foreign currency, Market
Development organic revenue grew $23.8 million $33.2 million, or approximately 19.83% 21.6%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal 2022, 2023, driven by focused growth strong
performance in Japan and our international franchise markets, including benefits from DFD expansion. Canada, and Japan, aided by Hub and Spoke model expansion.

Product and distribution costs (exclusive of depreciation and amortization). Product and distribution costs increased $52.1$37.0 million, or 14.7% 9.1%, from fiscal 20212022 to
fiscal 2022,2023, largely in line with and attributable to the same factors as our revenue growth. Product and distribution costs as a percentage of revenue increased decreased by
approximately 10030 basis points from 25.6% in fiscal 2021 to 26.6% in fiscal 2022.2022 to 26.3% in fiscal 2023. This increase decrease was primarily driven by inflationary
pressures on commodities and logistics coststhe exit of the lower-margin Branded Sweet Treats business earlier in fiscal 2022, as well as increased promotional activity 2023. We
also saw benefits from pricing actions taken throughout the year to offset materials cost inflation. We expect to continue to see impacts from materials cost inflation in the U.S. fiscal
2024 — refer to “Quantitative and Canada such as the “Beat the Pump” promotion. We significantly reduced the level Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” included in Item 7A
of discounting Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada towards the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2022, which led further information on our
strategies to a reduction of product and distribution costs as a percentage of revenue in the fourth quarter. effectively manage inflationary cost increases.

Operating expenses: Operating expenses increased $74.0$72.3 million, or 11.7% 10.3%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal 2022,2023, driven mainly by labor cost inflation and
investments to support growth. Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased approximately 5010 basis points, from 45.5% in fiscal 2021 to 46.0% in fiscal 2022 to
46.1% in fiscal 2023 with decreased performance primarily due to the impact of lower transaction volumes on operating leverage, particularly for Hubs without Spokes for
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Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada coupled with transaction volume declines for KKUK. the International segment. This has been partially offset by efficiency benefits from DFD
expansion as we execute our Hub and Spoke transformation. expansion and our focus on labor management and demand planning, which we continue to refine with new tools.

Selling, general and administrative expense: Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased $0.8 $43.7 million, or 0.4% 19.6%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal
2022.2023. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A decreased increased by approximately 150120 basis points, from 16.1% in fiscal 2021 to 14.6% in fiscal 2022 primarily due to a
decrease in advisory service fees as we completed our IPO 15.8% in fiscal 2021. The decrease was also due to lower 2023, primarily driven by increases in performance-based
compensation accruals, investment in global transformation initiatives, and higher share-based compensation expenses as well as economies of scale from our top-line revenue
growth. in fiscal 2023.

Other expenses/(income), expenses, net: Other expenses, net of $10.2 million$10.4 million in fiscal 2023 were primarily driven by impairments and lease termination costs
associated with the Branded Sweet Treats exit and the decision to exit certain other underperforming shops, net of a gain from a sale-leaseback transaction. Other expenses, net of
$10.2 million in fiscal 2022 were primarily driven by impairment and lease termination costs, net of gains from sale-leaseback transactions described in transactions. Refer to Note
89, Leases, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. As part Statements included in Item 8 of our omni-channel transformation, we initiated portfolio optimization
efforts Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada during fiscal 2022, which included deciding to exit certain lower margin shops in the U.S. Other
income, net of $10.1 million in fiscal 2021 was primarily driven by a gain on a sale-leaseback transaction, as well as $3.5 million related to one-time COVID-19 related business

interruption insurance proceeds for KKUK. further information.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 41/265
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Depreciation and amortization expense: Depreciation and amortization expense increased $8.7 $15.6 million, or 8.5% 14.2%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal 2022, 2023, primarily
driven by increased higher capital spend and assets placed into service to support the Hub and Spoke model evolution. evolution as well as expansion of Insomnia Cookies both
domestically and internationally.

Interest expense, — related partynet:: Interest expense, with related parties decreased $10.4net increased $16.2 million, or 100.0%47.6%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal
2022,2023. The increase was primarily driven by paying off increases in the benchmark interest rates associated with the unhedged portion of our Related Party Notes variable rate
long-term debt, as well as an increase in fullthe unhedged principal amount compared to last year. The interest rate swap arrangements associated with KK GP during the second
quarter hedged portion of fiscal 2021. our long-term debt are set to mature in June 2024; we are currently evaluating arrangements to extend the maturity of these contracts. The
increase in interest expense also includes $0.5 million related to our debt refinancing discussed in Note 8, Long-Term Debt, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Income tax (benefit)/expense: Income tax expense decreased $10.1 benefit was $4.3 million or 94.3%, fromin fiscal 2021 to fiscal 2022. During fiscal 2022, 2023, while income tax
expense was $0.6 million in fiscal 2022. The fluctuation of $5.0 million from fiscal 2022 to fiscal 2023 was driven primarily by the mix of income between the U.S. and foreign
jurisdictions, disallowed executive compensation expense, and the recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefits. Duringlower pre-tax results in fiscal 2021, income tax
expense was significantly impacted by disallowed executive compensation expense incurred in connection with the IPO, tax law changes, and the mix of pre-tax earnings between
different jurisdictions. 2023.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest decreased $2.8$5.6 million, or 29.1% 81.3%, from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal
2022, 2023, driven by less earnings allocated to certain consolidated subsidiaries,, particularly Insomnia Cookies and WKS Krispy Kreme, and Awesome Doughnut. partially offset
by more earnings allocated to KK Canada.

Results of Operations by Segment — Fiscal Year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 compared to the Fiscal Year ended January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023
The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA by segment for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended Change
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended Change
December
(in thousands, (in thousands, January1, January 2, (in thousands, 31, January 1,
except except 2023 (52 2022 (52 except 2023 (52 2023 (52
per ges) p ) weeks) weeks) $ % percentages) weeks) weeks) $ %
Adjusted Adjusted
EBITDA EBITDA
U.S. and Canada $118,483 $107,571 $10,912 10.1 %
uU.s.
uU.s.
uU.s. $130,979 $ 112,283 $18,696 16.7 %
International International 75,512 81,422 (5,910) -7.3 % International 76,503 75,512 75,512 991 991 1.3 13 %
Market Market Market
Development Development 44,421 40,824 3,597 8.8 % Development 62,995 50,621 50,621 12,374 12,374 24.4 24.4 %
Corporate  Corporate (47,687) (41,872) (5,815) -13.9 % Corporate (58,853) (47,687) (47,687) (11,166) (11,166) -234 -23.4 %
Total Total Total ]
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
EBITDAw EBITDA® $190,729 $187,945 $ 2,784 1.5 %EBITDA » $211,624 $ $ 190,729 $ $20,895 11.0 11.0 %

o) Refer to “Key, Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” above for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net loss.

U.S. and Canadasegment Adjusted EBITDA increased $10.9 $18.7 million, or 10.1% 16.7%, with margin expansion of 80 basis points to 11.9% from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal
2022, 2023, primarily driven by the revenue growth of 11.3%. Our strategic expansion of the DFD business as part of the efficiencies from Hub and Spoke transformation contributed
to this growth with 555 expansion as we added 1,116 Points of Access, during fiscal 2022.

labor optimization, waste mitigation, and improvements from the Krispy Kreme U.S. portfolio optimization of our Hubs without Spokes. We also effectively offset commodity inflation
and labor pressures by implementing pricing increases. The U.S. Adjusted EBITDA margin for fiscal 2022 expansion was 11.5% which was essentially flat with margin for fiscal
2021, driven by cost increases in labor and commaodities and underperformance in our Hubs without Spokes, partially offset by the positive impacts from an increase in our Points of
Access in our Hubs with Spokes and effective pricing increases in the second half of fiscal 2021 and the second half of fiscal 2022. Additionally, we believe the legacy U.S. and
Canada optimization efforts discussed in “Significant Events and Transactions” above will yield improvement to margins in fiscal 2023 and 2024.
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higher product costs at Insomnia Cookies.
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International segment Adjusted EBITDA decreased $5.9 increased $1.0 million, or 7.3% 1.3%, with margin decline of approximately 390 160 basis points to 20.6% 19.0% from fiscal
20212022 to fiscal 2022, due 2023, primarily to an increase in labor driven by cost inflation and commaodity costs compared to timing of price increases, adverse foreign currency
translation impacts, as well as a challenging consumer environment lower transaction volume, particularly in the U.K.

Market Development segment Adjusted EBITDA increased $12.4 million, or 24.4%, with margin expansion of 220 basis points to 35.1% from fiscal 2022 to fiscal 2023, driven mainly
by strong margin improvement in fiscal 2021 was also impacted positively by $3.5 million business interruption insurance proceeds related to COVID-19 in the U.K. Despite these
factors, we have seen positive impacts on Adjusted EBITDA margin our Company-owned Japan and Canada businesses from Points of Access expansion and efficiencies from our
Hub and Spoke model evolution.

Market Development Adjusted EBITDA increased $3.6 million, or 8.8%, from fiscal 2021 to fiscal 2022 driven by top-line growth of our efficiencies. Strength in international franchise
markets and Japan. This growth revenues also more than offset cost inflation and the impact of acquisitions and foreign currency translation.strong U.S. dollar.

Corporate expenses within Adjusted EBITDA increased $5.8 $11.2 million, or 13.9% 23.4% from fiscal 2021 2022 to fiscal 2022, primarily driven by an increase in costs associated
with our operation as2023. As a public company. Corporate percentage of total net revenues, corporate expenses within Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue remained
essentially flatincreased by 40 basis points to 3.5% from fiscal 20212022 to fiscal 2022.2023, primarily due to strategic investments in global leadership, global transformation
initiatives, and increases in performance-based compensation accruals.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity to date have included cash from operating activities, cash on hand, amounts available under our credit facility, and commercial trade financing
including our “Supply Chain Financing Program” or the “SCF Program.” supply chain financing programs (“SCF programs”) and structured payables programs. Our primary use of
liquidity is to fund the cash requirements of our business operations, including working capital needs, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and other commitments.

Our future obligations primarily consist of our debt and lease obligations, as well as commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts. As of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023, we had the following future obligations:

*  Anaggregate principal amount of $748.8 million $837.5 million outstanding under the 2019 2023 Facility;
* An aggregate principal amount of $11.0 million outstanding under short-term, uncommitted lines of credit
* Non-cancellable future minimum operating lease payments totaling $680.8 million $759.2 million;
« Non-cancellable future minimum finance lease payments totaling $47.1 million $63.3 million; and

* Purchase commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts of $118.5 million $130.5 million.

Refer to Note 78, Long-Term Debt, Note 89, Leases, and Note 14 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part
Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more further information.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $35.4 million $38.2 million and $38.6 million $35.4 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023,
respectively. We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and debt facilities will be sufficient to fund our operating and capital needs for at least the next twelve months. In
fiscal 2023, 2024, we expect to use our available cash to support and invest in continue to position the business for sustainable growth, of our core businesses, including investing in
new shop improvements, ways to better serve our consumers, and support our shop partners, increasing ways to increase our omni-channel presence as we increase the expansion
of expand our DFD Doors in priority areas, as well as investing in new shop openings and new market penetration within the U.S. and internationally. Total capital expenditures for
fiscal 2023 2024 are expected to be in the range between 7% and 8% of $105 million net revenues, as we continue to $115 million, with our focus on deploying deploy the capital-
efficient Hub and Spoke model to reduce capital expenditures as a percentage of revenues. globally. We also expect to continue to reduce leverage by repaying debt, as well as to
continue to return cash to shareholders through common stock cash dividend payments.

Our assessment of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate to support our operations is a forward-looking statement and involves risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could vary because of, and our future capital requirements will depend on, many factors, including our growth rate, the timing and extent of
spending to acquire franchises, the growth of our presence in new markets and the expansion of our omni-channel model in existing markets. We may enter into arrangements in
the future to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, services and technologies. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could
use our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect. We may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing. In the event that additional financing is required
from outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we are unable to raise additional capital when desired, or if we cannot expand our
operations or otherwise capitalize on our business opportunities because we lack sufficient capital, our business, results of operations and financial condition would be adversely
affected.

As discussed in Note 7, Long-Term Debt to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, our 2019 Facility is scheduled to mature on June 13, 2024. We expect to refinance with
our lenders prior to the maturity date and are in process of determining
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the terms of any refinancing. We do not expect any cash flows associated with our 2019 Facility and its potential refinancing to inhibit our expected use of cash for operations and
investments discussed above.

Cash Flows
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We generate significant cash from operations and have substantial credit availability and capacity to fund operating and discretionary spending such as capital expenditures and
debt repayments. Our requirement for working capital is not significant because our consumers pay us in cash or on debit or credit cards at the time of the sale and we are able to
sell many of our inventory items before payment is due to the vendor of such items. The following table and discussion present, for the periods indicated, a summary of our key cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities:

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2,
(in (in 2023 (52 2022 (52 December 31, January 1,
thousands) thousands) weeks) weeks) (in thousands) 2023 (52 weeks) 2023 (52 weeks)
Net cash Net cash

provided provided

by by

operating operating

activities activites $139,818 $141,224
Net cash Net cash

used for used for

investing investing

activities activities  (121,474) (153,407)
Net cash (used

for)/provided by

financing activities (16,838) 16,096
Net cash

provided

by/(used

for)

financing

activities

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities

Cash provided by operations totaled $139.8 million $45.5 million for fiscal 2022, 2023, a decrease of $1.4 million $94.3 million compared with fiscal 2021.2022. Cash provided by
operations decreased primarily due to working capital management, with declines payments of obligations due under our SCF programs discussed in Note 7, Vendor Finance
Programs to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In an increase in accounts receivable and inventories,
which were partially offset by $8.5 million received in fiscal 2022 related effort to novation of our interest rate swap derivatives.

We have undertaken broad efforts to improve our working capital position and cash generation, in part by negotiating longer normalize payment terms, with vendors. We we have an
agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track our payments, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment obligations from us to
financial institutions (the SCF Program). Our typical payment terms for trade payables range to 180 days outside of the SCF Program, depending on the type of vendors and the
nature of the supplies or services. For vendorsreduced outstanding balances under the SCF Program, we have established payable terms ranging up to, but not exceeding, 360
days. When participating vendors elect to sell one or more of our payment obligations, our rights and obligations to settle the payables on their contractual due date are not
impacted. We have no economic or commercial interest in a vendor’s decision to enter into these agreements and the financial institutions do not provide us with incentives such as
rebates or profit sharing under the SCF Program. We agree on commercial terms with vendors for the goods and services procured, which are consistent with payment terms
observed at other peer companies in the industry, and as the terms are not impacted programs by the SCF Program, such obligations are classified as trade payables. Our
increased use of the SCF Program has continued through the end of approximately $108.2 million during fiscal 2022. 2023.

Cash Flows Used for Investing Activities

Cash used for investing activities totaled $121.5 million $112.6 million for fiscal 2022, 2023, a decrease in investment of $31.9 million $8.9 million compared with fiscal 2021.2022.
The decrease is primarily due to a reduction $17.3 million cash used for acquisitions of franchised shops in fiscal 2022, partially offset by an increase in cash spent on acquisitions of
shops and franchise rights, as well lower property and equipment purchases aided by capital-light DFD in fiscal 2023 related to Hub and Spoke expansion.

Cash Flows (Used Provided by/(Used for)/Provided by Financing Activities

Cash used for provided by financing activities totaled $16.8 million $71.9 million for fiscal 2022, a reduction in financing 2023, an increase of $32.9 million $88.7 million compared
with fiscal 2021.2022. The reduction in financing increase was primarily due to decreasing draws on our reliance on equity financing 2023 Facility used in part to fund payments to
reduce our vendor finance program obligations, including the SCF programs, during fiscal 2023. The increase was also impacted by payments of $12.5 million during fiscal 2022
compared to fiscal 2021 (when we completed our IPO), in addition to our payment of $12.5 million of for issuance costs in connection with the IPO during the first quarter of fiscal
2022.1PO.

The reductionsPayments on our structured payables resulted in financing were partially offset by $8.3 million a net $39.0 million change in cash flows related to (net proceeds from
structured payables programs (netof $26.6 million in fiscal 2023 compared to net payments on structured payables of $12.4 million in fiscal 2022 compared 2022). Refer to net
payments on structured payables of $20.8 million in fiscal 2021). We utilize various card products issued by financial institutionsNote 7, Vendor Finance Programs to facilitate
purchases of goods and services. By using these products, we may receive differing levels of rebates based on timing of repayment. The payment obligations under these card
products are classified as structured payables on ourthe audited Consolidated Balance Sheets and the associated cash flows are Financial Statements included in the financing
section Item 8 of our Consolidated Statements Part Il of Cash Flows. this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further information.
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Debt
Our long-term debt obligations consist of the following:

(in i January 1, January 2,
thousands) thousands) 2023 2022 (in thousands)
2023

Facility —

term loan

2023

Facility —

revolving

credit

facility

Short-term

lines of

credit

2019 2019

Facility -  Facility -

term loan term loan $586,250 $621,250
2019 2019

Facility -  Facility -

revolving revolving

credit credit

facility facility 162,500 75,000
Less: Debt Less: Debt

issuance issuance

costs costs (2,247)  (3,833)
Financing Financing

obligations obligations 32,583 24,473
Total Total

long-term long-term

debt debt 779,086 716,890
Less: Less:

Current  Current

portion of portion of

long-term long-term

debt debt (40,034) (36,583)
Long- Long-

term term

debt, less debt, less

current  current
portion  portion $739,052 $680,307

2023 Secured Credit Facility

2019 Facility

On June 13, 2019, In March 2023, we entered into arefinanced our existing credit agreement (the “2019 Facility”). The 2019 Facility) and entered into the 2023 Facility provides
for consisting of a $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit facilities in the formfacility and a term loan with a principal amount of $700.0 million in aggregate principal of
term $700.0 million. The loans and $300.0 million of revolving capacity. Borrowings commitments under the 2019 Facility are subjectwere due to an interest rate of one-month
LIBOR plus 2.25% if our Total Net Leverage Ratio (as defined mature in June 2024, and the 2019 Facility) equals or exceeds 4.00 to 1.00, 2.00% if our Total Net Leverage Ratio is
less than 4.00 to 1.00 but greater than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00 or 1.75% if our Total Net Leverage Ratio is less than 3.00 to 1.00, as determined loans and commitments under the
2019 Facility. We are required 2023 Facility will mature in March 2028. Refer to make equal installmentsNote 8, Long-Term Debt to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of 1.25% Part Il of the aggregate closing date principal amount of the term loans this Annual Report on the last day of each fiscal quarter. All remaining term loan

December 31,
2023

and revolving loan balances are to be due five years from the initial closing date. Form 10-K for further information.
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Under the terms of the 2019 2023 Facility, we are subject to a requirement to maintain a Total Net Leverage Ratio leverage ratio of less than 5.255.00 to 1.00 as of January 1, 2023,
which reduces to 5.00 to 1.00 by April 2, 2023.the end of each quarterly Test Period (as defined in the 2023 Facility) through maturity in March 2028. The Total Net Leverage
Ratio leverage ratio under the 20192023 Facility is defined as the ratio of (a) Total Indebtedness (as defined in the 2019 2023 Facility, which includes all debt and finance lease
obligations) minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to (b) a defined calculation of Adjusted EBITDA (“2019 (2023 Facility Adjusted EBITDA”) EBITDA) for the most recently
ended Test Period (as defined in Period. Our leverage ratio was 3.48 to 1.00 as of the 2019 Facility). The 2019 Facility Adjusted EBITDA for purposesend of these restrictive
covenants includes incremental adjustments beyond those included in our Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP measure. Specifically, the 2019 Facility Adjusted EBITDA definition includes
pro forma impact of EBITDA fiscal 2023 compared to be received from new shop openings and acquisitions for periods not yet in operation, certain acquisition related synergies and
cost optimization activities and incremental add-backs for pre-opening costs and for COVID-19 expenses and lost profits. Our Total Net Leverage Ratio was 3.41 to 1.00 as of the
end of fiscal 2022, compared primarily due to 2.99 to 1.00 as of the end of fiscal 2021. increase in long-term debt.

We were in compliance with the financial and other covenants related to the 2019 2023 Facility as of January 1, 2023 and as of the date of this filing of our Annual Report on Form
10-K, December 31, 2023 and expect to remain in compliance over the next 12 months. If we are unable to meet the 2019 2023 Facility financial or other covenants in future periods,
it may negatively impact our liquidity by limiting our ability to draw on the revolving credit facility, could result in the lenders accelerating the maturity of such indebtedness and
foreclosing upon the collateral pledged thereunder, and could require the replacement of the 2019 2023 Facility with new sources of financing, which there is no guaranty we could
secure. For additional information, refer

Short-Term Lines of Credit

In September 2023, the Company approved two new agreements with existing lenders providing for short-term, uncommitted lines of credit up to Note 7, Long-Term
Debt, $25.0 million. Borrowings under these short-term lines of credit are payable to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Notes

We were previously party lenders on a revolving basis for tenors up to a senior unsecured note agreement with KK GP for maximum of three months and are subject to an aggregate
principal amount of $283.1 million. In April 2019, we entered into an additional unsecured note with KK GP for $54.0 million (such notes together, the “Related Party Notes”). The
Related Party Notes were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. The interest expense for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 was $10.4
million and $22.5 million, respectively. No interest expense was recorded for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023. See Note 15, Related Party Transactions, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.
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Term Loan Facility

On June 10, 2021, we entered into the Term Loan Facility. On June 17, 2021, we borrowed $500.0 million under the Term Loan Facility. The borrowings under the Term Loan Facility
bore an all-in interest rate of 2.68175% adjusted term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus a credit spread adjustment of 0.10% plus a margin of 1.75%. As of January
2, 2022 December 31, 2023, there was no outstanding principal amountthe Company had drawn $11.0 million under the Term Loan Facility, as it was paid off in full and terminated
on July 7, 2021, primarily using the net IPO proceeds with the difference being partially funded by a drawdown agreements which is classified within Current portion of $100.0
million long-term debt on the 2019 Facility’s revolving credit facility. The Term Loan Facility would have matured on the earlier of (i) June 10, 2022, and (ii) within four business days
following consummation of the IPO. The interest expense was $2.4 million for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022, which included $1.7 million of debt issuance costs incurred and
recognized as expenses. For additional information, refer to Note 7, Long-Term Debt, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.Balance Sheets.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The financial information discussed in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” is based upon or derived from the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as related disclosures. We consider an accounting judgment, estimate or
assumption to be critical when (1) the estimate or assumption is complex in nature or requires a high degree of judgment and (2) the use of different judgments, estimates and
assumptions could have a material impact on the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. We review our financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting policies quarterly to confirm that they provide accurate and transparent information relative
to the current economic and business environment. A summary of our significant accounting policies is included in Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe that our critical accounting estimates are:

Self-Insurance Risks and Receivables from Insurers

We are subject to workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liability claims and are self-insured for a significant portion of our workers’ compensation, vehicle and general liability
claims up to the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased from commercial insurance carriers. We maintain accruals for the estimated cost of claims, without regard to the
effects of stop-loss coverage, using actuarial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported claims and consider historical loss development experience. In
addition, we record receivables from the insurance carriers for claims amounts estimated to be recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimable
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and probable of collection. We estimate such stop-loss receivables using the same actuarial methods used to establish the related claims accruals and taking into account the
amount of risk transferred to the carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies provide coverage for claims in excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are
determined on a claim-by-claim basis. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company had approximately $17.7 million $21.0 million
and $14.7 million $17.7 million, respectively, reserved for such programs. Inclusive of the receivables from the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liability balance
was $8.4 million $10.8 million and $7.5 million $8.4 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Our estimated liability is not discounted and is based on a number of assumptions and factors. The critical assumptions used in determining these related expenses and obligations
are future cost projections of claims, which include healthcare cost projections. These critical assumptions are calculated based on historical Company data and experience, as well
as appropriate market indicators including inflation, societal attitudes toward legal action, and changes in law. The assumptions are evaluated at least semiannually by us in
conjunction with outside actuaries and are closely monitored and adjusted when warranted by changing circumstances. If a greater amount of claims are reported, or if medical
costs increase beyond our expectations, our liabilities may not be sufficient, and we could recognize additional expense.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities including valuation allowance requires the use of estimates based on our management's interpretation and
application of complex tax laws and accounting guidance. We are primarily subject to income taxes in the U.S. We establish reserves for uncertain tax positions for material, known
tax exposures in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes relating to deductions, transactions and other matters involving some uncertainty as to the measurement and recognition
of the item. We may adjust these reserves when our judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new information not previously available and will be reflected in the period in
which the new information is
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available. While we believe that our reserves are adequate, issues raised by a tax authority may be resolved at an amount different than the related reserve and could materially
increase or decrease our income tax provision in future periods.

Realization of deferred tax assets involves estimates regarding (i) the timing and amount of the reversal of taxable temporary differences, (i) expected future taxable income, (jii) the
ability to carry back or carry forward net operating losses and (jii) tax credits, and (iv) the impact of tax planning strategies. We believe that it is more likely than not that we will not
realize the benefit of certain deferred tax assets and, accordingly, have established a valuation allowance against them. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we
consider all available positive and negative evidence, including past operating results, projections of future taxable income and the feasibility of and potential changes to ongoing tax
planning strategies. The projections of future taxable income include a number of estimates and assumptions regarding our volume, pricing and costs. Although realization is not
assured for the remaining deferred tax assets, we believe it is more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable earnings or
alternative tax strategies. However, deferred tax assets could be reduced in the near term if our estimates of taxable income are significantly reduced or tax strategies are no longer
viable.

Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

For each reporting unit, the Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually at the beginning of the fourth fiscal quarter or more frequently when impairment indicators are
present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the

Company recognizes an impairment charge for the difference up to the carrying value of the allocated goodwill. The fair value is estimated using a combination of a discounted cash
flow approach and a market approach.

When assessing goodwill for impairment, our decision to perform a qualitative impairment assessment for an individual reporting unit is influenced by a number of factors, inclusive
of the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill, the significance of the excess of the reporting unit's estimated fair value over carrying value at the last quantitative assessment
date, the amount of time in between quantitative fair value assessments and the date of acquisition. If we perform a quantitative assessment of an individual reporting unit's
goodwill, our impairment calculations contain uncertainties because they require management to make assumptions and to apply judgment when estimating future cash flows and
asset fair values, including projected revenue growth and operating expenses related to existing businesses, product innovation and new shop concepts, as well as utilizing
valuation multiples of similar publicly traded companies and selecting an appropriate discount rate. Estimates of revenue growth and operating expenses are based on internal
projections considering the reporting unit’s past performance and forecasted growth, strategic initiatives, local market economics, and the local business environment impacting the
reporting unit's performance. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated cost of capital for a market participant to operate the reporting unit in the region. These estimates,
as well as the selection of comparable companies and valuation multiples used in the market approaches are highly subjective, and our ability to realize the future cash flows used
in our fair value calculations is affected by factors such as the success of strategic initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance, and changes
in our business strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion.

For the fiscal years 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 2021, there were no goodwill impairment charges. We continue to believe the fair value of each of our reporting units is significantly
in excess of its carrying value, and absent a sustained multi-year global decline in our business in key markets such as the U.S. and Canada,, we do not anticipate incurring
significant goodwill impairment in the next 12 months.

Other intangible assets, net primarily represent the trade names for our brands, franchise agreements (domestic and international), reacquired franchise rights, and customer
relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite useful life and are reviewed annually for impairment. The fair value calculation for the trade names includes
estimates of revenue growth, which are based on past performance and internal projections for the intangible asset group’s forecasted growth and royalty rates, which are adjusted
for our particular facts and circumstances. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated cost of capital that reflects the risk profile of the related business. These estimates
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are highly subjective, and our ability to achieve the forecasted cash flows used in our fair value calculations is affected by factors such as the success of strategic initiatives,
changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance, and changes in our business strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion. All other
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever triggering events or
indicators of potential impairment occur. We did not have any impairment charges of indefinite-lived intangible assets during any of the periods presented, and we do not anticipate
incurring significant impairment charges in the next 12 months.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed description of recent
accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Effects of Changing Prices - Inflation

We are exposed to the effects of commodity price fluctuations in the cost of ingredients of our products, of which flour, sugar and shortening are the most significant. Throughout
fiscal 20222023 we have experienced headwinds from commodity inflation globally. We have undertaken efforts to effectively manage inflationary cost increases through rapid
inventory turnover and reduced inventory waste, increased focus on resiliency of our supply chains, and an ability to adjust pricing of our products. Additionally, from time to time we
may enter into forward contracts for supply through our vendors for raw materials that are ingredients of our products or that are components of such ingredients, including wheat
and soybean oil.

We are also exposed to the effects of commodity price fluctuations in the cost of gasoline fuel used by our delivery vehicles. To mitigate the risk of fluctuations in the price of our
gasoline fuel purchases, we may directly purchase commodity futures contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates on any borrowings under our debt facilities, which bear interest based on the one-month LIBOR SOFR (with a floor of zero). Generally,
interest rate changes could impact the amount of our interest paid and, therefore, our future earnings and cash flows, assuming other factors are held constant. To mitigate the
impact of changes in LIBOR SOFR on interest expense for a portion of our variable rate debt, we have entered into interest rate swaps on $505.0 million notional of our $748.8
million $848.5 million of outstanding debt under the 2023 Facility and short-term lines of credit as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, which we account for as cash flow hedges.
The interest rate swap agreements are scheduled to mature in June 2024. Based on the $243.8 million $343.5 million of unhedged outstanding as of January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023, a 100 basis point increase or decrease in the one-month LIBOR SOFR would result in a $2.4 million $3.4 million increase or decrease, respectively, in interest expense for a
12-month period, based on the daily average of the one-month LIBOR SOFR for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

The Financial Conduct Authority in the U.K. intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2023. We have negotiated terms in consideration of this discontinuation and do not expect
that the discontinuation of the LIBOR rate, including any legal or regulatory changes made in response to its future phase out, will have a material impact on our liquidity or results of
operations.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency translation risk on the operations of our subsidiaries that have functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar, whose revenues accounted for
approximately 28% 29% of our total net revenues through the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023. A substantial majority of these revenues, or approximately
$435.7 million $490.2 million through the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, were attributable to subsidiaries whose functional currencies are the Canadian
dollar, the British pound sterling, the Euro, the Australian dollar, the New Zealand dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Japanese yen. A 10% increase or decrease in the average fiscal
2022 2023 exchange rate of the Canadian dollar, the British pound sterling, the Euro, the Australian dollar, the New Zealand dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Japanese yen against
the U.S. dollar would have resulted in a decrease or increase of approximately $43.6 million $49.0 million in our total net revenues through the fiscal year ended January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023.

From time to time, we engage in foreign currency exchange and credit transactions with our non-U.S. subsidiaries, which we typically hedge. To date, the impact of such
transactions, including the cost of hedging, has not been material. We do not engage in foreign currency or hedging transactions for speculative purposes.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Krispy Kreme, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 1, 2023 December
31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss)/income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion,
the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (U.S.) (‘PCAOB”), the Company'’s internal control over financial
reporting as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSOQ"), and our report dated March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical audit matters

Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee
and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. We
determined there are no critical audit matters.

/sSIGRANT THORNTON LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.

Denver, Colorado
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Opinion on internal control over financial reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Krispy Kreme, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO0"). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, based on
criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (U.S.) (“PCAOB"), the consolidated financial statements of the
Company as of and for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, and our report dated March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

Basis for opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect
to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and limitations of internal control over financial reporting

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/sSIGRANT THORNTON LLP

Denver, Colorado

March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January 3,
2023 (52 2022 (52 2021 (53
weeks) weeks) weeks)
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Net revenues
Product sales
Product sales

Product sales

Royalties and other Royalties and other

revenues

Total net
revenues

Product and
distribution costs

Operating
expenses

Selling, general

and administrative and administrative

expense

Marketing
expenses

Pre-opening costs Pre-opening costs

Other

expenses/(income), expenses/(income),

net

Depreciation and
amortization
expense

Operating income Operating income

Interest expense,
net

Interest expense — Interest expense —

related party

Other non-operating expense/(income),

net

Other non-

operating expense,

net

Loss before
income taxes

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,

2023 (52 weeks)

Net revenues

Product sales

revenues

Total net
revenues

Product and
distribution costs

Operating
expenses

Selling, general

expense

Marketing
expenses

Other

net

Depreciation and
amortization
expense

Interest expense,
net

related party

Loss before
income taxes

Income tax expense

Income tax

(benefit)/expense

Net loss

Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling
interest

Net loss
attributable to
Krispy Kreme,
Inc.

Net loss per
share:
Common stock -
Basic

Net loss

Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling
interest

Net loss
attributable to
Krispy Kreme,
Inc.

Net loss per
share:
Common stock -
Basic

Common stock - Basic

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

Fiscal Years Ended

$1,497,882 $ 1,353,466 $ 1,085,110

32,016 30,925 36,926
1,529,898 1,384,391 1,122,036
406,227 354,093 310,909
704,287 630,239 488,061
223,198 222,394 182,317
42,566 39,489 34,000

4,227 5,568 11,583
10,157 (10,102) 10,488
110,261 101,608 80,398
28,975 41,102 4,280
34,102 32,622 34,741

= 10,387 22,468
3,036 2,191 (1,101)
(8,163) (4,098)  (51,828)

612 10,745 9,112
(8,775)  (14,843)  (60,940)
6,847 9,663 3,361

$ (15622) $ (24,506) $ (64,301)

$  (010)$ (0.18)$  (0.52)

January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)

51/265

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Common stock - Basic

Common stock -  Common stock -

Diluted Diluted $ 0.10) (0.18) $ (0.52)
Weighted average Weighted average
shares shares
outstanding: outstanding:
Basic Basic 167,471 147,655 124,987
Basic
Basic
Diluted Diluted 167,471 147,655 124,987
See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Table of Contents
Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss)/Income
(in thousands)
Fiscal Years Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2023 (52 2022 (52 2021 (53
weeks) weeks) weeks)
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, December 31, January 1, January 2,
2023 (52 weeks) 2023 (52 weeks) 2023 (52 weeks) 2022 (52 weeks)
Net loss Net loss $ (8,775) $(14,843) $(60,940)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of
income taxes:
Foreign currency Foreign currency
translation translation
adjustment adjustment (33,637) (14,955) 19,426
Unrealized income/(loss) on cash flow
hedges, net of income taxes () 25,251 13,609 (14,430)
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized
(loss)/income on
cash flow
hedges, net of
income taxes w
Unrealized Unrealized
income/(loss) on income/(loss) on
employee employee
benefit plans benefit plans 70 (338) (106)
Total other comprehensive (loss)lincome (8,316) (1,684) 4,890
Total other
comprehensive
incomel(loss)
Comprehensive loss Comprehensive loss (17,091) (16,527) (56,050)
Net income Net income
attributable to attributable to
noncontrolling noncontrolling
interest interest 6,847 9,663 3,361

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

52/265

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Foreign currency
translation
adjustment
attributable to
noncontrolling

Foreign currency
translation
adjustment
attributable to
noncontrolling

interest interest (1,642) (414) 547
Total Total

comprehensive comprehensive

income income

attributable to
noncontrolling

attributable to
noncontrolling

interest interest 5,205 9,249 3,908

Comprehensive loss Comprehensive loss
attributable to Krispy  attributable to Krispy

Kreme, Inc. Kreme, Inc. $(22,296) $ (25,776) $ (59,958)

@) Net of income tax benefit/(expense)/benefit of $2.9 million, ($8.4 million), and ($4.5 million), and $4.8 million for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023,
January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

As of

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
As of As of
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023
ASSETS ASSETS
Current assets: Current assets:
Current assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents $ 35371 $ 38,562
Restricted cash
Restricted cash
Restricted cash Restricted cash 359 630
Accounts Accounts
receivable, net receivable, net 51,089 47,491
Inventories Inventories 46,239 34,851
Taxes receivable  Taxes receivable 18,263 14,662
Prepaid expense  Prepaid expense
and other current  and other current
assets assets 26,953 20,701
Total current Total current
assets assets 178,274 156,897
Property and Property and
equipment, net equipment, net 472,358 438,918
Goodwill Goodwill 1,087,908 1,105,322
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Other intangible Other intangible
assets, net assets, net 966,088 992,520

Operating lease Operating lease
right of use asset, right of use asset,

net net 417,381 435,168
Other assets Other assets 26,528 16,429
Total assets Total assets $3,148,537 $ 3,145,254

LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY EQUITY

Current liabilities: ~ Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of  Current portion of
long-term debt long-term debt $ 40,034 $ 36,583

Current operating  Current operating
lease liabilities lease liabilities 43,160 50,359

Accounts payable Accounts payable 225,276 182,104
Accrued liabilities  Accrued liabilities 104,424 140,750

Structured Structured

payables payables 103,575 116,361
Total current Total current

liabilities liabilities 516,469 526,157

Long-term debt, Long-term debt,
less current portion less current portion 739,052 680,307

Noncurrent Noncurrent
operating lease operating lease
liabilities liabilities 412,759 415,208

Noncurrent operating lease liabilities

Noncurrent operating lease liabilities

Deferred income  Deferred income

taxes, net taxes, net 143,124 145,418
Other long-term Other long-term

obligations and obligations and

deferred credits deferred credits 38,258 42,509
Total Total
liabilities liabilities 1,849,662 1,809,599
Commitments and Commitments and
contingencies contingencies Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ Shareholders’
equity: equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value;
300,000 shares authorized as of both
January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022;
168,137 and 167,251 shares issued
and outstanding as of January 1,
2023 and January 2, 2022,
respectively 1,681 1,673

Common stock, $0.01 par value;
300,000 shares authorized as of both
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023; 168,628 and 168,137 shares
issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023, respectively
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Common stock, $0.01 par value;
300,000 shares authorized as of both
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023; 168,628 and 168,137 shares
issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023, respectively

Common stock, $0.01 par value;
300,000 shares authorized as of both
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023; 168,628 and 168,137 shares
issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2023 and January 1,
2023, respectively

Additional paid-in  Additional paid-in

capital capital 1,426,105 1,415,185

Shareholder note  Shareholder note

receivable receivable (4,813) (4,382)

Accumulated other comprehensive

loss, net of income tax (9,151) (2,478)

Accumulated other

comprehensive

income/(loss), net

of income tax

Retained deficit Retained deficit (217,490)  (178,409)
Total Total

shareholders’ shareholders’

equity attributable equity attributable

to Krispy Kreme, to Krispy Kreme,

Inc. Inc. 1,196,332 1,231,589

Noncontrolling Noncontrolling

interest interest 102,543 104,066
Total Total

shareholders’ shareholders’

equity equity 1,298,875 1,335,655
Total Total

liabilities and liabilities and

shareholders’ shareholders’

equity equity $3,148,537 $ 3,145,254

Table of Contents

Common Stock

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

A i Other Comp

(Loss)/Income

Unrealized Unrealized
Shareholder Foreign (Loss)liIncome Loss on
oh Additional o Currency on Employee Retained N trolli
ares Paid-in ote Translation Cash Flow Benefit etaine oncontroling
Outstanding Amount Capital Receivable Adjustment Hedges Plans Deficit Interest

Balance at December 29, 2019 124,987 $1,250 $ 834,233 $ (17,232) $ 4,629 $ (10,180) = $ (77,880) $ 148,597
Net (loss)/income for the fiscal year

ended January 3, 2021 — — — — — — — (64,301) 3,361
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Common Stock

Shares

Outstanding

Shares

Outstanding

Shares

Outstanding

Balance at

January 3, 2021

Net (loss)/income
for the fiscal
year ended
January 2, 2022

Other
comprehensive
(loss)/income
for the fiscal
year ended
January 2,
2022 before

reclassifications’

Reclassification
from AOCI
Capital
contribution from
shareholders, net

of loans issued

Share-based

compensation

Purchase of
shares by
noncontrolling

interest

Noncontrolling
interest of
acquired entity

Dividends
declared on
common stock
and equivalents
($0.035 per
share)

Distribution to
shareholders

Distribution to
noncontrolling

interest
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Conversion of
noncontrolling
interest to
additional paid-
in capital in
connection with
the Merger

Issuance of
common stock
in connection
with initial
public offering,
net of
underwriting
discounts and

issuance costs

Issuance of
common stock
upon settlement
of RSUs, net of

shares withheld

Repurchase of

common stock
Other

Balance at
January 2, 2022
Net (loss)/income
for the fiscal
year ended
January 1, 2023
Other
comprehensive
(loss)/income
for the fiscal
year ended
January 1,
2023 before

reclassifications’

Reclassification

from AOCI

Capital
contribution
from
shareholders,
net of loans

issued

Share-based
compensation
Purchase of
shares by
noncontrolling

interest

Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)
Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)
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Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)

Distribution to noncontrolling interest
Distribution to noncontrolling interest
Distribution to Distribution to
noncontrolling noncontrolling
interest interest — — (4,229) 88
Issuance of Issuance of
common stock common stock
upon settlement  upon settlement
of RSUs, netof  of RSUs, net of
shares withheld  shares withheld 886 8 (2,951) —
Issuance of common stock upon
settlement of RSUs, net of shares

withheld

Issuance of common stock upon

settlement of RSUs, net of shares

withheld
Other
Other
Other Other — — 2 (45) —
Balance at Balance at
January 1, 2023 January 1, 2023 168,137 $1,681 $ 1,426,105 $ (4,813) $ (23,028)

Net (loss)/income
for the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
2023

Other
comprehensive
income for the
fiscal year
ended
December 31,
2023 before
reclassifications

Reclassification

from AOCI

Capital
contribution
from
shareholders,
net of loans
issued
Share-based
compensation
Purchase of
shares by
noncontrolling

interest

Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)
@)

Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)

@
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Dividends declared on common stock
and equivalents ($0.035 per share)
®

Distribution to noncontrolling interest

Distribution to noncontrolling interest

Distribution to noncontrolling interest

Issuance of common stock upon

settlement of RSUs, net of shares

withheld

Issuance of common stock upon
settlement of RSUs, net of shares
withheld

Issuance of common stock upon
settlement of RSUs, net of shares
withheld

Other

Other

Other

Balance at

December 31,

2023

@ Includes a $0.035 cash dividend per common share declared in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 2023 and expected to be paid in the first quarter of fiscal 2023.2024.

Table of Contents

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended

January
1, January 2, January 3,
2023 (52 2022 (52 2021 (53

weeks) weeks) weeks)

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,
2023 (52 weeks)

CASH FLOWS FROM  CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING OPERATING
ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITIES:
Net loss Net loss

Net loss

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile Adjustments to reconcile

net loss to net cash net loss to net cash

provided by operating provided by operating

activities: activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation and
amortization amortization

expense expense

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, January 1,

2023 (52 weeks) 2023 (52 weeks)

Depreciation and

$ (8,775) $ (14,843) $(60,940)

110,261 101,608 80,398
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January 2,
2022 (52 weeks)
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Deferred and other

income taxes

Loss on
extinguishment
of debt

Impairment and
lease
termination

charges

Loss on disposal
of property and
equipment

Gain on sale-

leaseback

Share-based
compensation

Change in
accounts and
notes
receivable

allowances

Inventory write-off

Settlement of
interest rate
swap

derivatives

Settlement of interest rate swap derivatives
Settlement of interest rate swap derivatives
Amortization

related to

settlement of

interest rate

swap

derivatives

Other

Change in
operating
assets and
liabilities,
excluding
business
acquisitions
and foreign
currency

translation

adjustments:
Accounts, notes, and taxes
receivable
Accounts, notes, and taxes
receivable
Accounts,
notes, and taxes

receivable

Inventories
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Other
current and noncurrent
assets

Operating
lease assets and

liabilities

Operating lease assets and liabilities

Operating lease assets and liabilities

Accounts
payable and accrued
liabilities

Other long-
term obligations and
deferred credits
Net cash provided by
operating activities
CASH FLOWS USED
FOR INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of
property and
equipment
Proceeds from
disposals of
assets
Proceeds from
sale-leaseback
Acquisition of
shops and
franchise rights
from
franchisees,
net of cash
acquired
Purchase of equity
method
investment
Principal payments
received from
loans to
franchisees
Disbursement for

loan receivable

Maturities of held-to-maturity debt securities

Maturities of held-to-maturity debt securities

Maturities of held-
to-maturity
debt securities

Net cash used for

investing activities
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CASH FLOWS
FROMI(USED FOR)
FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of debt

Proceeds from the issuance of debt

Proceeds from the
issuance of
debt

Repayment of
long-term debt
and lease
obligations

Payment of

financing costs

Proceeds from
structured
payables

Payments on
structured
payables

Payment of
contingent
consideration

related to a
business

combination

Capital
contribution
from
shareholders,
net of loans
issued

Proceeds from
IPO, net of
underwriting
discounts

(excluding
unpaid
issuance
costs)
Payments of
issuance costs
in connection
with IPO
Proceeds from
sale of
noncontrolling
interest in
subsidiary

Distribution to

shareholders
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Payments for Payments for

repurchase repurchase

and retirement and retirement

of common of common

stock stock (4,019) (139,103) —
Distribution to Distribution to

noncontrolling noncontrolling

interest interest (11,721) (23,356)  (11,389)

Net cash (used for)/provided by financing

activities (16,838) 16,096 139,441
Net cash provided

byl(used for) financing

activities

Effect of exchange rate  Effect of exchange rate

changes on cash, cash  changes on cash, cash

equivalents and equivalents and

restricted cash restricted cash (4,968) (2,204) 2,045
Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents

and restricted cash (3,462) 1,709 2,033

Net increase/(decrease)

in cash, cash equivalents

and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents Cash, cash equivalents
and restricted cash at and restricted cash at
beginning of the fiscal beginning of the fiscal

year year 39,192 37,483 35,450

Cash, cash equivalents Cash, cash equivalents
and restricted cash at and restricted cash at
end of the fiscal year  end of the fiscal year $ 35,730 $ 39,192 $ 37,483

Supplemental schedule  Supplemental schedule
of non-cash investing of non-cash investing

and financing activities: ~and financing activities:
Increase/(decrease) in accrual for property
and equipment, net $20629 $ (1,159) $ 10,182
Increase/(decrease) in accrual for property
and equipment
Increase/(decrease) in accrual for property
and equipment
Increase/(decrease) in accrual for property

and equipment

Stock issuance Stock issuance

under under

shareholder shareholder

notes notes 614 963 1,535
Accrual for Accrual for

distribution to distribution to

shareholders shareholders (5,884) (6,928) —

Reconciliation of cash,  Reconciliation of cash,
cash equivalents and cash equivalents and
restricted cash at end of restricted cash at end of

fiscal year: fiscal year:

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and

restricted cash at end of fiscal year:

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and

restricted cash at end of fiscal year:
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash Cash and cash

equivalents equivalents $35371 $ 38562 $ 37,460
Restricted cash Restricted cash 359 630 23
Total cash, cash Total cash, cash

equivalents equivalents

and restricted and restricted

eath i $35730 $ 39,192 $ 37,483

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in thousands, unless otherwise specified)
Note 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Krispy Kreme”) operate through an omni-channel business model to provide doughnut experiences
and produce doughnuts for Doughnut Shops, Delivered Fresh Daily (“DFD”) outlets, and Ecommerce and delivery and Krispy Kreme branded sweet treats (“Branded Sweet Treat
Line”) channels, expanding consumer access to the Krispy Kreme brand.

The Company has three reportable operating segments: 1) U.S. and Canada,, which includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada, Insomnia
Cookies shops and the Branded Sweet Treat Line; Bakeries; 2) International, which includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New
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Zealand and Mexico; and 3) Market Development, which includes franchise operations across the globe, as well as Krispy Kreme Company-owned shops in Japan. Japan and
Canada. Unallocated corporate costs are excluded from the Company’s measurement of segment performance.

As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, the Company had 1,9402,177 Krispy Kreme Kreme-branded shops and Insomnia Cookies branded shops Bakeries in over 3039
countries around the world. The ownership and location of those shops is as follows:

Krispy Kreme U.S. and

Canada Insomnia Cookies International Market Development Total
Company-owned shops 306 231 425 59 1,021
Franchise shops — — — 919 919
Total 306 231 425 978 1,940
u.s. International Market Development Total
Krispy Kreme Company-owned Shops 299 448 79 826
Insomnia Cookies Company-owned Bakeries 265 — 2 267
Krispy Kreme Franchise Shops — — 1,084 1,084
Total 564 448 1,165 2,177

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The Company operates and reports financial information on a 52 or 53-week year with the fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31. The data periods contained
within fiscal years 2023, 2022, 2021, and 2020 2021 reflect the results of operations for the 52-week period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, the 52-week period ended
January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and the 53-week 52-week period ended January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022.

The accompanying audited Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Krispy Kreme and subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions among Krispy Kreme and subsidiaries have been eliminated in
consolidation. Investments in entities over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence but which it does not control and whose financial statements are not
otherwise required to be consolidated are accounted for using the equity method.

Noncontrolling interest in the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements represents the interest in subsidiaries held by joint venture partners and employee
shareholders. The joint venture partners hold noncontrolling interests in the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries Awesome Doughnut, LLC (“Awesome Doughnut”), W.K.S. Krispy
Kreme, LLC (“WKS Krispy Kreme”), and Krispy K Canada, Inc. (“KK Canada”). Employee shareholders hold noncontrolling interests in the consolidated subsidiaries Krispy Kreme
Holding U.K. Ltd. (*KKUK”), Krispy Kreme Holdings Pty Ltd. (‘KK Australia”), Krispy Kreme Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (“KK Mexico”), and Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC
(“Insomnia Cookies”). Since the Company consolidates the financial statements of these subsidiaries, the noncontrolling owners’ share of each subsidiary’s net assets and results of
operations are deducted and reported as a noncontrolling interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and as net income attributable to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss)/Income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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Initial Public Offering

The Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 related to its initial public offering (“IPO”) was declared effective on June 30, 2021 and the Company’s common stock began
trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on July 1, 2021. On July 1, 2021, the Company completed its IPO, in which the Company sold 29.4 million shares of common stock at a
price to the public of $17.00 per share. The Company received aggregate net proceeds of $458.8 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $28.7 million
and offering expenses of $12.5 million.

In connection with the IPO, the Company and its affiliates completed the following transactions:

¢ OnJune 10, 2021, the Company's wholly-owned (excluding certain management equity interests) subsidiary, Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. (“KKHI"), entered into a term loan
credit agreement, as borrower, which provided for term loans in an initial aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million (the “Term Loan Facility”). On June 17, 2021, KKHI
borrowed $500.0 million under the Term Loan Facility, with debt issuance costs of $1.7 million which were included in Interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. On July 7, 2021, the Company repaid in full and terminated the Term Loan Facility with a cash outflow of
$500.7 million, which included $0.7 million of accrued interest.
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e On June 28, 2021, KKHI merged into KKI (the “Merger”). As a result of the Merger, the Company eliminated $107.4 million of noncontrolling interest at KKHI as of the
merger date. The management equity interests at KKHI were exchanged for common shares in KKI. Restricted stock units (“RSUs") and stock options held at KKHI were
exchanged for RSUs and stock options held at KKI at a rate of 317.24 KKI shares to 1 KKHI share.

* On June 30, 2021, the Company effected a 1,745-for-1 split of each outstanding share of common stock (the “Stock Split”). All share and per share information has been
retroactively adjusted to effect the Stock Split for all periods presented.

In connection with the IPO, the Company used the proceeds from the Term Loan Facility for the following: (1) repay the related party notes payable (including accrued interest of
$17.8 million) of $355.0 million, (2) redeem certain common stock of $102.7 million held by Krispy Kreme, G.P. (‘KK GP”) and (3) pay a pro rata dividend to members of its
management who, prior to the Merger, held equity interests in KKHI in an aggregate amount of $42.3 million. Additionally, the Company paid $20.3 million to repurchase
approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock from certain of the Company’s executive officers at the price paid by the underwriters and $15.5 million to repurchase
approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock from certain of its executive officers for payment of their withholding taxes with respect to the RSUs vesting or for which vesting
was accelerated in connection with the offering.

On August 2, 2021, the underwriters exercised their over-allotment option and purchased an additional 3.5 million shares of common stock at the IPO price less the underwriting
discounts and commissions. The net proceeds received on August 2, 2021 were $56.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $3.4 million. This brought
total net IPO proceeds to $514.9 million.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferred to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received for those goods
or services.

Product Sales

Product sales include revenue derived from (1) the sale of doughnuts, cookies, and complementary products to in-shop, Ecommerce and delivery, Branded Sweet Treat Line, and
DFD customers and (2) the sale of doughnut mix, other ingredients and supplies, and doughnut-making equipment to franchisees. Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery for
in-shop sales, Ecommerce and delivery sales, and sales to franchisees. For Branded Sweet Treat Line and DFD sales, control transfers and revenue is recognized either at the time
of delivery or, with respect to those customers that take title to products purchased from the Company at the time those products are sold by the customer to the end consumers,
simultaneously with such consumer purchases. Revenues are recognized net of provisions for estimated product returns. Revenues from Branded Sweet Treat Line customers and
from the sale of doughnut mix, other ingredients, supplies, and doughnut-making equipment to franchisees include any applicable shipping and handling costs invoiced to the
customer, and the expense of such shipping and handling costs is included in Operating expenses. The Company recorded shipping revenue of approximately $11.2 million $13.3
million, $13.3 million $11.2 million, and $15.2 million $13.3 million in the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3,
2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.
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Franchise Revenue

Franchise revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from development and initial franchise fees relating to new shop openings and ongoing royalties charged to
franchisees based on their sales. The Company sells individual franchises domestically and internationally, as well as development agreements that grant the right to develop shops
in designated areas. Generally, the franchise license granted for each individual shop within an arrangement represents a single performance obligation. The franchise agreements
and development agreements typically require the franchisee to pay initial nonrefundable franchise fees (i.e., initial services such as training and assisting with shop set-up) prior to
opening. The franchises franchisees also pay a royalty on a monthly basis based upon a percentage of franchisee gross sales. Royalties are recognized in income as underlying
franchisee sales occur. The initial term of domestic franchise agreements is typically 15 years. The Company recognizes the initial nonrefundable fees over the term of the franchise
agreements on an output method based on time elapsed, corresponding with the customer’s right to use the franchise for the term of the agreement. A franchisee may elect to
renew the term of a franchise agreement and, if approved, will typically pay a renewal fee upon execution of the renewal term.

Franchise-related Advertising Fund Revenue

Franchise-related advertising fund revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from domestic and international franchise agreements that typically require the
franchisee to pay advertising fees on a continuous monthly basis based on a percentage of franchisee net sales, which are recognized based on fees earned each period. Total
advertising fund revenue for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022 is $3.6 million $3.8
million, $4.3 million $3.6 million, and $8.1 million $4.3 million, respectively.

Gift Card Sales

The Company and its franchisees sell gift cards that are redeemable for products in the Company-owned or franchise shops. The Company manages the gift card program and
collects all funds from the activation of gift cards and reimburses franchisees for the redemption of gift cards in their shops. Deferred revenue for unredeemed gift cards is included
in Accrued liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the gross amount of deferred revenue
recognized for unredeemed gift cards was $26.4 million $29.6 million and $22.5 million $26.4 million, respectively. Gift cards sold do not have an expiration date or service fees
charged. The likelihood of redemption may be determined to be remote for certain cards due to long periods of inactivity. In these circumstances, the Company recognizes revenue
from unredeemed gift cards (“breakage revenue”) within Product sales if they are not subject to unclaimed property laws. The Company estimates breakage for the portfolio of gift
cards and recognizes it based on the estimated pattern of gift card use. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, deferred revenue, net of
breakage revenue recognized, was $11.9 million $12.1 million and $11.2 million $11.9 million, respectively.

Gift card costs incurred to fulfill obligations under a contract are capitalized when such costs generate or enhance resources to be used in satisfying future performance obligations
and the costs are deemed recoverable. Judgement is used in determining whether certain contract costs can be capitalized. These costs are capitalized and amortized on a

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 66/265
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

systematic basis to match the timing of revenue recognition, depending on when the gift card is used. This amortization expense is recorded in Operating expenses in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the capitalized gift card costs were $1.5
million $1.8 million and $1.7 million $1.5 million, respectively.

Consumer Loyalty Program

Consumers can participate in spend-based loyalty programs. Consumers who join the loyalty programs will receive a credit or point for each purchase of eligible product. After
accumulating a certain number of credits or points, the consumers can redeem their credits or points for a free product. The Company defers revenue based on an estimated selling
price of the free product earned by the consumer and establishes a corresponding liability in deferred revenue. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2,
2022 January 1, 2023, the deferred revenue related to loyalty programs is $3.1 million $4.1 million and $2.3 million $3.1 million, respectively.

Revenue-based Taxes

The Company reports revenue net of any revenue-based taxes assessed by governmental authorities that are imposed on and concurrent with specific revenue-producing
transactions. The primary revenue-based taxes are sales tax and value-added tax (“VAT").

Product and Distribution Costs

Product and distribution costs include mainly raw material costs (principally sugar, flour, wheat, oil, and their derivatives) and production costs (including labor) related to doughnuts,
cookies, other sweet treats, doughnut mix, packaging, and logistics costs related to raw materials.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of expenses primarily related to Company-owned shops including payroll and benefit costs for service employees at Company-operated locations, rent
and utilities, expenses associated with Company operations, costs associated with procuring materials from vendors, and other shop-level operating costs.

Marketing Expenses

Costs associated with marketing the products, including advertising and other brand promotional activities, are expensed as incurred, and were approximately $42.6 million $45.9
million, $39.5 million $42.6 million, and $34.0 million $39.5 million in the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3,
2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

Pre-opening Costs

Pre-opening costs include labor, rent, utilities, and other expenses that are required as part of the set-up and use of a new shop, prior to generating sales. Pre-opening costs also
include costs to integrate acquired franchises back into the Company-owned model, which typically occur with the relevant shop closed over a one to three-day period subsequent
to acquisition. Pre-opening costs do not include expenses related to strategic planning (for example, new site lease negotiations), which are recorded in SG&A.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash equivalents consist of demand deposits in banks and short-term, highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

All credit and debit card transactions that are processed in less than five days are classified as Cash and cash equivalents. The amounts due from banks for these transactions
totaled $8.0 million $9.7 million and $8.5 million $8.0 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Restricted cash consists primarily of funds related to employee benefit plans.

Account Receivable, Net of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses

Accounts receivable relate primarily to payments due for sale of products, franchise fees, royalties, advertising fees, and licensing fees. The Company maintains allowances for
expected credit losses related to its accounts receivable, including receivables from franchisees, in amounts which the Company believes are sufficient to provide for losses
estimated to be sustained on realization of these receivables. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on relevant information about past events, including historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectibility of amounts from customers. Such estimates inherently involve uncertainties
and assessments of the outcome of future events, and changes in facts and circumstances may result in adjustments to the allowance for expected credit losses. The Company had
allowance for expected credit losses of $0.3 million $0.6 million and $0.9 million $0.3 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist principally of receivables from Branded Sweet Treat Line and DFD customers and franchisees. Branded Sweet
Treat Line and DFD receivables are primarily from grocer/mass merchants and convenience stores. For the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2,
2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, no customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue or a significant amount of receivables that would result in a
concentration.

Management also evaluates the recoverability of receivables from the franchisees and maintains allowances for expected credit losses. Management believes these allowances are
sufficient to provide for realized losses that may be sustained on realization of these receivables.
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Inventories

Inventories, which consist of raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, and purchased merchandise, are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value, where cost is
determined using the first-in, first-out method. Raw materials inventory
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also includes doughnut equipment spare parts. Finished goods and purchased merchandise are net of reserves for excess or obsolete finished goods, which goods. These reserves
totaled $2.7 million $2.0 million and $3.7 million $2.7 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable relate primarily to expected refunds of VAT as well as prepayments of income taxes to governmental authorities.

Prepaid Expense and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expense and other current assets consist primarily of prepaid assets related to service contracts and insurance premiums of $17.0 million $20.7 million and $19.6
million $17.0 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of impairment. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the respective assets.

The lives used in computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 20 to 35 years
Machinery and equipment 3to 15 years
Computer software 2to 7 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

The Company assesses long-lived fixed asset groups for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows, the Company records an impairment charge in an amount equal to the excess of
the carrying value of the assets over their estimated fair value.

Impairment charges related to the Company’s long-lived assets were $8.4 million $18.1 million, $2.9 million $8.4 million, and $0.3 million $2.9 million for the fiscal years ended
January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively. Such charges related to underperforming shops, shops
closed or likely to be closed, and shops which management believes will not generate sufficient future cash flows to enable the Company to recover the carrying value of the shops’
assets, but has not yet decided to close. The impaired shop assets include real properties, the fair values of which were estimated based on independent appraisals or, in the case
of any properties which the Company is negotiating to sell, based on its negotiations with unrelated third-party buyers; leasehold improvements, which are typically abandoned when
the leased properties revert to the lessor; and doughnut-making and other equipment the fair values of which were estimated based on the replacement cost of the equipment, after
considering refurbishment and transportation costs. The impairment charges are primarily attributable to the U.S. and Canada segment and are included within Other
expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Leases

Contracts entered into by the Company are evaluated to determine whether such contracts contain leases. A contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of identified property, plant, and equipment for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At commencement, contracts containing a lease are further evaluated for
classification as an operating or finance lease based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification determines
whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease term and incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) for each lease requires judgement by management and can impact the classification of leases as well as the value of the
lease assets and liabilities. When determining the lease term, management considers option periods available, and includes option periods in the measurement of the lease right of
use asset and lease liability where the exercise is reasonably certain to occur. The Company uses the rate implicit in the lease whenever that rate is readily determinable. If the rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. IBR.
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Upon the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 842, Leases, the Company has elected to not separate the lease and non-lease components within the contract.
Therefore, all fixed payments associated with the lease are included in the right of use asset and the lease liability. These costs often relate to the payments for a proportionate
share of real estate taxes, insurance, common area maintenance and other operating costs in addition to a base rent. Any variable payments related to the lease are recorded as
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lease expense when and as incurred. The Company has elected this practical expedient for its real estate, vehicles and equipment leases. The Company has also elected the short-
term lease expedient. A short-term lease is a lease that, as of the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less and does not include an option to purchase the
underlying asset that the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise. For such leases, the Company will not apply the recognition requirements of ASC 842 and instead will recognize
the lease payments as lease cost on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the same manner as long-lived fixed assets, the Company assesses lease right of use assets for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of the right of use assets exceeds the sum of their undiscounted cash flows, the Company records an
impairment charge in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value of the assets over their estimated fair value. If a lease contract is terminated before the expiration of the
lease term the remaining right of use asset and lease liability are derecognized, with any difference recognized as a gain or loss on lease termination. If the Company is required to
make any payments or receives consideration when terminating the lease, it would include such amounts in the determination of the gain or loss upon termination. For the fiscal
years ending January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022 the Company recorded lease impairment and lease
termination costs of $8.2 million $6.6 million, $0.6 million $8.2 million and $4.4 million $0.6 million, respectively, which are included within Other expenses/(income), net on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in a business combination. For each reporting unit, the Company
assesses goodwill for impairment annually at the beginning of the fourth quarter or more frequently when impairment indicators are present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, the Company recognizes an impairment charge for the difference up to the carrying value of the allocated goodwill. The value is estimated under a discounted
cash flow approach, which incorporates assumptions regarding future growth rates, terminal values and discount rates. For the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, there were no goodwill impairment charges.

Other intangible assets primarily represent the trade names for the Company'’s brands, franchise agreements (domestic and international), reacquired franchise rights, and customer
relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite useful life and are reviewed annually for impairment. All other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever triggering events or indicators of potential impairment occur. The
Company recognized impairment charges to other intangible assets of $0.2 million and $0.8 million for the fiscal yearyears ended December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023,
respectively, related to franchise agreement terminations, including Russia. Russia in fiscal 2022. There were no impairment charges to other intangible assets for the fiscal
years year ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities include accrued compensation, accrued legal fees, accrued utilities, accrued marketing, and other accrued liabilities. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023
and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, accrued compensation and benefits included in the Accrued liabilities balance was $28.0 million $42.6 million and $41.0 million $28.0 million,
respectively.

Supply Chain Financing Program

The Company has undertaken broad efforts to improve its working capital, in part by negotiating longer payment terms with vendors. The Company has an
agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track payments from the Company, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment
obligations from the Company to financial institutions (the “Supply Chain Financing Program” “supply chain financing program” or the “SCF Program’” program”). The Company’s
typical payment terms for trade payables range up to 180 days outside of the SCF Program, depending on the type of vendors and the nature of the supplies or services. For
vendors under the SCF Program, the Company has established payable terms ranging up to, but not exceeding, 360 days. When participating vendors elect to sell one or more of
the Company’s payment obligations, the rights and obligations of the Company to settle its payables on their contractual due date are not impacted. The Company has no economic
or commercial interest in a vendor’s decision to enter into these agreements and the financial institutions do not provide incentives such as rebates or profit sharing to the Company
under the SCF Program. The Company and vendors agree agrees on commercial terms with vendors for the goods and services procured, which are consistent with payment terms
observed at other peer
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companies in the industry. The Company’'s obligations to its vendors, including amounts due,industry, and as the terms are not impacted by the SCF Program and thus
remain program, such obligations are classified as Accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Sheets and the associated cash flows are included in operating activities
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Refer to Note 7, Vendor Finance Programs, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Cards Program

The Company utilizes various purchase cards issued by financial institutions to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By using the cards, the Company receives rebates and
differing levels of discounts based on timing of repayment. The payment obligations under these purchased cards are classified as Structured payables on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and constitute the entire Structured payables balance. The associated cash flows are included in the financing section of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Refer
to Note 7, Vendor Finance Programs, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.
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Share-based Compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for share-based payment awards based on the fair value of each award at its grant date and recognizes expense
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award, including for those awards with a graded vesting schedule. The Company accounts for forfeitures of
share-based compensation awards as they occur. Compensation expense is included in Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value

The accounting standards for fair value measurements define fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The accounting standards for fair value measurements
establish a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

« Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible as of the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for
identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

* Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value measurement of the assets or liabilities. These include
certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

The Company'’s financial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
are reflected in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements at cost which approximates fair value for these items due to their short-term nature. Management believes the fair
value determination of these short-term financial instruments is a Level 1 measure. The Company’s other assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
include long-lived assets, lease right of use assets, goodwill, and other indefinite-live intangible assets, if determined to be impaired. Refer to the Property and Equipment, net policy
section in Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, for information about impairment
charges on long-lived assets. The fair values of assets evaluated for impairment were determined using an income-based approach and are classified as Level 3 measures within
the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Management reflects derivative financial instruments, which typically consist of interest rate derivatives, foreign currency derivatives, and fuel commodity derivatives in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value. For interest rate derivatives, changes in fair value are reflected in other comprehensive income as the Company applies cash flow
hedge accounting. Consistent with the classification of interest paid, cash flows from interest rate derivatives are classified as operating on the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows. The changes in the fair values of the foreign currency and fuel commodity derivatives are reflected in income as the Company does not apply hedge accounting to those
derivatives.
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Self-Insurance Risks and Receivables from Insurers

The Company is subject to workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liability claims. The Company is self-insured for the cost of workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general
liability claims up to the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased by the Company from commercial insurance carriers. The Company maintains accruals for the estimated
cost of claims, without regard to the effects of stop-loss coverage, using actuarial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported claims and consider historical
loss development experience. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company had approximately $17.7 million $21.0 million and
$14.7 million $17.7 million, respectively, reserved for such programs. The liability recorded for assessments has not been discounted. In addition, the Company records receivables
from the insurance carriers for claims amounts estimated to be recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimable and probable of collection. The
Company estimates such stop-loss receivables using the same actuarial methods used to establish the related claims accruals and considering the amount of risk transferred to the
carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies provide coverage for claims in excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are determined on a claim-by-claim basis.
Inclusive of the receivables from the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liability balance was $8.4 million $10.8 million and $7.5 million $8.4 million as of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Preferred Stock
The Company has 50.0 million shares of authorized preferred stock with $0.01 par value per share. There were no shares of preferred stock issued nor outstanding as of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023.

Earnings (Loss) per Share (EPS)

The Company discloses two calculations of earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”): basic EPS and diluted EPS. The numerator in calculating common stock basic and diluted EPS is net
income (loss) attributable to the Company. The denominator in calculating common stock basic EPS is the weighted average shares outstanding. The denominator in calculating
common stock diluted EPS includes the additional dilutive effect of unvested RSUs, PSUs, and time-vested stock options when the effect is not antidilutive. Refer to Note 1718, Net
Loss per Share, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Reclassifications
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On Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the Company’s management reviews financial information for operational decision-making purposes. Effective January
2, 2023, the Company realigned its segment reporting structure such that the Company-owned Canada business has moved from the U.S. and Canada reportable operating
segment to the Market Development reportable operating segment. As a result, the U.S. and Canada reportable operating segment has been renamed to the U.S. reportable
operating segment. All segment information has been restated to be consistent with current presentation.

Exiting the Branded Sweet Treats Business

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, the Company decided to exit its pre-packaged Branded Sweet Treats business due in part to its dilutive impact on profit margins,
as well as to allow the Company to focus on its fresh doughnuts business. As such, the Company recognized non-recurring expenses, including property, plant and equipment
impairments, inventory write-offs, employee severance, and other related costs, totaling approximately $17.9 million (gross of income taxes) in fiscal 2023. Of these expenses,
$10.1 million were recorded within Product and distribution costs, primarily relating to inventory write-offs, and the rest were recorded within Other expenses/(income), net on the on
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Marketing expenses have been
reclassified (formerly presented within Selling, general —Significant Events and administrative expense) Transactions” included in Item 7 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K for further information.

Exploring Strategic Alternatives for Insomnia Cookies

On October 3, 2023, the Company announced it is exploring strategic alternatives for Insomnia Cookies, to be consistent with include considering a sale. This decision would enable
the current year presentation. This reclassification does not have a significant impact Company to unlock shareholder value and focus on its core strategy of producing, selling, and
distributing fresh doughnuts daily. As of the reported financial position and does not impactdate of issuance of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the results of operations or cash
flows. Company continues to explore strategic alternatives.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted

Accounting_Standards Adopted at the Beginning of Fiscal Year 2023

In March 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on
Financial Reporting, which provides companies with optional guidance

to ease the potential accounting burden associated with transitioning away from reference rates that are expected to be discontinued. It was effective for all entities as of March 12,
2020 through December 31, 2022. A company may elect to apply the amendments for contract modifications as of any date from the beginning of an interim period that includes or
is subsequent to March 12, 2020, or prospectively from a date within an interim period that includes or is subsequent to March 12, 2020, up to the date that the financial statements
are available to be issued. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848, which provides
optional guidance to ease the potential burden in accounting for (or recognizing the effects of) reference rate reform by delaying the effective date of the guidance issued in ASU
2020-04 to December 31, 2024. As described in Note 8, Long-Term Debt, during the quarter ended April 2, 2023 the Company refinanced its debt with interest to be calculated
prospectively with reference to SOFR, and accordingly adopted this standard, which did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilites — Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50): Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program Obligations, which requires
certain disclosures be made by a buyer in a supplier finance program, including the key terms of the program and, for the obligations that the buyer has confirmed as valid to the
finance provider, the amount outstanding that remains unpaid by the buyer as of the end of the fiscal period, a description of where those obligations are presented in the balance
sheet, and a rollforward of those obligations during the fiscal period. It is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within
those fiscal years, except for the amendment on rollforward information, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. Early adoption is permitted. As such,
the Company adopted this standard in the quarter ended April 2, 2023 and has disclosed the required information in Note 7, Vendor Finance Programs, other than the rollforward
information which is not effective until fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.

Accounting_Standards Adopted at the Beginning of Fiscal Year 2022

In November 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-10, Government Assistance (Topic 832): Disclosures by Business Entities about Government Assistance, which requires certain
disclosures to be made when an entity receives government assistance, including the types of assistance, an entity’s accounting for the assistance, and the effect of the assistance
on an entity’s financial statements. It is effective for all entities for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The adoption of this standard
did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers, which
prescribes the measurement of acquired contract assets and contract liabilities arising from revenue contracts with customers recognized in a business combination. It is effective
for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The amendments in this update should be applied
prospectively to business combinations occurring on or after the effective date of the amendments. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The adoption
of this standard did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740) Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. ASU 2019-12 simplifies the accounting for income taxes
by removing certain exceptions in Topic 740 and clarifying and amending existing guidance. It is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2020, and
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periods within those fiscal years. There are several adoption methods for different amendments in this ASU, including retrospective method for amendments related to separate
financial statements of legal entities that are not subject to tax, modified retrospective method for amendments related to changes in ownership of foreign equity method investments
or subsidiaries, either retrospective or modified retrospective method for amendments related to franchise taxes that are partially based on income and prospective method for all
other amendments. The adoption of this standard did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

Accounting_Standards Adopted at the Beginning_of Fiscal Year 2020

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU enables
financial statement users to obtain more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by a
reporting entity as of each reporting date. This ASU replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and
requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this standard did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

Not Yet Adopted

In March 2020, November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, 2023-07, Reference Rate Reform Segment Reporting (Topic 848) 280): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which provides companies with optional guidance requires a public entity to ease the potential
accounting burden associated with transitioning away from reference rates disclose significant segment expenses and other segment items on an annual and interim basis and
provide in interim periods all disclosures about a reportable segment’s profit or loss and assets that are expected currently required annually. Additionally, it requires a public entity to
be discontinued. Itdisclose the title and position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The ASU does not change how a public entity identifies its operating segments,
aggregates them, or applies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The new standard is effective for all entities as of March 12, 2020 through December
31, 2022. fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. A company may elect to public entity
should apply the amendments for contract modifications by as of any date from the beginning of an interim period that includes or is subsequentin this standard retrospectively to
March 12, 2020, or prospectively from a date within an interim period that includes or is subsequent to March 12, 2020, up to the date thatall prior periods presented in the financial
statements are available statements. We expect this standard to be issued. impact our segment disclosures, but with no impacts to our results of operations, cash flows, and
financial condition.

In December 2022,2023, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848,2023-09, which provides optional
guidance Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to ease the potential burden in accounting for (or recognizing the effects of) reference rate reform by delaying the effective date
of the guidance issued in ASU 2020-04 to December 31, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the new guidance on its Consolidated Financial Statements and
related disclosures.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilities - Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50): Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program Obligations Income Tax
Disclosures, which focuses on the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosures. The standard requires a public business entity (“PBE”) to disclose, on an annual basis, a
tabular rate reconciliation using both percentages and currency amounts, broken out into specified categories with certain disclosures be madereconciling items further
disaggregated by a buyer in a supplier finance program, including the key terms of the program nature and for the obligations that the buyer has confirmed as valid jurisdiction to the
finance provider, extent those items exceed a specified threshold. In addition, all entities are required to disclose income taxes paid, net of refunds received disaggregated by
federal, state, and foreign and by individual jurisdiction if the amount outstanding that remains unpaid by is at least 5% of total income tax payments, net of refunds received. For
PBEs, the buyer as of the end of the fiscal period, a description of where those obligations are presented in the balance sheet, and a rollforward of those obligations during the fiscal
period. Itstandard is effective for all entities for fiscal years annual periods beginning after December 15, 2022 December 15, 2024, including interim periods within those fiscal
years, except forwith early adoption permitted. An entity should apply the amendment on rollforward information, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2023. Early adoption isamendments in this standard prospectively, with retrospective application permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect We expect this standard
to impact our income tax disclosures, but with no impacts to our results of the new guidance on its Consolidated Financial Statementsoperations, cash flows, and related
disclosures. financial condition.

There are other new accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB that the Company has adopted or will adopt, as applicable, and the Company does not believe any of these
accounting pronouncements have had, or will have, a material impact on its audited Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosures.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

The Company strategically acquires companies in order to increase its footprint and sell products that diversify its existing offerings. These acquisitions are accounted for as
business combinations using the acquisition method, whereby the purchase price is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their estimated fair values as
of the date of the acquisition.
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Transaction-related expenses as a result of these acquisitions, which exclude costs incurred to integrate the acquired entities, were recorded within Operating income in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations (primarily Selling, general and administrative expenses) during the fiscal year such costs were incurred.

Table of Contents

Goodwill recognized for these acquisitions represents the intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition and primarily includes the acquired customer base, the
acquired workforce including shop partners in the region that have strong relationships with these customers, and the existing geographic shop and Ecommerce presence.

2023 Acquisitions

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, there were no acquisitions accounted for as business combinations.

Equity Method Investment in KK France

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company invested approximately $1.4 million in cash to maintain a 33% noncontrolling ownership interest in Krispy Kreme Doughnuts France
SAS (“KK France”). As the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over KK France, but it does not exercise control, the investment is accounted for using the equity
method, and equity method earnings are recognized within Other expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2022 Acquisitions
Acquisition of Krispy Kreme U.S. Shops in 2022

In the third quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of one franchisee, consisting of seven Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. (with one shop
under construction). The Company paid total consideration of $19.4 million, consisting of $17.3 million of cash at the acquisition date, $1.2 million of consideration payable to the
sellers within 12 months of the acquisition date, and $0.9 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the shops’ assets.
Consideration payable of $1.2 million was withheld primarily to cover indemnification claims that could arise after closing. Absent any claims, these amounts are payable within 12
months of the acquisition date.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes receivable, net of deferred revenue, of $0.3 million. It
also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the franchisee recorded at time of the acquisition of Krispy Kreme by JAB Holding Company (“JAB”) (‘the JAB
Merger”). The cumulative net book value of the franchise intangible asset was $0.6 million at the acquisition date. The Company accounted for the transaction as a business
combination.

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition for the acquisition above.

KK U.S. Shops

Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7
Prepaid expense and other current assets 138
Property and equipment, net 1,542
Other intangible assets, net 11,203
Operating lease right of use asset, net 4,702
Deferred income taxes, net 2,566 2,678
Other assets 11

Total identified assets acquired 20,169 20,281
Liabilities assumed:
Accrued liabilities (106)
Current operating lease liabilities (221)
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities (4,481)

Total liabilities assumed (4,808)
Goodwill 4,087 3,975

Purchase consideration, net $ 19,448
Transaction costs in 2022 $ 840
Transaction costs in 2021 6
Reportable segment U.S. and Canada

During the measurement period, the Company will continue to obtain information to assist in determining the fair value of net assets acquired, which may differ materially from these
preliminary estimates. Measurement period adjustments, if applicable, will be applied in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined.
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The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition and include $3.7 million of total revenue and $0.3
million of net income attributable to the Company for fiscal year 2022. The amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could
have generated as revenue and expenses from the acquired franchisees during the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.
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Equity Method Investment in KK France

In the third quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company acquired a 33% noncontrolling ownership interest in the newly formed entity Krispy Kreme Doughnuts KK France, SAS (‘KK
France”), for approximately $1.0 million in cash. As the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over KK France, but it does not exercise control, the investment will
be accounted for using the equity method, and equity method earnings will be recognized within Other expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2021 Acquisitions
Acquisition of KK Canada

On October 4, 2021, the Company acquired a 60% controlling ownership interest in ten franchise shops in Canada, KK Canada, for total consideration of approximately $14.7
million, consisting of approximately $14.4 million in cash and approximately $0.3 million related to settlement of pre-existing relationships.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the franchisee recorded by the
Company in connection with the JAB Merger. The cumulative net book value of the franchise intangible asset was $0.3 million at the acquisition date. The Company accounted for
the transaction as a business combination.

Other intangible assets consist of reacquired franchise rights with an estimated useful life equal to the weighted average remaining franchise agreement term. A total of $0.1 million
of goodwill and reacquired franchise rights are expected to be deductible as goodwill for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the 40% noncontrolling interest in KK Canada was estimated to be $9.8 million. The fair value estimate was based on a total value of the equity in KK Canada
derived from the consideration paid by the Company for its equity interests.

Acquisition of Other Krispy Kreme Shops in 2021

In the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of two franchisees, collectively consisting of 17 Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. The
Company paid total consideration of $38.1 million, consisting of $33.9 million of cash at the respective acquisition dates, $0.9 million of consideration payable to the sellers within 12
months of the respective acquisition dates, and $3.3 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the shops’ assets.
Consideration payable of $0.9 million was withheld to cover indemnification claims that could arise after closing. Absent any claims, these amounts are payable within 12 months of
the respective acquisition dates.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes receivable, net of deferred revenue, of $0.6 million. It
also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the two franchisees recorded by the Company in connection with the JAB Merger. The cumulative net book
value of the franchise intangible assets was $2.7 million at the acquisition dates. The Company accounted for the transactions as business combinations.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition for the acquisitions above.

Total
Purchase
Price
Allocation Total Purchase
for Price Allocation
KK Canada KK U.S. Shops  Acquisitions KK Canada KK U.S. Shops for Acquisitions
Assets acquired: Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents $ 2,015 $ 40 $ 2,055
Prepaid expense Prepaid expense
and other current  and other current
assets assets 301 474 775
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Property and Property and
equipment, net equipment, net 2,365 3,829 6,194
Other intangible Other intangible
assets, net assets, net 6,873 23,906 30,779
Operating lease Operating lease
right of use asset,  right of use asset,
net net 2,894 19,292 22,186
Other assets Other assets 103 897 1,000
Total Total
identified identified
assets assets
acquired acquired 14,551 48,438 62,989
Liabilities assumed: Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable  Accounts payable (1,639) — (1,639)
Accrued liabilities ~ Accrued liabilities (489) (334) (823)
Current operating  Current operating
lease liabilities lease liabilities (554) (2,093) (2,647)
Noncurrent Noncurrent
operating lease operating lease
liabilities liabilities (2,327) (17,199)  (19,526)
Deferred income Deferred income
taxes, net taxes, net (2,021) — (2,021)
Total Total
liabilities liabilities
assumed assumed (7,030) (19,626) (26,656)
Goodwill Goodwill 17,036 9,254 26,290
Noncontrolling Noncontrolling
interest interest (9,822) — (9,822)
Purchase Purchase
consideration, consideration,
net net $ 14,735 38,066 $ 52,801
Transaction costs in Transaction costs in
2021 2021 $ 2,502 1,251 $ 3,753
Transaction costs in Transaction costs in
2020 2020 24 184 208

Reportable segment Reportable segment U.S. and Canada U.S. and Canada

The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition and include $44.1 million of total revenue and
$4.3 million of net income attributable to the Company for fiscal year 2021. The amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company
could have generated as revenue and expenses from the acquired franchisees during the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

2020 Acquisitions
Acquisition of KK Japan
On December 8, 2020, the Company acquired all equity interests in Krispy Kreme Doughnut Japan Co., Ltd. (‘KK Japan”). KK Japan holds the franchise and development rights of

the Krispy Kreme brand for the territory of Japan. At the time of acquisition, KK Japan manufactured and distributed doughnuts through 44 shops and through wholesale channels.

Acquisition-date fair value of consideration transferred was $3.8 million, consisting of settlement of pre-existing relationships, including the write-off of deferred revenue of ($0.1
million) and the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the KK Japan franchisee recorded by the Company in connection with the JAB Merger. The net book value of the
franchise intangible asset was $3.9 million as of the date of the acquisition of KK Japan.

The Company calculated an excess of estimated fair values of net assets acquired over the acquisition consideration paid, resulting in a bargain purchase gain of $0.7 million. The
bargain purchase gain, which is primarily the result of favorable purchase terms due to KK Japan’s historical net losses from operations, was recorded within Other
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expenses/(income), net in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the fiscal year 2020.
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Acquisition of Other Krispy Kreme Shops in 2020

In 2020, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of an additional eight franchisees, collectively consisting of 51 Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. The Company paid
total consideration of $89.9 million, consisting of $80.4 million cash and $9.5 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the
shops’ assets. The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes receivable, net of deferred revenue, of
$2.6 million. It also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the eight franchisees recorded by the Company in connection with the JAB Merger. The net book
value of the franchise intangible asset was a cumulative $6.9 million as of the dates of acquisition of the franchisees.

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition for the 2020 acquisitions as well as the acquired
businesses’ impact on consolidated results in the year of acquisition.

Total Purchase

Price Allocation

KK Japan KK U.S. Shops for Acquisitions

Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,340 $ 112 $ 5,452
Accounts receivable, net 3,322 — 3,322
Inventories 354 779 1,133
Prepaid expense and other current assets 469 23 492
Property and equipment, net 1,029 16,585 17,614
Other intangible assets, net — 48,011 48,011
Operating lease right of use asset, net 12,260 38,096 50,356
Other assets 3,975 3,699 7,674

Total identified assets acquired 26,749 107,305 134,054
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (2,522) — (2,522)
Accrued liabilities (3,049) (1,656) (4,705)
Current operating lease liabilities (4,430) (2,968) (7,398)
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities (7,861) (35,128) (42,989)
Deferred income taxes, net (1,966) = (1,966)
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits (2,468) — (2,468)

Total liabilities assumed (22,296) (39,752) (62,048)
Goodwill — 22,411 22,411
Bargain purchase gain (688) — (688)

Purchase consideration, net $ 3,765 $ 89,964 $ 93,729
Transaction costs in 2020 (approx.) $ 3,192 $ 4,636 $ 7,828
Reportable segment(s) Market Development U.S. and Canada

The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition and include $38.5 million of total revenue and $0.3
million of net income attributable to the Company for fiscal year 2020. The amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could
have generated as revenue and expenses from the acquired franchisees during the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.
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Supplemental unaudited pro forma information

The following unaudited pro forma information presents estimated combined results of the Company as if the 2022 acquisitions had occurred on January 4, 2021, and the 2021
acquisitions had occurred on December 30, 2019, and the 2020 acquisitions had occurred on December 31, 2018:

Fiscal Years Ended
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January 1, January 2, January 3,
2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

December

31, 2023 December 31, 2023

Revenue Revenue $1,529,898 $1,384,391 $1,151,041

Loss Loss

before  before

income income

taxes taxes (8,163) (4,098) (48,788)

The amounts in the supplemental pro forma earnings for the fiscal years presented above reflect adjustments for transaction costs, franchise royalties and related expenses, and
amortization that would have been charged assuming the same fair value adjustments to acquired intangibles. The acquisitions of KK Canada and “Other Krispy Kreme U.S. Shops”
are not material to the Company’s financial statements, and therefore, the supplemental pro forma financial information related to these acquisitions is not included herein. These
supplemental pro forma results are unaudited and are not necessarily indicative of results of operations that would have occurred had the acquisitions actually closed in the prior

period. The pro forma results are also not indicative of results of operations for any future period.

Note 3 — Accounts Receivable, net
The components of Accounts receivable, net are as follows:

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
December 31,
2023 December 31, 2023
Trade Trade
receivables, receivables,
net net $40,131 $41,132
Other Other
receivables, receivables,
net net 10,262 5,936

Receivables Receivables

from related  from related

parties, net  parties, net 696 423
Total Total
accounts accounts
receivable, receivable,

net et $51,089 $47,491

Receivables from related parties, net includes receivables from equity method investees. Refer to Note 1516, Related Party Transactions, to the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements for further information.

Note 4 — Inventories
The components of Inventories are as follows:

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023
Raw materials Raw materials $20,713 $15,278
Work in Work in
progress progress 476 700
Finished goods and
purchased merchandise 25,050 18,873
Finished
goods and
purchased

merchandise
@
Total Total
inventories  inventories $46,239 $34,851
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@ During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023, January 1, 2023, and January 2, 2022, the Company recognized inventory write-offs of $11.2 million, $0.9 million, and $4.1
million respectively. The inventory write-offs in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily related to the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats business.
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Note 5 — Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment, net consist of the following:

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023
Land Land $ 11,534 $ 12,931
Buildings Buildings 154,768 146,923

Leasehold Leasehold

improvements improvements 216,507 195,129
Machinery Machinery

and and

equipment  equipment 282,222 243,673
Computer Computer

software software 66,054 43,985
Construction  Construction

and projects in and projects in

progress progress 62,405 60,940
Property and Property and

equipment, equipment,

gross gross 793,490 703,581
Less: Less:

Accumulated Accumulated

depreciation depreciation (321,132) (264,663)

Total Total

property property

and and

equipment, equipment,

net net $472,358 $438,918

Computer software includes $9.6 million $10.4 million and $4.7 million $9.6 million of costs to develop, code, test and license software under hosting arrangements as of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively. Software under hosting arrangements consists primarily of solutions that empower the Company’s
consumer-facing website and mobile application. Total depreciation expense was $76.8 million $88.9 million, $68.6 million $76.8 million, and $51.5 million $68.6 million in the fiscal
years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment are as follows:

U.S. and Market
Canada International Development Total
Balance as of January 3, 2021 $642,704 $290,872 $ 152,970 $1,086,546
Acquisitions 45,328 — (19,038) 26,290
Measurement period
adjustments related to
fiscal year 2020
acquisitions 82 — — 82
Foreign currency impact (66) (7,530) — (7,596)
u.s. u.s. International Market Development Total
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Balance as of Balance as of
January 2,
2022

January 2,
2022 688,048 283,342

8,504 =

133,932
(4,417)

1,105,322

Acquisitions Acquisitions 4,087
Measurement period

adjustments related to

fiscal year 2021

acquisitions — — — —
Foreign currency impact
Foreign currency impact

Foreign
currency
impact

Foreign
currency

impact (1,041)  (20,460) —  (21,501)

Balance as of Balance as of
January 1, January 1,

2023 2023 $695,511 $262,882 $ 129,515 $1,087,908

Measurement period
adjustments related to
fiscal year 2022
acquisitions
Measurement period
adjustments related to
fiscal year 2022
acquisitions
Measurement period
adjustments related to
fiscal year 2022
acquisitions
Foreign
currency
impact
Balance as of
December 31,
2023

Acquisitions of franchises result in a reclassification of goodwill between segments.
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Other Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets consist of the following:

January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization ~Amount Amount Amortization

December 31, 2023

Net

Amount

December 31, 2023

January 1, 2023

Gross Gross
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets with
indefinite  indefinite
lives lives
Trade name
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Trade name

Trade name Trade name $ 657,900 $ — $657,900 $ 657,900 $ — $657,900
Intangible Intangible

assets with assets with

definite definite

lives lives

Franchise  Franchise

agreements agreements 30,632 (9,372) 21,260 32,545 (8,369) 24,176
Franchise agreements

Franchise agreements

Customer  Customer

relationships relationships 15,000 (5,548) 9,452 15,000 (4,684) 10,316
Reacquired franchise

rights 383,002 (105,526) 277,476 384,305 (84,177) 300,128
Reacquired

franchise

rights o

Website Website

development development

costs costs 6,500 (6,500) — 6,500 (6,500) —
Total Total

intangible intangible

assets with assets with

definite definite

lives lives 435,134 (126,946) 308,188 438,350 (103,730) 334,620
Total Total

intangible intangible

assets assets $1,093,034 $(126,946) $966,088 $1,096,250 $(103,730) $992,520

@ Reacquired franchise rights include the impact of foreign currency fluctuations associated with the respective countries.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets included in Depreciation and amortization expense was $28.5 million $29.4 million, $29.8 million $28.5 million, and $26.3

million $29.8 million for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 is as follows:
Estimated

amortization Estimated

Fiscal year Fiscal year expense Fiscal year amortization expense
2023 $ 28,820

2024 2024 29,050

2025 2025 28,820

2026 2026 28,660

2027 2027 28,637

2028

Thereafter Thereafter 164,201

Total Total $308,188

The aforementioned estimates do not reflect the impact of future foreign exchange rate changes.

Note 7 — Vendor Finance Programs

The following table presents liabilities related to vendor finance programs which the Company participates in as a buyer as of December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023:

December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 Balance Sheet Location

Supply chain financing programs $ 51,239 $ 159,426 Accounts payable
Structured payables programs 130,104 103,575 Structured payables
Total Liabilities $ 181,343 $ 263,001
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Supply Chain Financing Programs

The Company has an agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track payments from the Company, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to
sell payment obligations from the Company to financial institutions as part of the SCF program. The Company'’s typical payment terms for trade payables range up to 180 days
outside of the SCF program, depending on the type of vendors and the nature of the supplies or services. For vendors under the SCF program, the Company has established
payable terms ranging up to, but not exceeding, 360 days. When participating vendors elect to sell

Table one or more of Contentsthe Company’s payment obligations, the Company’s rights and obligations to settle the payables on their contractual due date are not impacted. The
Company has no economic or commercial interest in a vendor’s decision to enter into these agreements and the financial institutions do not provide the Company with incentives
such as rebates or profit sharing to the Company under the SCF program. The Company and vendors agree on commercial terms for the goods and services procured, which are
consistent with payment terms observed at other peer companies in the industry. The Company’s obligations to its vendors, including amounts due, are not impacted by the SCF
program and thus remain classified as Accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the associated cash flows are included in operating activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Structured Payables Programs

The Company utilizes various card products issued by financial institutions to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By using these products, the Company may receive
differing levels of rebates based on timing of repayment. The payment obligations under these card products are classified as Structured payables on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and the associated cash flows are included in financing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Note 78 — Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt obligations consists of the following:
As of
January January
1, 2,
2023 2022
December 31,
2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023
2023
Facility —
term loan
2023
Facility —
revolving
credit
facility
Short-term
lines of
credit
2019 2019
Facility -  Facility -
term loan term loan $586,250 $621,250
2019 2019
Facility -  Facility -
revolving  revolving
credit credit
facility facility 162,500 75,000
Less: Debt Less: Debt
issuance issuance
costs costs (2,247) (3,833)
Financing Financing
obligations obligations 32,583 24,473
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Total Total
long-term long-term
debt debt 779,086 716,890

Less: Less:

Current  Current

portion of portion of

long-term long-term

debt debt (40,034) (36,583)
Long- Long-

term term

debt, less debt, less

current current
portion portion $739,052 $680,307

2023 and 2019 Secured Credit FacilityFacilities

In June 2019, March 2023, the Company entered into a $1.0 billion credit agreement (the “2023 Facility”) consisting of a $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility that
provided forand a term loan with a principal amount of $700.0 million $700.0 million. The initial proceeds of the 2023 Facility were used, in part, to refinance the loans and a $300.0
million senior secured revolvingcommitments under the Company’s existing credit facility (collectively, the agreement (the “2019 Facility”)., and thereupon terminate the 2019
Facility. The loans and commitments under the 2019 Facility were due to mature in June 2024, and the loans and commitments under the 2023 Facility will mature in March 2028. In
addition to refinancing the loans and commitments under the 2019 Facility, loans made pursuant to the 2023 Facility may be used for general corporate purposes of the Company
(including, but not limited to, financing working capital needs, capital expenditures, acquisitions, other investments, dividends, and stock repurchases) and for any other purpose not
prohibited under the related loan documents. The 2023 Facility is secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the Company’s personal property assets, certain real
properties, and all of the Company’s domestic wholly-owned wholly owned subsidiaries.

The Company capitalized $10.9 million $7.5 million of debt issuance costs related to the 20192023 Facility, $8.0 million $5.3 million of which is related to the term loan and $2.9
million $2.2 million related to the revolving credit facility.

As a result of the Company’s IPO in July 2021, Additionally, the Company amended recognized $0.5 million expenses during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 related to
unamortized debt issuance costs from the 2019 Facility to allow for financial reporting at associated with extinguished lenders, which are included in Interest expense, net in the KKI
legal entity level Consolidated Statements of Operations.

After consideration of outstanding borrowings and to allow for KKI to be guarantor letters of credit secured by the obligations 2023 Facility, the Company had $145.0 million of its
subsidiary Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc. available borrowing capacity under the 2019 Facility.

revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2023. After consideration of outstanding borrowings and letters of credit secured by the 2019 Facility, the Company had $137.5 million
and $225.0 million $137.5 million of available borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility as of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, respectively. .

The 20192023 Facility provides for quarterly scheduled principal payments on the term loan and repayment of all outstanding balances on the term loan and revolving credit facility
at maturity, June 13, 2024 March 23, 2028. Further, the Company may be required to prepay additional amounts annually upon the occurrence of a prepayment event as defined in
the 2019 2023 Facility. Because the amounts of any such future repayments are not currently determinable, they are excluded from the long-term debt maturities schedule below.

Interest on borrowings The terms of the 2023 Facility are substantially similar to those of the 2019 Facility, except for the maturity date and the benchmark interest rate. Borrowings
under the 2023 Facility are generally subject to an interest rate of adjusted term SOFR plus a credit spread adjustment of 0.10% plus (i) 2.25% if the Company’s leverage ratio (as
defined in the 2023 Facility) equals or exceeds 4.00 to 1.00, (ii) 2.00% if the Company’s leverage ratio is less than 4.00 to 1.00 but greater than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00, or (iii)
1.75% if the Company'’s leverage ratio is less than 3.00 to 1.00. As of December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023, the unhedged interest rate was 7.46% under the 2023 Facility and
4.44% under the 2019 Facility, is payable either at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) rounded up to the next 1/16% respectively. As of 1% or the Alternate Base Rate
(which is the greatest December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023, $505.0 million out of the prime rate, the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, or the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.00%),
in each case plus the Applicable Rate. The Applicable Rate for LIBOR loans ranges from 1.75% to 2.25%, $682.5 million term loan balance and for Base Rate loans ranges from
0.75% to 1.25%, in each case depending on the Company’s leverage ratio. All borrowings outstanding under the 2019 Facility as of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022 were
LIBOR loans. As of both January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, the Applicable Rate was 2.00%. As of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, the LIBOR rate was 4.44% and 0.13%,
respectively, under the 2019 Facility. As of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, $505.0 million out of the $586.3 million term loan balance, and $505.0 million out of the $621.3
million term loan balance, respectively, was hedged. hedged, with the interest rate swap agreements scheduled to mature in June 2024. The effective interest rate on the term loan
was approximately 5.45% 6.80% and 3.74% 5.45% for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively. Refer to Note
1011, Derivative Instruments to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the interest rate swap arrangements.

The 20192023 Facility allows the Company to obtain letters of credit without by applying those amounts against the usage of the senior secured revolving credit facility. If obtained,
the Company would be required to pay a fee equal to the Applicable Rate for LIBOR-based SOFR-based loans on the outstanding amount of letters of credit plus a fronting fee to
the issuing bank. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the senior secured revolving credit facility range from 0.25% to 0.375%, based on the Company’s leverage ratio. At
January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, the fee on the unused portion of the senior secured revolving credit
facility was 0.25%, included in Interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Restrictions and Covenants

The 2019 2023 Facility requires the Company to meet a maximum leverage ratio financial test. The leverage ratio was s required to be not greater less than 6.005.00 to 1.00 initially,
reducing in steps throughout the term as of the 2019 Facility ultimately to 5.00 to 1.00. end of each quarterly Test Period (as defined in the 2023 Facility) through maturity in March
2028. The leverage ratio under the 2019 2023 Facility was required to be below 5.25 to 1.00is defined as the ratio of January 1, 2023 and below 5.50 to 1.00 as of January 2, 2022,
and is calculated using Net Debt and Adjusted EBITDA as (a) Total Indebtedness (as defined in the 2019 Facility. 2023 Facility, which includes all debt and finance lease obligations)
minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to (b) a defined calculation of Adjusted EBITDA (“2023 Facility Adjusted EBITDA”") for the most recently ended Test Period. The 2023
Facility Adjusted EBITDA for purposes of these restrictive covenants includes incremental adjustments beyond those included in the Company’s Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP
measure. Specifically, the 2023 Facility Adjusted EBITDA definition includes pro forma impact of EBITDA to be received from new shop openings and acquisitions for periods not yet
in operation, certain acquisition related synergies and cost optimization activities, and incremental add-backs for pre-opening costs.

The 2019 2023 Facility also contains covenants which, among other things, generally limit (with certain exceptions): mergers, amalgamations, or consolidations; the incurrence of
additional indebtedness (including guarantees); the incurrence of additional liens; the sale, assignment, lease, conveyance, or transfer of assets; certain investments; dividends and
stock redemptions or repurchases in excess of certain amounts; transactions with affiliates; engaging in materially different lines of business; and other activities customarily
restricted in such agreements. The 2019 2023 Facility also prohibits the transfer of cash or other assets to the parent company, whether by dividend, loan, or otherwise, but provides
for exceptions to enable the parent company to pay taxes, directors’ fees, and operating expenses, as well as exceptions to permit dividends in respect of the Company’s common
stock and stock redemptions and repurchases, to the extent permitted by the 2019 2023 Facility. Substantially Subject to certain exceptions, the borrowings under the 2023 Facility
are collateralized by substantially all of the net Company’s assets of the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries were restricted as of January 1, 2023 (including its equity interests in
its subsidiaries). As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company was in compliance with the financial and other covenants related to
the 2023 Facility and 2019 Facility. Facility, respectively.

The 2019 2023 Facility also contains customary events of default including, but not limited to, payment defaults, breaches of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, non-
loan party indebtedness in excess of $35.0 million, certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency, judgment defaults in excess of $35.0 million, and the occurrence of a change of
control.

Borrowings and issuances of letters of credit under the 2019 2023 Facility are subject to the satisfaction of usual and customary conditions, including the accuracy of representations
and warranties and the absence of defaults.

The aggregate maturities of the 2019 2023 Facility for each of the following five years by fiscal year are as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Principal
year year Amount Fiscal year Principal Amount

2023 $35,000
2024 2024 713,750
2025 2025 —
2026 2026 —
2027 2027 —
2028

Short-Term Lines of Credit

In September 2023, the Company approved two new agreements with existing lenders providing for short-term, uncommitted lines of credit up to $25.0 million. Borrowings under
these short-term lines of credit are payable to the lenders on a revolving basis for tenors up to a maximum of three months and are subject to an interest rate of adjusted term SOFR
plus a credit spread adjustment of 0.10% plus a margin of 1.75%. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had drawn $11.0 million under the agreements which is classified within
Current portion of long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Term Loan Facility

On June 10, 2021, the Company entered into the Term Loan Facility. On June 17, 2021, the Company borrowed $500.0 million under the Term Loan Facility. The borrowings under
the Term Loan Facility bore an all-in interest rate of 2.68175%. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, there was no outstanding principal amount under the Term Loan Facility,
as it was paid off in full and terminated on July 7, 2021, primarily using the net IPO proceeds with the difference being partially funded by a drawdown of $100.0 million on the 2019
Facility’s revolving credit facility. The Term Loan Facility would have matured on the earlier of (i) June 10, 2022 and (ii) within four business days following consummation of the IPO.
The interest expense was $2.4 million for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022, which included $1.7 million of debt issuance costs incurred and recognized as expenses.

Cash Payments of Interest

Interest paid, inclusive of debt issuance costs, totaled $30.7 million $55.8 million, $44.3 million $30.7 million, and $33.5 million $44.3 million in the fiscal years ended January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.
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Financing Obligations

The Company has long-term financing obligations primarily in the form of lease obligations (related to both Company-owned and franchised restaurants). Refer to Note 89, Leases,
to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of the financing obligations.

Table of Contents

Note 89 — Leases

The Company has various lease agreements related to real estate, vehicles, and equipment. Its operating leases include real estate (buildings and ground), vehicles, and
equipment. Operating lease right of use assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the future lease payments over the term. The operating
lease right of use asset also includes accrued lease expense resulting from the straight-line accounting under prior accounting methods, which is now being amortized over the
remaining life of the lease.

The Company is the lessee on a number of ground leases and multiple building leases, which were classified as operating leases prior to the adoption of ASC 842, As the Company
elected the package of practical expedients upon adoption of ASC 842, the Company was not required to reassess the classification of these existing leases and as such, these
leases continue to be accounted for as operating leases. In the event the Company modifies the existing leases or enters into new ground or building leases in the future, such
leases may be classified as finance leases.

The Company'’s finance leases relate primarily to vehicles and equipment. The lease payments are largely fixed in nature. The Company is generally obligated for the cost of
property taxes, insurance, and common area maintenance relating to its leases, which are variable in nature. The Company determines the variable payments based on invoiced
amounts from lessors. The Company has elected to not apply the recognition requirements to leases of 12 months or less. These leases will be expensed on a straight-line basis,
and no operating lease liability will be recorded.

The Company included the following amounts related to operating and finance lease assets and liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of

January

January 1, 2023 2,2022

As of As of
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023
Assets Assets Classification
Operating lease
Operating lease
Operating
Operating Operating |ease right of
lease lease use asset, net $ 417,381 $435,168
Finance  Finance  Property and
lease lease equipment, net 26,958 19,298
Total
leased
assets Total leased assets $ 444,339 $454,466
Liabilities Liabilities
Liabilities
Liabilities
Current Current
Current
Current
Operating lease
Operating lease
Current
Operating Operating operating lease
lease lease liabilities $ 43,160 $ 50,359
Current
Finance  Finance  portion of long-
lease lease term debt 5,034 1,583
Noncurrent Noncurrent
Noncurrent
Operating Operating operating lease
lease lease liabilities 412,759 415,208
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Operating lease
Operating lease

Long-term
Finance Finance debt, less
lease lease current portion 27,549 22,890
Total
leased
liabilities Total leased liabilities ~ $ 488,502 $490,040

The Company has long-term contractual obligations primarily in the form of lease obligations related to Company-operated restaurants and franchised restaurants. Interest expense
associated with the finance lease obligations is computed using the incremental borrowing rate IBR at the time the lease is entered into and is based on the amount of the
outstanding lease obligation.

Table of Contents

The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate for operating and finance leases were as follows:
As of

January January

1,2023 2,2022

As of As of

December 31,
2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023

Weighted  Weighted
average average
remaining remaining
lease term: lease term:

Operating lease

Operating lease

Operating  Operating 11.3 116
lease lease years years 10.8 years 11.3 years

Finance Finance 10.1 138
lease lease years years Finance lease 7.7 years 10.1 years
Weighted  Weighted
average average
discount discount
rate: rate:
Operating  Operating
lease lease 6.69 % 6.65 %

Operating lease

Operating lease 7.03 % 6.69 %
Finance Finance
lease lease 6.98 % 7.13 % Finance lease 7.29 % 6.98 %

Lease costs were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January January

January 1,2023 2,2022 3,2021

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

Lease cost Lease cost Classification
Operating lease cost

Operating lease cost

Selling,
general and
Operating Operating administrative
lease cost lease cost expense $ 3,390 $2,481 $3,127
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Operating Operating Operating
lease cost lease cost expenses 85,173 85,429 70,855

Short-term Short-term Operating
lease cost lease cost expenses 5234 2513 2,867

Variable lease Variable lease Operating

costs costs expenses 23,996 16,414 9,195
Royalties and
Sublease Sublease other
income income revenues (210) (386) (506)
Finance lease Finance lease
cost: cost:
Depreciation
Amortization  Amortization 2nd
of right of of right of ~ amortization
use assets use assets expense $ 5,027 $3,217 $2,587

Amortization of right of use
assets

Amortization of right of use

assets

Interest on Interest on

lease lease Interest

liabilities liabilities expense, net 1,958 2,002 2,040

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information related to leases were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January 3,
2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,
2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022
Other Other
information information

Cash paid Cash paid
for leases: for leases:

Cash paid for leases:
Cash paid for leases:
Operating cash flows
for operating leases
Operating cash flows
for operating leases
Operating  Operating
cash cash
flows for flows for
operating  operating
leases o leases v $104,506 $91,967 $78,465
Operating  Operating
cash cash
flows for flows for
finance finance
leases leases 2,116 1,916 1,781
Financing  Financing
cash cash
flows for flows for

finance finance
leases leases 4,681 4,901 3,694
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Right of use Right of use
assets assets
obtained in obtained in
exchange exchange

for new for new
lease lease
liabilities: liabilities:

Operating  Operating

leases leases $ 50,368 $95,284 $74,979
Operating leases

Operating leases

Finance Finance

leases leases 8,158 2,328 7,500

@ Operating cash flows for operating leases include variable rent payments which are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. For the fiscal years ending January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, variable rent payments were $24.0 million $31.7 million, $16.4 million $24.0
million, and $9.2 million $16.4 million, respectively.

A majority of the leases include options to extend the lease. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, the extension period is included as part of
the right of use asset and the lease liability. The Company’s leases do not contain restrictions or covenants that restrict the Company from incurring other financial obligations. The
Company also does not provide any residual value guarantees for the leases or have any significant leases that have yet to be commenced.

At the inception of the contract, management determines if the contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) IBR reflects a fully secured rate based on the credit rating taking into
consideration the repayment timing of the lease and any impacts due to the economic environment in which the lease operates. The estimate of the incremental
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borrowing rate IBR reflects considerations such as market rates for the outstanding debt, interpolations of rates for leases with terms that differ from the outstanding debt, and
market rates for debt of companies with similar credit ratings.

Future lease commitments to be paid by the Company as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Operating  Finance

Fiscal year Fiscal year Leases Leases Fiscal year Operating Leases Finance Leases
2023 $ 69,168 $ 7,358

2024 2024 71,385 5,616

2025 2025 65,006 4,191

2026 2026 63,423 4,021

2027 2027 52,576 2,563

2028

Thereafter Thereafter 359,267 23,327
Total Total

lease lease

payments payments 680,825 47,076
Less: Less:

Interest  Interest  (224,906) (14,493)
Present Present

value of value of

lease lease
liabilities liabilities $455,919 $32,583

In the fiscal 2022, year ended December 31, 2023, the Company completed a sale-leaseback transaction whereby it disposed of the land at one real estate property for proceeds of
$10.0 million. The Company subsequently leased back the property, which is accounted for as an operating lease. The Company recognized a cumulative gain on sale of $9.6
million, which is included in Other expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023, the Company completed sale-leaseback transactions whereby it disposed of the land at three real estate properties for proceeds of $8.4
million. The Company subsequently leased back the properties, which are accounted for as operating leases. The Company recognized cumulative gains on sale of $6.5 million,
which are included in Other expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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In December 2021, the Company completed a sale-leaseback transaction whereby it disposed of the land at four real estate properties for proceeds of $11.1
million. The Company subsequently leased back the properties, which are accounted for as operating leases. The Company recognized a gain on sale of $8.7
million, which is included in Other expenses/(income), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 910 — Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1,

2023:

Assets:
401(k) mirror plan assets
Interest rate derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivatives

Total Liabilities

Assets:
Interest rate derivatives

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivatives

Commodity derivatives

January 1, 2023

Level 1 Level 2

6 $ —
= 10,461
— 514

6 $ 10,975

— 3 170

— $ 170

December 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2

- 1,596

— $ 1,596

— 3 345
— 113

Total Liabilities $ — 8 458
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January 2, 2022

Level 1 Level 2
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

Level 1
Assets:

Assets:

Assets: Assets:
401(k) mirror plan assets  401(k) mirror plan assets $ 111 $ —
401(k) mirror plan assets
401(k) mirror plan assets
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Commodity derivatives Commodity derivatives — 1,486
Commodity derivatives
Commodity derivatives
Total Assets

Total Assets
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Total Assets Total Assets $ 111 $ 1,486
Liabilities: Liabilities:

Liabilities:

Liabilities:
Foreign currency Foreign currency
derivatives derivatives $ — $ 80
Interest rate derivatives — 14,667

Foreign currency derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Total Liabilities Total Liabilities $ = $ 14,747

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities

There were no assets nor liabilities measured using Level 3 inputs and no transfers of financial assets or liabilities among the levels within the fair value hierarchy during the fiscal
years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023. The Company's derivatives are valued using discounted cash flow analyses that
incorporate observable market parameters, such as interest rate yield curves and currency rates.

Note 10 11 — Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. Management evaluates various strategies in managing its exposure to market-based risks,
such as entering into transactions to manage its exposure to commodity price risk and floating interest rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading
purposes. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to its derivative instruments. The Company mitigates this risk of
nonperformance by dealing with highly rated counterparties.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company uses forward contracts to protect against the effects of commodity price fluctuations in the cost of ingredients of its products, of which flour, sugar, and shortening are
the most significant, and the cost of gasolinefuel used by its delivery vehicles. Management has not designated these forward contracts as hedges. As of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 the total notional amount of commodity derivatives was 1.7 million 1.8 million and 1.9 million 1.7 million gallons of
gasoline, fuel, respectively. They were scheduled to mature between January 1, 2024 and December 31, 2024, and January 2, 2023 and December 1, 2024 and January 3, 2022
and March 31, 2023, respectively. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company has recorded a liability of $0.1 million and an asset
of $0.5 million and $1.5 million, respectively, related to the fair market values of its commodity derivatives. The settlement of commodity derivative contracts is reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as a cash flow from operating activities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from increases in interest rates on any borrowings outstanding under its 2019 Debt Facility. debt facilities. As of the end of fiscal 2019, 2020,
the Company was entered into various interest rate swap agreements with a notional amount totaling $455.0 million $505.0 million. Under these interest rate swap agreements, the
Company made payments based on a fixed rate of 1.99% for $300.0 million of the hedged notional, (the “June 2019 swap agreement”), which was due to mature in June 2024, and
2.92% 2.72% for the other $155.0 million of the hedged notional, which was due to mature in November 2023, and 0.95% for $50.0 million of the hedged notional, and in exchange
received payments at a variable rate based on the one-month LIBOR.

In February 2020, the Company effectively cancelled its swap These agreements on the $155.0 million hedged notional and entered into new agreements with the same
counterparties (the “February 2020 swap agreement”). The only differences between these new agreements and the prior versions included an extension of the maturity term of the
swaps from November 2023 were all due to June 2024, and the locking in of a new payment rate on the fixed leg of the swaps (2.72%), through the 2024 maturity. At the same time,
the Company also entered into a new interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $50.0 million and a maturity date mature in June 2024. Under this swap agreement,
the Company had fixed the variable portion of the interest rate on a portion of the 2019 Debt Facility and was required to make payments based on a fixed rate of 0.95%, and in
exchange would receive payments at a variable rate based on the one-month LIBOR.

In Decemberthe fourth quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company. effectively cancelled certain interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $240.0 million,
collecting $8.5 million in cash proceeds, and entered into new agreements with the same counterparties (the
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“December 2022 swap agreement”). counterparties. The only difference between these new agreements and the prior versions included the locking in setting of a new payment rate
on the fixed leg component of the swaps (4.64%).

In the first quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company cancelled certain interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $265.0 million, collecting $7.7 million in cash
proceeds, and entered into new agreements with the same counterparties. The aggregate primary difference between these new agreements and the prior versions included the
setting of a new payment rate on the fixed component of the swaps (4.38%). At the same time, the Company also amended the benchmark interest rate on the floating component
of all $505.0 million hedged notional as of to one-month SOFR, corresponding to the end of fiscal 2022 continued new
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interest rate on its refinanced credit facility discussed in Note 8, Long-Term Debt, to be $505.0 million. the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

The net effect of the interest rate swap arrangements will be to fix the interest rate on the term loan under the 2019 Debt 2023 Facility up to the notional amount outstanding at the
rates payable under the swap agreements plus the Applicable Rate (as defined by the 2019 Debt 2023 Facility)., through the swap maturity dates in June 2024. Management has
designated the June 2019, the February 2020, and the December 2022 interest rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges and recognized the changes in the fair value of these
swaps in other comprehensive income. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company has recorded assets of $10.5 million $1.6
million and liabilities of $14.7 million $10.5 million, respectively, related to the fair market values of its interest rate derivatives. The cash flows associated with the interest rate swaps
are reflected in the operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, which is consistent with the classification as operating activities of the interest payments on
the term loan.

All of the interest rate swap derivatives have certain early termination triggers caused by an event of default or termination. The events of default include failure to make payments
when due, failure to give notice of a termination event, failure to comply with or perform obligations under the agreements, bankruptcy or insolvency, and defaults under other
agreements (cross-default provisions).

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily from its investments in consolidated subsidiaries that operate in Canada, the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand,
Mexico, and Japan. In order to mitigate foreign exchange fluctuations, the Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts. Management has not designated these forward
contracts as hedges. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the total notional amount of foreign exchange derivatives was $59.0
million $49.8 million and $51.8 million $59.0 million, respectively. They were scheduled to mature in January 2024 and between January 2023 and February 2023, and between
January 2022 and February 2022, respectively. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company has recorded liabilities of $0.2
million $0.3 million and $0.1 million $0.2 million, respectively, related to the fair market values of its foreign exchange derivatives.

Quantitative Summary of Derivative Positions and Their Effect on Results of Operations

The following tables present the fair values of derivative instruments included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2,
2022 January 1, 2023 for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and derivatives designed as hedging instruments, respectively. The Company only has cash flow
hedges that are designated as hedging instruments.
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Derivatives Fair
Value
Derivatives Fair Value
Derivatives Derivatives
Not Not
Designated Designated Balance
as Hedging as Hedging January January Sheet
Instruments Instruments 1,2023 2,2022 Location
Derivatives Not Designated
as Hedging

Instruments

Derivatives Not Designated

as Hedging December 31, January 1,
Instruments 2023 2023 Balance Sheet Location
Prepaid
expense
and
other
Commodity Commodity current Commodity Prepaid expense and other current Prepaid expense and other current
derivatives derivatives $ 514 $1,486 assets derivatives $ — $3 514 assets assets
Total Total

Assets Assets $ 514 $1,486

Foreign Foreign
currency  currency Accrued
derivatives derivatives $ 170 $ 80 liabilities
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Foreign currency
derivatives

Foreign currency

derivatives $ 345 $ 170 Accrued liabilities
Commodity Commodity

derivatives derivatives 113 — Accrued liabilities
Total Total -

Liabilities Liabilities $ 170 $ 80

Derivatives Fair Value

Derivatives Desi d as Hed!

Instruments January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022 Balance Sheet Location

Interest rate derivatives (current) $ 7,218 $ — Prepaid expense and other current assets
Interest rate derivatives (noncurrent) 3,243 — Other assets

Total Assets $ 10,461 $ =

Interest rate derivatives (current) $ — 8 8,535 Accrued liabilities

Interest rate derivatives (noncurrent) — 6,132 Other long-term obligations and deferred credits
Total Liabilities $ — 8 14,667

Derivatives Fair Value

Derivatives Designated as Hedging

Instruments December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 Balance Sheet Location

Interest rate derivatives (current) $ 159 $ 7,218 Prepaid expense and other current assets
Interest rate derivatives (noncurrent) — 3,243 Other assets

Total Assets $ 1,596 $ 10,461

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023,
and January 3, 2021: January 2, 2022 is as follows:
Derivative Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income in Fiscal
Years Ended
Derivative Gain/(Loss) Recognized in

Income in Fiscal Years Ended

Location of
Derivatives Derivatives Derivative
Designated Designated Gainl(Loss)

as Hedging as Hedging January January 2, January Recognized

Instruments Instruments 1, 2023 2022 3,2021 inIncome
Interest

Loss on interest rate expense,

derivatives $(2,727) $(10,291) $(7,633) net

$(2,727) $(10,291) $(7,633)

Derivatives Designated

as Hedging Instruments

Derivatives Designated December 31, January 1, January 2, Location of Derivative Gain/(Loss) Recognized in
as Hedging Instruments 2023 2023 2022 Income
Gain/(loss)
on interest
rate Gain/(loss) on interest rate
derivatives derivatives $ 8,624 $ (2,727) $ (10,291) Interest expense, net
$

Derivative Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income in

Fiscal Years Ended
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Derivative (Loss)/Gain Recognized

in Income in Fiscal Years Ended

Derivatives Derivatives Location of
Not Not Derivative
Designated Designated Gainl(Loss)

as Hedging as Hedging January January January Recognized in

Instruments Instruments  1,2023  2,2022 3, 2021 Income

Other non-
operating
Loss on foreign expense/(income),
currency $ (90) $ (62) $ (21) net
Derivatives Not
Designated as Hedging
Instruments
Derivatives Not Location of Derivative
Designated as Hedging December January January 2, (Loss)/Gain
Instruments 31, 2023 1, 2023 2022 Recognized in Income
Loss on
foreign Loss on foreign Other non-
currency currency operating expense,
derivatives derivatives $ (175) $ (90) $(62) net
(Loss)/gain (Loss)/gain Other non-
on on operating (Loss)/gain on Other non- Other non-
commodity commodity expense/(income), commodity operating operating
derivatives derivatives (972) 1,066 267 net derivatives (627) (972) (972) 1,066 1,066 expense, net expense, net

$(1,062) $1,004 $ 246

Note 1112 — Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan for Krispy Kremers in the U.S. (the “401(k) Plan”) to which eligible employees may contribute up to 100% of their salary and bonus on a tax
deferred basis, subject to statutory limitations. The Company currently matches 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of compensation contributed by each employee to the
401(k) Plan. The Company match is immediately 100% vested.

The Company operates defined contribution plans in the U.K. and Ireland (“KKUK and Ireland Contribution Plans”), to which eligible employees may contribute up to 100% of their
salary, subject to statutory limitations. The Company currently matches contributions at a rate of 3% of pensionable earnings. The KKUK and Ireland Contribution Plans are pension
plans under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Insomnia Cookies sponsors a 401(k) plan (the “Insomnia Plan”) which allows all its eligible employees to elect to defer up to 100% of their annual compensation not to exceed
statutory limits. The Insomnia Plan provides for discretionary matching contributions, which may not exceed 2% of the employee’s overall compensation.

KK Australia operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for its employees in Australia (the “Australia Plan”) and in New Zealand (the “New Zealand Plan”). The Company
contributes 10.5% 11% of employee compensation to the Australia Plan and matches employee contributions of up to 3% of compensation to the New Zealand Plan.

KK Canada operates a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (“RRSP”) for its employees in Canada (the “Canada Plan”) which allows eligible employees to contribute. For certain
salaried employees, the Company will match eligible employee contributions up to 2.5% of their annual base salary.

Total contribution plan expense for defined contribution plans is $7.4 million $8.5 million, $6.6 million $7.4 million, and $4.9 million $6.6 million for the fiscal years ended January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.
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Other Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (the “401(k) Mirror Plan”) designed to enable officers of the Company whose contributions to the 401(k) Plan are
limited by certain statutory limitations to have the same opportunity to defer compensation as is available to other employees of the Company under the qualified 401(k) savings
plan. The investments are not a legally separate fund of assets and are subject to the claims of the Company’s general creditors. Such investments are included in Other assets in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The corresponding liability to participants is included in Other long-term obligations and deferred credits in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The There was no balance in the asset and corresponding liability account as of December 31, 2023 and the balance was less than $0.1 million and $0.1 million as of January 1,
2023 and January 2, 2022, respectively. .

KK Mexico operates defined benefit plans for its employees related to seniority premium (the “Mexico Seniority Premium Plan”) and termination indemnity (the “Mexico Termination
Indemnity Plan”). The Mexico Seniority Premium Plan provides eligible employees a defined benefit of 12 days of salary per full year of service, and the Mexico Termination
Indemnity Plan provides eligible employees a defined benefit of up to three months of base salary plus 20 days per year worked. Net periodic benefit cost for these plans totaled
$0.2 million and less than $0.1 million $0.2 million for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively.

Note 1213 — Share-based Compensation
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) and Performance Stock Units (“PSUSs”)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries issue time-vested restricted stock units (‘RSUs”) RSUs and PSUs under their respective executive ownership plans and long-term
incentive plans.

The time-vested RSUs are awarded to eligible employees and non-employee directors and entitle the grantee to receive shares of common stock at the end of a vesting period. The
majority of RSUs vest in 54 months from the date of grant and include a minimum holding period of six months before the shareholder may redeem the shares. Certain RSUs vest
over a 60-month period subsequent to the grant date (with 60% vesting during the third year following the grant date, 20% vesting during the fourth year, and 20% vesting at the end
of the 60-month term). Throughout the vesting period and the holding period, shareholders are subject to the market risk on the value of their shares.

The PSU vesting is contingent upon the achievement of certain performance objectives and the awards are subject to a requisite service period. If the Company meets targets for
the performance objectives at the end of the performance cycle, the Company awards a resulting number of shares of its common stock to the award holders. The number of shares
may be increased to a maximum threshold (up to 200% of the target threshold set at the grant date, for a majority of the awards) or reduced to a minimum threshold (a floor of zero)
based on the achievement of these performance objectives in accordance with the terms established at the award’s grant date. The Company estimates the probability that the
performance objectives will be achieved periodically and adjusts compensation expenses accordingly.

RSUs and PSUs held by KKI are granted to U.S. employees and directors as well as certain employees of the Company’s subsidiaries. Certain U.K. employees receive RSUs held
by KKUK. Certain Insomnia Cookies employees receive RSUs held by Insomnia Cookies. Certain Australia employees receive RSUs held by KK Australia. Certain Mexico
employees receive RSUs held by KK Mexico.

Effective March 22, 2022 (the “modification date”), the Company amended certain KKI time-vested RSU agreements issued in fiscal 2021 to change the vesting terms to a graded-
vesting schedule over a 54-month period subsequent to the original commencement date (with one-third vesting in 18 months following the vesting commencement date, one-third
vesting in 36 months, and one-third vesting in 54 months). The impacted awards previously had a 54-month cliff vesting schedule. The

modification affected approximately 615 grantees and approximately 1.1 million unvested RSUs. The amended vesting terms as of the modification date resulted in no incremental
compensation cost and the remaining unrecognized compensation cost for each award will be recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining requisite service period for the
entire award.

RSUs held by KKI are granted to U.S. employees RSU and directors as well as certain employees of the Company’s subsidiaries. Certain U.K. employees receive RSUs held by
KKUK. Certain Insomnia Cookies employees receive RSUs held by Insomnia Cookies. Certain Australia employees receive RSUs held by KK Australia. Certain Mexico employees
receive RSUs held by KK Mexico.
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RSU PSU activity under the various plans during the fiscal years presented is as follows:

Non-vested
shares Non-vested shares Non-vested shares
([ e Craesti e s outstanding at RSU Dividend outstanding at outstanding at
amounts) January 3, 2021 Granted Equivalents() Vested Forfeited January 2, 2022 Granted Vested Forfeited January 1, 2023
KKI
RSUs 4,649 3,339 1,019 2,585 556 5,866 1,049 1,060 909 4,946
Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value $ 11.37 17.95 — 9.29 1432 $ 13.78 14.27 11.79 1424 $ 14.23
KKUK
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RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Insomnia Cookies

RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

KK Australia

RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

KK Mexico

@

RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

$

405

12.45

29

68.87

1,844

1.48

25

29.21

29.80

15

97.77

79

1.45

33

35.64

352

12.22

74.12

10

75.68

26

1.36

$

60

15.77

33

79.66

1,897

1.48

58

32.86

11

168.57

21

1.73

40.14

74.12

1,564

1.49

102.67

60

$ 15.77
38

$ 101.54
354

$ 1.47
60

$ 33.08

For KKI RSU holders that did not vest upon IPO, dividend equivalent shares were granted after the IPO at a weighted average grant date fair value of zero. The vesting terms
for the dividend equivalent shares are the same as the underlying RSUs. The KKI shares presented have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the Stock Split and the

Merger.

(in thousands, except per share
amounts)

KKI
RSUs and PSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

KKUK
RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Insomnia Cookies
RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

KK Australia
RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

KK Mexico
RSUs

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Non-vested
shares

outstanding at

Non-vested shares

outstanding at

Non-vested shares
outstanding at

December 31,

January 2, 2022 Granted Vested Forfeited January 1, 2023 Granted Vested Forfeited 2023

5,866 1,049 1,060 909 4,946 3,063 669 555 6,785

$ 13.78 14.27 11.79 1424  $ 14.23 14.48 11.62 1489 $ 14.54
60 — = — 60 — 50 3 7

$ 15.77 = = — $ 15.77 = 13.41 2121 $ 29.80
33 11 1 5 38 15 & 3 a7

$ 79.66 168.57 74.12 102.67 $ 101.54 156.25 63.70 116.58 $ 120.21
1,897 21 1,564 = 354 = 169 = 185

$ 1.48 1.73 1.49 — $ 1.47 = 1.36 — $ 1.57
58 2 — — 60 — — 40 20

$ 32.86 40.14 = — $ 33.08 = = 3458 $ 30.18

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the RSUs and PSUs under the plans of $15.5 million $20.6 million, $19.6 million $15.5 million, and $11.6
million $19.6 million for fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively. The net
deferred tax benefit/(expense)/benefits recognized were was $2.1 million, ($0.3 million), and ($4.9 million), and $2.7 million for fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31,

2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested RSUs and PSUs and the weighted-average period over which such cost is expected to be recognized are as follows:
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As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023

Recognized Over a

Unrecognized Weighted-
Compensation Cost Average Period of
KKI $ 45,35361,029 3.23.1years
KKUK 193105 1.0 year2.5 years
Insomnia Cookies 2,396 3,661 2.6 years 1.0 year
KK Australia 17592 1.5 years
KK Mexico 1,361 266 3.01.6 years
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The estimated fair value of restricted stock is calculated using a market approach (i.e., market multiple is used for the KKI, KKUK and Insomnia Cookies’ plans and an agreed-upon
EBITDA buyout multiple is used for KK Australia and KK Mexico plans).

The total grant date fair values of shares vested under the KKI plan were $7.8 million, $12.5 million, and $24.0 million for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023, January 1,
2023, and January 2, 2022, respectively; no shares vested for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2021. respectively. The total grant date fair values of shares vested under the KKUK
plan was $0.7 million and $4.3 million for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022; no shares vested for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 3,
2021 January 2, 2022, respectively. respectively; no shares vested during the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023. The total grant date fair values of shares vested under the Insomnia
Cookies plan was $0.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, and $0.1 million for each of the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023, January 2, 2022, and January 3,
2021 January 2, 2022. The total grant date fair values of shares vested under the KK Australia plan were $0.2 million and $2.3 million for the fiscal yearyears ended December 31,
2023 and January 1, 2023;, respectively; no shares vested for the fiscal years year ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021. No shares under the KK Mexico plan vested during
the three fiscal years presented.

Time-Vested Stock Options

KKI issues time-vested stock options under its Omnibus Incentive Plan. The stock options are awarded to eligible employees and entitle the grantee to purchase shares of common
stock at the respective exercise price at the end of a vesting period. Stock options vest over a 60-month period subsequent to the grant date (with 60% vesting during the third year
following the grant date, 20% vesting during the fourth year, and 20% vesting at the end of the 60-month term), and as such are subject to a service condition. The maximum
contractual term of the stock options is 10 years.

The fair value of time-vested stock options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This model is impacted by the Company’s stock price
and certain assumptions related to the Company’s stock and employees’ exercise behavior. The expected term for stock options granted during fiscal year 2021 was estimated
utilizing the simplified method. Management utilized the simplified method because the Company did not have sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis upon
which to estimate expected term. The risk-free interest rate assumption was based on yields of U.S. Treasury securities in effect at the date of grant with terms similar to the
expected term. Expected volatility was estimated based on the Company’s historical volatility, and also considering historical volatility of peer companies over a period equivalent to
the expected term. Additionally, the dividend yield was estimated based on dividends currently being paid on the underlying common stock at the date of grant. Estimated and actual
forfeitures have not had a material impact on share-based compensation expense.

The following weighted-average assumptions were utilized in determining the fair value of the time-vested stock options granted during the fiscal years presented:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January
December 31, 2023 2023 2, 2022
KKI

Risk-free interest rate —37% 13— %
Expected volatility —35.1% 34.4— %
Dividend yield —1.0% 1.0—%

6.8

Expected term (years) 6.5 years — years
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A summary of the status of the time-vested stock options as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and changes during fiscal years presented is as follows:
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Share Share Share
options options options
outstanding outstanding outstanding
at at at
Share
options
Share options outstanding
outstanding at at
Forfeited Forfeited January

((::C?';u:::ds, g:c:';u:::’ds’ January 3, or January 2, or January 1, g:c?’;u:::rds, 2,
share amounts) share amounts) 2021 Granted Exercised expired 2022 Granted Exercised  expired 2023 share amounts) 2022 Granted Exercised
KKI KKI

Options

Options

Options Options — 2817 — — 2,817 — — 248 2,569 2,817 — — — — 248

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date  Grant Date Grant Date

Fair Value Fair Value s — 6.10 — — 8 6.10 — — 610 $ 6.10 Fair Value s 6.10 — - - —

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Price Price $ — 1461 — — $ 1461 — — 1461 $ 1461 Price $14.61 — - = —

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Remaining  Remaining Remaining

Contractual  Contractual Contractual

Term Term Term 9.3

(years) (years) — 9.3 years 8.3years (years) years

Aggregate Aggregate

Intrinsic Intrinsic

Value (in Value (in

thousands)  thousands) $ — $ 12,151 $ =

14

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the time-vested stock options of $2.7 million $3.6 million, $2.7 million, and $3.3 million for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2023, January 1, 2023, and January 2, 2022, respectively. No non-cash compensation expense related to time-vested stock options was recorded for the fiscal
year ended January 3, 2021.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested stock options and the weighted-average period over which such cost is expected to be recognized are as follows:

KKI

As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023

Recognized Over a
Unrecognized Weighted-

Compensation Cost Average Period of

$ 9,702 8,203 3.32.3 years

No time-vested stock options under the KKI plan vested nor were exercised during the fiscal periods presented.

Note 13 14 — Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January 3,

2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

December

31, 2023

Domestic Domestic $(49,910) $(49,348) $(47,080)
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Foreign Foreign 41,747 45,250 (4,748)
Loss Loss

before before

income income

taxes taxes 9 (8,163) $ (4,098) $(51,828)

Domestic income (loss) before income taxes includes unallocated corporate costs, which include general corporate expenses.
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The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January

Fiscal Years Ended

2023 2022 3,2021
Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2023
Current: Current:
Federal
Federal
Federal Federal $ — 3 = & =
State State 1,033 347 156
International International 13,816 13,894 8,992
Total Total
current current $ 14,849 $14,241 $ 9,148

Deferred and other: Deferred and other:

Federal Federal $(13,960) $ 4,310 $(8,844)
Federal
Federal
State State 4,280 (5,739) 13,472
International International (4,557) (2,067) (4,664)
Total Total
deferred deferred
and and
other other  $(14,237) $(3,496) $ (36)
Income tax expense $ 612 $10,745 $ 9,112
Income tax
(benefit)/lexpense

December 31, 2023

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate and the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January January 2, January

1, 2023 2022 3, 2021
Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, 2023

Statutory Statutory

federal rate  federal rate 21.0% 21.0% 21.0 % Statutory federal rate
State income State income

taxes, net of taxes, net of

federal benefit federal benefit 12.6 (2.8) 4.1

Foreign Foreign

operations operations (66.8) (12.9) (10.7)

January 1, 2023

January 2, 2022

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, 2023

21.0 % 21.0 %
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Change in Change in
valuation valuation
allowance allowance 24.9 143 (34.9)

Noncontrolling Noncontrolling

interest interest 17.2 46.8 2.6
Impact of Impact of

uncertain tax uncertain tax

positions positions 62.2 9.1 1.3)
Other Other

permanent  permanent
differences  differences (2.5) (14.2) 1.3

Transaction  Transaction

costs costs (0.1) (5.1) (0.8)
Deferred Deferred

adjustments adjustments (48.7) (96.1) (0.9)
Share-based Share-based

compensation compensation (30.3) (217.4) —
Other Other 2.0 (4.9) 2.0

Effective tax Effective tax
rate rate (7.5)% (262.2)% (17.6)% Effective tax rate 10.6 % (7.5) % (262.2) %

The Company establishes valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets in accordance with GAAP, which provides that such valuation allowances shall be established unless
realization of the income tax benefits is more likely than not.

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities based upon its expectation of the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the income tax and
financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities generally represent tax expense recognized for which payment has been deferred, or expenses which have
been deducted in the Company’s tax returns, but which have not yet been recognized as an expense in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets generally represent tax
deductions or credits that will be reflected in future tax returns for which the Company has already recorded a tax benefit in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company continues to assert permanent reinvestment with respect to its initial basis differences of international affiliates but does not assert indefinite reinvestment on the
earnings of the foreign subsidiaries with the exception of its subsidiaries in Canada. Accordingly, no deferred taxes have been provided for with regard to the Company’s initial basis
difference in international affiliates. Due to the complexities of tax law in the respective jurisdictions, it is not practicable to estimate the tax liability that might be incurred if such
earnings were remitted to the U.S. The Company has not established a deferred tax liability for the earnings of the foreign subsidiaries as any distributions made from those
jurisdictions are expected to be made in a tax neutral manner.
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The tax effects of temporary differences are as follows:

As of

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
As of As of
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2023 2023
Deferred income tax assets:  Deferred income tax assets:
Intangible assets
Intangible assets
Intangible assets Intangible assets $ 1499 $ 1,665
Accrued compensation Accrued compensation 3,019 4,330
Insurance accruals Insurance accruals 2,296 1,934
Share-based Share-based
compensation compensation 2,483 2,786
Deferred revenue Deferred revenue 2,016 1,735
Transaction costs Transaction costs 1,481 1,397
Disallowed interest Disallowed interest
expense expense 20,685 10,527
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Lease liabilities Lease liabilities 107,850 101,629
Foreign net operating Foreign net operating
loss carryforward loss carryforward 2,147 2,565
Federal net operating Federal net operating
loss carryforward loss carryforward 27,086 22,493
Federal tax credits Federal tax credits 15,121 13,913
State net operating loss State net operating loss
and credit carryforwards and credit carryforwards 11,888 11,169
Unrealized loss on foreign currency translation — 3,667
Other Other 11,333 9,567
Gross deferred Gross deferred
income tax assets income tax assets 208,904 189,377
Valuation Valuation
allowance allowance (27,940) (29,972)
Deferred Deferred
income tax assets, net of income tax assets, net of
valuation allowance valuation allowance $ 180,964 $ 159,405
Deferred income tax liabilities: Deferred income tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Intangible assets
Intangible assets Intangible assets $(149,928) $(147,621)
Subsidiary investments Subsidiary investments (12,181) (8,038)
Property and equipment Property and equipment (23,912) (14,254)
Foreign reacquired Foreign reacquired
franchise rights franchise rights (31,677) (37,600)
Lease right of use assets Lease right of use assets (97,076) (93,250)
Unrealized income on Unrealized income on
foreign currency translation foreign currency translation (4,750) —
Other Other (1,831) (3,683)
Gross deferred income Gross deferred income
tax liabilities tax liabilities (321,355) (304,446)
Net Net
deferred income tax deferred income tax
liabilities liabilities $(140,391) $(145,041)
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The presentation of deferred income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets is as follows:

As of

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
As of As of
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2023 2023
Included in:  Included in:
Other assets
Other assets
Other Other
assets assets $ 2,733 $ 377
Deferred Deferred
income income
taxes, taxes,
net net (143,124) (145,418)
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Net Net
deferred deferred
income income

tax tax
liabilities liabilities $(140,391) $ (145,041)

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of approximately $248.8 million for U.S. state tax purposes and $108.4 million for U.S. federal
tax purposes. As of January 1, 2023, the Company had Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) NOL carryforwards of approximately $249.8 million for U.S. state tax purposes and $129.0
million for U.S. federal tax purposes. As of January 2, 2022, the Company had NOL carryforwards of approximately $327.5 million for U.S. state tax purposes and $107.1 million for
U.S. federal tax purposes. U.S. federal NOL carryforwards are eligible to be carried forward indefinitely. A portion of the Company’s U.S. state tax carryforwards will begin began to
expire in the current year.fiscal 2023. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022January 1, 2023 the Company had foreign NOL carryforwards of
approximately $7.5 million $8.7 million and $8.5 million $7.5 million, respectively. As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, $4.9 $6.6 million of the foreign NOL carryforwards have
a 10-year carryover period and the remaining $2.7 $2.1 million have either a 20-year carryover period or no expiration.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had various tax credit carryforwards of $15.4 million for U.S. federal purposes and none for U.S. state purposes. As of January 1, 2023, the
Company had various tax credit carryforwards of $15.0 million for U.S. federal purposes and none for U.S. state purposes. As of January 2, 2022, the Company had various tax
credit carryforwards of $13.9 million for U.S. federal purposes and none for U.S. state purposes. If not utilized, the credits can be carried forward between 10 and 20 years. A portion
of the U.S. tax credit carryforwards will begin began to expire in fiscal 2023. If certain substantial changes in the entity’s ownership occur, there would be an annual limitation on the
amount of the NOLs and credits that can be utilized.

The valuation allowances of $27.9 million $29.1 million and $30.0 million $27.9 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 respectively,
represent the portion of its deferred tax assets that the Company does not believe would more likely than not be realized in the future. Of the $27.9 million $29.1 million as of
January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, $1.5 million $2.3 million is for KK Mexico lossforeign NOL carryforwards, $11.9 million is for U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $14.5
million $14.8 million is for U.S. foreign tax credits and other business credits, for which sufficient taxable income is not expected to be generated. The changeincrease in valuation
allowance is primarily attributable to the expiration of net operating losses, thus resulting in a reduction of the corresponding valuation allowance. additional foreign and state NOLs
for which future sufficient taxable income is not expected to be generated. Of the $30.0 million $27.9 million as of January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, $2.5 million $1.5 million is for KK
Mexico losses and capital loss carryforwards, $13.2 million $11.9 million is for U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $14.2 million $14.5 million is for U.S. foreign tax credits and other
business credits, for which sufficient taxable income is not expected to be generated.

Realization of net deferred tax assets generally is dependent on generation of taxable income in future periods. While the Company believes its forecast of future taxable income is
reasonable, actual results will inevitably vary from management's forecasts. Such variances could result in adjustments to the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets in future
periods, and such adjustments could be material to the financial statements.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) was enacted to provide economic relief to those impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The CARES Act made various tax law changes including among other things (i) modifications to the federal NOL carryback rules, (ii) increased the limitation under IRC Section
163(j) for 2019 and 2020 to permit additional expensing of interest, (iii) enacted a technical correction so that qualified improvement property can be immediately expensed under
IRC Section 168(k), and (iv) permitted the deferral of the employer’s portion of social security taxes. The Company was able to take additional deductions as a result of the CARES
Act, resulting in additional NOLs for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022. The Company was able to defer $7.3 million of social security taxes to future years
during the fiscal year ended January 3, 2021. During the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022, the Company repaid half of the deferred social security taxes and repaid the remaining
deferred social security taxes on January 3, 2023.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. For U.S. federal tax purposes, tax years prior to the year ended
December 31, 2018 are closed for assessment purposes; however, tax years in which an NOL was generated will remain open for examination until the statute of limitations will
close on tax years utilizing NOL carryforwards to reduce the tax due. Generally, the statute of limitations will close on tax years utilizing NOL carryforwards three years subsequent
to the utilization of NOLs. For state purposes, the statute of limitations remains open in a similar manner for states where With few exceptions, the Company generated NOLs.
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is no longer subject to examination by U.S., state, or foreign tax authorities for years before 2017.

Income tax payments, net of refunds, were $16.7 million $11.1 million, $13.6 million $16.7 million, and $9.3$13.6 million in the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits:

As of As of
December 31, December 31, January 1,

2023 2023 2023
Unrecognized
tax benefits at
beginning of
year
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As of

January 1, January 2,

2023 2022
Unrecognized tax benefits at
beginning of year $18,478 $17,341
Increases related to positions
taken in the current year — 1,383

Increases (decreases) related

to positions taken in prior

years (221) (246)
Decreases related to positions

taken in prior years

Decreases related to positions

taken in prior years

Decreases related to positions

taken in prior years

Decreases Decreases

related to related to

positions positions

taken in prior taken in prior

years due to  years due to

lapse of lapse of

statute statute (4,744) —
Unrecognized Unrecognized

tax benefits tax benefits
at end of year at end of year $13,513 $18,478

Approximately all of the aggregate $13.5 million $10.5 million and $18.5 million $13.5 million of unrecognized income tax benefits as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and
January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively, would, if recognized, impact the annual effective tax rate. The Company does not believe that changes in its uncertain tax benefits
will result in a material impact during the next 12 months.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax issues as components of income tax expense. The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets
reflect approximately $1.6 million, and $1.9 million of accrued interest and penalties as of both December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022., respectively. Interest
and penalties were not material during the years presented in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 1415 — Commitments and Contingencies
Pending Litigation
Illinois BIPA litigation

In March 2023, an employee filed a lawsuit on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated against the Company, alleging violations of the Illinois Biometric Information Privacy
Act. In May 2023, the Company moved for a stay pending resolution of a similar case before the lllinois Supreme Court. The Company currently is believes that it has meritorious
defenses to the complaint and will vigorously defend against these claims. The Company has accrued an immaterial amount and management does not believe that this matter will
have a party to any material legal proceedings. adverse effect on the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Resolved Litigation
TSW Foods, LLC litigation

On November 13, 2020 TSW Foods, LLC (“TSW"), a reseller of certain Krispy Kreme packaged products, filed a demand for arbitration and statement of claim alleging Anticipatory
Repudiation of the Master Reseller Agreement, Breach of the Master Reseller Agreement, and Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing. On July 14, 2022,
the Company and TSW negotiated a net settlement of approximately $3.3 million, for which the related payment has been reflected in the accompanying audited Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Other Legal Matters

The Company also is engaged in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The Company maintains insurance policies against certain kinds of such claims
and suits, including insurance policies for workers’ compensation and personal injury, all of which are subject to deductibles. While the ultimate outcome of these matters could differ
from management’s expectations, management currently does not believe their resolution will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Purchase Commitments
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The Company is exposed to the effects of commodity price fluctuations on the cost of ingredients for its products, of which flour, shortening, and sugar are the most significant. In
order to secure adequate supplies of products and bring greater stability to the cost of ingredients, the Company routinely enters into forward purchase contracts with vendors under
which it commits to purchase agreed-upon quantities of ingredients at agreed-upon prices at specified future dates. Typically, the aggregate outstanding purchase commitment at
any point in time will range from one month to several years of anticipated ingredients purchases, depending on the ingredient. In addition, from time to time the Company enters
into contracts for the future delivery of equipment purchased for resale and components of doughnut-making equipment manufactured by the Company. As of January 1,
2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, the Company had approximately $118.5 million $130.5 million and $132.4 million $118.5 million, respectively, of
commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts. These ingredient and other forward purchase contracts are for physical delivery in quantities expected to be
used over a reasonable period in the normal course of business. These agreements often meet the definition of a derivative. However, the Company does not measure its forward
purchase
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commitments at fair value as the amounts under contract meet the physical delivery criteria in the normal purchase exception under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. While the
Company has multiple vendors for most of the ingredients, the termination of the Company'’s relationships with vendors with whom it has forward purchase agreements, or those
vendors’ inability to honor the purchase commitments, could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

One of the The Company’s primary banks issued letters of credit on its behalf totaling $11.1 million $15.4 million and $8.5 million $11.1 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively, a majority of which secure the Company’s reimbursement obligations to insurers under its self-insurance arrangements.

Note 1516 — Related Party Transactions

As of December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023, the Company had an equity ownership in three franchisees, KremeWorks USA, LLC (20% ownership), KremeWorks Canada, L.P.
(25% ownership), and KK France (33% ownership), with an aggregate carrying value of $2.8 million and $1.9 million. As of January 2, 2022, the Company had an equity ownership
in two franchisees, KremeWorks USA, LLC (20% ownership) and KremeWorks Canada, L.P. (25% ownership), with an aggregate carrying value of $1.1 million. respectively.
Revenues from sales of ingredients and equipment to these franchisees were $8.8 million $9.5 million, $7.4 million $8.8 million, and $6.6 million $7.4 million for the fiscal years ended
January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively. Royalty revenues from these franchisees were $1.4
million $1.6 million, $1.3 million $1.4 million, and $1.2 million in each of $1.3 million for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023,
and January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, respectively. Trade receivables from these franchisees are included in Accounts receivable, net on the balance sheet. Consolidated Balance
Sheets. These transactions were conducted pursuant to franchise agreements, the terms of which are substantially the same as the agreements with unaffiliated franchisees. Refer
to Note 3, Accounts Receivable, net, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Keurig Dr Pepper Inc. (“KDP”), an affiliated company of JAB, licenses the Krispy Kreme trademark for the Company in the manufacturing of portion packs for the Keurig brewing
system. KDP also sells beverage concentrates and packaged beverages to Krispy Kreme for resale through Krispy Kreme's shops. Licensing revenues from KDP were $2.3
million $2.2 million, $1.9 million $2.3 million, and $1.9 million for the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, and January 3,
2021 January 2, 2022, respectively.

The Company had service agreements with BDT Capital Partners, LLC (“BDT"), a minority investor in KKI, to provide advisory services to the Company, including valuation services
related to certain acquisitions. The Company recognized expenses of $1.1 million, $1.0$1.1 million and $1.8$1.0 million related to the service agreements with BDT for the fiscal
years ended January 1, 2023, and January 2, 2022, and January 3, 2021, respectively. No related costs were incurred for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. In connection
with valuation assistance provided by BDT in preparation for the IPO, the Company incurred costs of $6.3 million that are were capitalized in Additional paid-in capital for the fiscal
year ended January 2, 2022. No related costs were incurred for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023 nor January 3, 2021.

The Company was party to a senior unsecured note agreement (“the original agreement”) with KK GP for an aggregate principal amount of $283.1 million. In April 2019, the
Company entered into an additional unsecured note with KK GP for $54.0 million (such notes together, the “Related Party Notes”). As of January 3, 2021, the outstanding amount of
principal and interest was $344.6 million. The Related Party Notes were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. The interest expense for the fiscal years year ended
January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 was $10.4 million and $22.5 million, respectively.. No interest expense was recorded for the fiscal year years ended December 31, 2023 and
January 1, 2023.

The Company granted loans to employees of KKI, KKUK, KK Australia, KK Mexico and Insomnia Cookies for the purchase of shares in those subsidiaries. The loan balance was
$4.8 million $3.9 million and $4.4 million $4.8 million as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, respectively, and it is presented as a reduction
from Shareholders’ equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Sheets.
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Note 16 17 — Revenue Recoghnition
Disaggregation of Revenues

Revenues are disaggregated as follows:
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Fiscal Years Ended

January
January 1, 2, January 3,
2023 2022 2021

Company Shops, DFD
and Branded Sweet
Treat Line $1,443,261 $1,305,597 $1,014,790

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, December 31,

2023 2023
Company
Shops,
DFD and
Branded
Sweet
Treats
Mix and Mix and
equipment equipment
revenue  revenue
from from
franchisees franchisees 54,621 47,869 70,320
Franchise Franchise
royalties  royalties
and other and other 32,016 30,925 36,926
Total net Total net
revenues revenues $1,529,898 $1,384,391 $1,122,036

January 1,
2023

January 2,
2022

Other revenues include advertising fund contributions from franchisees, rental income, development and franchise fees, and licensing royalties from Keurig related to Krispy Kreme

brands coffee sales.

Contract Balances

Deferred revenue and related receivables are as follows:

January 1, January 2 ol
e Y2 Sheet
2023 2022 Location
Trade receivables, net of Accounts
allowances of $282 and $896, receivables,

respectively $40,131 $41,132 net
December 31,
2023
Trade
receivables,
net of
allowances of
$564 and Trade receivables, net of
$282, allowances of $564 and
respectively $282, respectively
Deferred Deferred
revenue: revenue:
Current
Current
Accrued
Current Current  $19,417 $17,458 liabilities  $ 22,066
Other long-
term
obligations
and
deferred
Noncurrent Noncurrent Noncurrent

3,946 2,981 credits

Total deferred Total deferred

revenue

EETE $23,363 $20,439
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December
a1 3 1 Balance
? anuary L, Sheet
2023 2023 Location
Accounts
receivables,
$40,131 net
Accrued Accrued
$ 19,417 liabilities liabilities
Other long- Other
term long-term
obligations obligations
and and
deferred deferred
3,946 3,946 credits credits
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Trade receivables at the end of each fiscal year relate primarily to payments due for royalties, franchise fees, advertising fees, sale of products, and licensing fees. Deferred revenue
primarily represents the Company’s remaining performance obligations under gift cards and franchise and development agreements for which consideration has been received or is
receivable and is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the related agreement. The noncurrent portion of deferred revenue primarily relates to the
remaining performance obligations in the franchise and development agreements. Of the deferred revenue balances as of January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, $10.8 million $12.2
million was recognized as revenue in the fiscal year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023. Of the deferred revenue balance as of January 3, 2021 January 2, 2022, $8.4
million $10.8 million was recognized as revenue in fiscal the year ended January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023.

Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

Estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to performance obligations that are either unsatisfied or partially satisfied as of January 1, 2023 December 31,
2023 is as follows:

Fiscal year Fiscal year

2023 $ 13,143

2024

2024

2024 2024 3,515

2025 2025 1,389

2026 2026 1,811

2027 2027 650

2028

Thereafter Thereafter 2,855
$ 23,363

$

The estimated revenue in the table above relates to gift cards, consumer loyalty programs,
agreement. The estimated revenue does not contemplate future issuances of gift

and franchise fees paid upfront which are recognized over the life of the franchise
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cards nor benefits to be earned by members of consumer loyalty programs. The estimated revenue also does not contemplate future franchise renewals or new franchise
agreements for shops for which a franchise agreement or development agreement does not exist as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023. The Company has applied the sales-
based royalty exemption which permits exclusion of variable consideration in the form of sales-based royalties from the disclosure of remaining performance obligations in the table
above.

Note 17 18 — Net Loss per Share

The following table presents the calculations of basic and diluted EPS:
Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands, except per (in thousands, except per January 1, January 2, January 3, December 31, January 1, January 2,
share amounts) share amounts) 2023 2022 2021 (in thousands, except per share amounts) 2023 2023 2022
Net loss attributable Net loss attributable
to Krispy Kreme, Inc. to Krispy Kreme, Inc. $(15,622) $ (24,506) $ (64,301)
Adjustment to Adjustment to
net loss attributable net loss attributable
to common to common
shareholders shareholders (374) (1,468) (477)
Net loss attributable Net loss attributable
to common to common
shareholders — shareholders —
Basic Basic $(15,996) $(25,974) $(64,778)
Additional Additional

income income

attributed to attributed to

noncontrolling noncontrolling

interest due interest due

to subsidiary to subsidiary

potential potential

common common

shares shares (143) (122) (10)
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Net loss attributable Net loss attributable

to common to common

shareholders — shareholders —

Diluted Diluted $(16,139) $(26,096) $ (64,788)
Basic weighted Basic weighted

average common  average common
shares outstanding shares outstanding 167,471 147,655 124,987
Dilutive effect of outstanding
common stock options and RSUs — — —
Dilutive effect
of
outstanding
common
stock options,
RSUs, and
PSUs
Diluted weighted Diluted weighted
average common  average common
shares outstanding shares outstanding 167,471 147,655 124,987

Loss per share Loss per share
attributable to attributable to
common common
shareholders: shareholders:
Basic Basic $ (0.100$ (0.18)$ (0.52)
Basic
Basic
Diluted Diluted $ (0100$ (0.18)$ (0.52)

Potential dilutive shares consist of unvested RSUs and PSUs, calculated using the treasury stock method. The calculation of dilutive shares outstanding excludes certain unvested
RSUs granted under certain subsidiaries’ executive ownership plans and long-term incentive plans, because their inclusion would have been antidilutive. Refer to Note 1213, Share-
based Compensation, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information about the plans.

The following table summarizes the gross number of potential dilutive unvested RSUs and PSUs excluded due to antidilution (unadjusted for the treasury stock method):

Fiscal Years Ended
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

January January January

(in (in 1, 2, 3, December 31, January 1, January 2,
thousands) thousands) 2023 2022 2021  (in thousands) 2023 2023 2022
KKI KKI 4,946 5,866 4,649

KKUK  KKUK 60 — 405

Insomnia Insomnia
Cookies Cookies — = _

KK KK
Australia Australia = = =
KK KK

Mexico Mexico — — —

The 2.6 million and 2.8 million KKI time-vested stock options were also excluded from the computations for For the fiscal years ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 and
January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023, all 3.0 million and 2.6 million time-vested stock options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted weighted average common
shares outstanding based on application of the treasury stock method.

Note 18 19 — Segment Reporting
The Company conducts business through the following three reportable segments:

. U.S. and Canada:: Includes all Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada,, including Krispy Kreme Kreme-branded shops and Insomnia Cookies-branded
shops, Cookies Bakeries, DFD, and the recently exited Branded Sweet Treat Line; Treats business;

. International: Includes all Krispy Kreme’s Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, and Mexico; and
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. Market Development: Includes franchise operations across the globe, as well as the Company-owned operations in Japan. Japan and Canada.
Unallocated corporate costs are excluded from the Company’s measurement of segment performance. These costs include general corporate expenses.

Segment information is identified and prepared on the same basis that the CEO, Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ”), the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”"), CODM,
evaluates financial results, allocates resources and makes key operating decisions. The CODM allocates resources and assesses performance based on geography and line of
business, which represents the Company’s operating segments. The operating segments within the U.S. and Canada and International reportable segments have been evaluated
and combined into reportable segments because they have met the similar economic characteristics and qualitative aggregation criteria set forth in the relevant accounting
guidance.

The primary financial measures used by the CODM to evaluate the performance of its operating segments are net revenues and segment Adjusted EBITDA. The following tables
reconcile segment results to consolidated results reported in accordance with GAAP. The accounting policies used for internal management reporting at the operating segments are
consistent with those described in Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company
manages its assets on a total company basis and the CODM does not review asset information by segment when assessing performance or allocating resources. Consequently, the
Company does not report total assets by reportable segment.

The reportable segment results are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January 3,

2023 2022 2021
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31,
2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

Net Net
revenues:  revenues:
U.S. and Canada $1,033,125 $ 928,413 $ 782,717
u.s.
uU.s.
u.s.
International International 365,916 332,995 230,185
Market Market
Development Development 130,857 122,983 109,134

Total Total

net revenues net revenues $1,529,898 $1,384,391 $1,122,036

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January 2, January 3,
2023 2022 2021
Fiscal Years Ended
Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,

2023 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022

Depreciation Depreciation
and and
amortization: amortization:
U.S. and Canada $ 62377 $ 55447 $ 43,056
u.s.
u.s.
u.s.
International International 35,717 36,139 30,438
Market Market
Development Development 2,319 2,042 2,304
Corporate Corporate 9,848 7,980 4,600
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Total

Total

depreciation depreciation
and and

amortization amortization $ 110,261 $ 101,608 $ 80,398
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Segment
Adjusted
EBITDA:

U.S. and Canada

u.s
u.s
u.s
International

Market
Development

Corporate

Adjusted
EBITDA

Interest expense,

net

Fiscal Years Ended

January 1, January2, January3,

2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,

2023

Fiscal Years Ended

Segment
Adjusted
EBITDA:

$118,483 $107,571 $ 91,574

International 75,512 81,422 44,554

Market
Development 44,421 40,824 39,060

Corporate (47,687) (41,872) (29,754)

190,729 187,945 145,434

Interest
expense, net 34,102 32,622 34,741

Interest

Interest expense expense —

— related party related party

@ ) — 10,387 22,468
Income tax expense 612 10,745 9,112
Income tax

(benefit)/expense

Depreciation

Depreciation and and

amortization
expense
Share-based
compensation

Employer payroll
taxes related to
share-based
compensation

amortization
expense 110,261 101,608 80,398
Share-based
compensation 18,170 22,923 11,601
Employer
payroll taxes
related to
share-based
compensation 312 2,044 —

Other non-operating
expense/(income), net (2) 3,036
New York City flagship Hot

Light Theater Shop opening

® —
Strategic initiatives () 2,841
Acquisition and integration

expenses (s) 2,333
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(1,101)

6,513
20,517

12,679

December 31,

2023

January 1,
2023

January 2,
2022
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New market penetration
expenses () 1,511 — —

Shop closure expenses (7) 19,465 2,766 6,269

Restructuring and severance
expenses () 7,125 1,733 —

IPO-related expenses (9 — 14,534 3,184

Other non-
operating

expense, net o

Strategic initiatives @
Strategic initiatives @

Strategic initiatives @)

Acquisition and
integration

expenses @

New market

penetration
expenses e

Shop closure
expenses

Restructuring
and severance

expenses )

IPO-related
expenses @

Gain on sale- Gain on sale-
leaseback leaseback (6,549) (8,673) —

Other (o) 6285 4,653 @
Other
Net Loss NetLoss $ (8,775) $(14,843) $(60,940)

®
@
@3)

@

(6) (4)

(6) (5)

@ (6)

@

©)®)
(20) (9)

Consists of interest expense related to the Related Party Notes which were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021.

Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period.

Consists Fiscal 2023 consists primarily of pre-opening costs associated with global transformation and U.S. initiatives such as the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats
business, including property, plant and equipment impairments, inventory write-offs, employee severance, and other related tocosts (approximately $17.9 million of the
Company’s New York City flagship Hot Light Theater Shop opening, including shop design, rent, and additional consulting and training costs incurred and reflected in Selling,
general and administrative expenses.

total). Fiscal 2022 consists mainly of equipment disposals, equipment relocation and installation, consulting and advisory fees, and other costs associated with our shift of
Branded Sweet Treat Line Treats manufacturing capability from Burlington, lowa to Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Fiscal 2020 consists mainly of consulting and advisory
fees, personnel transition costs, and network conversion and set-up costs related to the evolution of the Company’s legacy wholesale business in the U.S.

Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise acquisitions, including legal, due diligence, consulting and
advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition-related acquisition and integration-related activities for the applicable period.

Consists of start-up costs associated with entry into new countries for which the Company’s brands have not previously operated, including the Insomnia Cookies brand
entering Canada and the U.K.

Includes Fiscal 2023 includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment. equipment, primarily associated with
strategic shop exits, primarily in the U.S. (approximately $16.0 million of the total). Fiscal 2022 includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, primarily associated with strategic shop exits.

Fiscal 2023 and fiscal 2022 consists consist primarily of costs associated with restructuring of the global and U.S. executive teams. team. Fiscal 2021 consists of severance
and related benefits costs associated with the Company’s realignment of the Company Shop organizational structure to better support the DFD and Branded Sweet Treat
Line Treats businesses.

Includes consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with preparation for and execution of the Company’s IPO.

Fiscal 2023, fiscal 2022, and fiscal 2021 consist primarily of legal and other regulatory expenses incurred outside the ordinary course of business on matters described in
Note 1415, Commitments and Contingencies, to the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements, including the net settlement of approximately $3.3 million
negotiated with TSW Foods, LLC in fiscal 2022. Fiscal 2020 consists primarily of fixed asset and impairment expenses, net of a gain on the sale of land, as well as $1.2 million
of management fees paid to JAB.
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Geographical information related to consolidated revenues and long-lived assets is as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended

January January January
1, 2023 2,2022 3,2021
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2023 January 1, 2023 January 2, 2022
Net revenues: Net revenues:
United States $1,049,824 $ 955,384 $ 854,097
United Kingdom 144,911 147,233 93,121
u.s.
u.s.
u.s.
U.K.
Australia / Australia /
New Zealand New Zealand 114,250 99,582 78,677
Mexico Mexico 96,354 77,831 53,085
All other All other 124,559 104,361 43,056

Total Total
net revenues net revenues $1,529,898 $1,384,391 $1,122,036

Fiscal Years Ended

January
1, January 2, January 3,
2023 2022 2021
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, December 31, January 1, January 2,
2023 2023 2023 2022

Long-lived Long-lived
assets: assets:

United States $679,706 $684,790 $625,928

United Kingdom 66,776 69,112 68,500

U.S.

U.S.

u.s.

U.K.

Australia / Australia /
New Zealand  New Zealand 62,759 61,155 59,656

Mexico Mexico 50,481 30,944 23,094

All other All other 30,017 28,085 17,765

Total Total

long-lived long-lived
assets assets $889,739 $874,086 $794,943

Total long-lived assets consist of Property and equipment, net and Operating lease right of use asset, net.

Note 1920 — Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements through March 2,
2023 February 27, 2024, the date the audited Consolidated Financial Statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition and disclosure have been
incorporated into these audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

On February 8, 2023 February 8, 2024, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a $0.035 per share cash dividend payable on May 10, 2023 May 8, 2024, to shareholders of
record on April 26, 2023 April 24, 2024.

In October 2022, the Company began an operations test with McDonald’s which included selling select doughnuts at nine McDonald’s restaurants in Louisville, Kentucky and the
surrounding area. In February 2023, McDonald’s announced an expanded market test that would include approximately 160 locations across Louisville, Lexington, Kentucky, and
the surrounding area, expected to begin in March 2023.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”)) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Table of Contents

As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer, CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Chief
Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining
records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our
financial statements; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance
that unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of Company assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be
prevented or detected.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 based on the framework and criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As a result of the evaluation,
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting
included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There were no changes during the fiscal quarter ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None. Adoption or Termination of Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

On March 15, 2023, our then-CEO, Michael Tattersfield, adopted a trading arrangement for the sale of the Company's common stock that is intended to satisfy the affirmative
defense conditions of the Securities Exchange Act Rule 10b5-1(c) (a “Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan”). Mr. Tattersfield's Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan was effective on June 15, 2023 and
has a term of one year. Mr. Tattersfield’s Rule 10b5-1 Plan provides for the sale of up to 155,000 shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the terms of such plan.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not applicable.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
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The information required by this item, including information about our Directors, Executive Officers, and Audit Committee and Code of Conduct, is incorporated by reference to the
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 20232024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the
SEC no later than 120 days after January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the
SEC no later than 120 days after January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 20232024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the
SEC no later than 120 days after January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the
SEC no later than 120 days after January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) List the Following Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not required or the required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
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40573, filed on August 18, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein),

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed on August

Description of Capital Stock

Credit Agreement, dated June 13, 2019, by and among_Cotton Parent,_Inc., Krispy_Kreme Doughnuts,_Inc., the other borrowers party thereto, the lenders party
thereto and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File
number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

herein),

Employment Agreement with Michael Tattersfield (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed

Employment Agreement with Josh Charlesworth (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

Term Loan Agreement, dated June 10, 2021, among_Krispy_Kreme Holdings,_Inc.,_as borrower,_the lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,_as
administrative agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding,_Inc. and Santander Bank, N.A., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

10.1010.5tT Form of Share Repurchase Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664,_filed on June
22,2021, and incorporated by reference herein),

10.1110.61T Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1/A,_File number 333-256664, filed on June 22,
2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.1210.7 Master Amendment No.1, No. 1, dated as of July 8, 2021, among_Cotton Parent,_Inc., Krispy_Kreme Doughnuts,_Inc.,_the other guarantors party_thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Citibank, N.A.,_as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573,
filed on July 13, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein),

10.1310.8 Joinder to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2021, between Krispy_Kreme, Inc. and Citibank, N.A.,_as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573, filed on July 13, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.14110.9t Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Regijstration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664,
filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein),
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Award Under the Krispy Kreme Holdings,_Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration

Restricted Stock Unit Award Terms and Conditions Under Krispy Kreme Holdings,_Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein),

Form of Option Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 9, 2023, and
incorporated by reference herein

Exclusive distribution agreement dated March 15, 2022, by and among_Krispy_Kreme Doughnut Corporation and BakeMark USA LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,_File number 001-40573, filed on May 11, 2022, and incorporated by reference herein)

incorporated by reference herein

Credit Agreement,_dated March 23, 2023, by and among_Krispy_Kreme,_Inc.,_Cotton Parent,_Inc.,_Krispy Kreme Doughnuts,_Inc.,_the other borrowers party.

Doughnut Corporation

Key Employment Agreement between Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation and Josh Charlesworth, dated October 12, 2023 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC Executive Ownership Plan

Matching_Award Agreement effective December 11, 2023 evidencing_a grant of Restricted Equity Units to Michael J. Tattersfield by Insomnia Cookies Holdings,
LLC)

Matching_Award Agreement effective December 11, 2023 evidencing_a grant of Restricted Equity Units to Joshua A. Charlesworth by Insomnia Cookies
Holdings, LLC

Joint Filing Agreement (filed as Exhibit 2 to the Company's Schedule 13D, File number 001-40573, filed on July 16, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)
List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, an Independent Registered Public Accounting_Firm

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Krispy Kreme,_Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)_or 15d-14(b)_promulgated under the
Exchange Act, and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code
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97.11* Krispy Kreme, Inc. Clawback Policy, effective as of October 2, 2023

101* The following financial statements from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, formatted in
Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss)/Income, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

*  Filed herewith.
**  Furnished herewith.

T Compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its
behalf of the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024

Krispy Kreme, Inc.

By: /sl Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Name: Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated as of March 2,
2023 February 27, 2024.
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Signature

/sl Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth

Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth

/s/ Jeremiah Ashukian

Jeremiah Ashukian

/sl Joey Pruitt Kelly McBride

Joey Pruitt Kelly McBride

/s/ Olivier Goudet

Olivier Goudet

/s! Paul Michaels

Paul Michaels

/s/ David Bell

David Bell

/sl Gerhard Pleuhs

Gerhard Pleuhs

/sl Philip Telfer

Philip Telfer

/s/ David Deno

David Deno

/sl Debbie Roberts

Debbie Roberts

/sl Lubomira Rochet

Lubomira Rochet

Table of Contents

/sl Michelle Weese

Michelle Weese

Is/ Marissa Andrada

Marissa Andrada

/sl Michael Tattersfield

Michael Tattersfield
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Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director, Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description summarizes important terms of our capital stock. This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the provisions of our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation (our “certificate of incorporation”) and our amended and restated by-laws (our “by-laws”), copies of which have been filed by us
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. For a complete description of our capital stock, you should refer to our certificate of incorporation, our by-laws and applicable
provisions of Delaware law. As used in this section, “we,” “us,” and “our,” mean Krispy Kreme, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its successors, but not any of its subsidiaries.

Our authorized capital stock consists of 300,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share.

Common Stock

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Generally, all matters to be voted on by
stockholders must be approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by all holders of shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy. Except as
otherwise provided by law, amendments to the certificate of incorporation must be approved by a majority or, in some cases, a super-majority of the voting power of all shares of
common stock.

Holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available therefor, subject to any statutory
or contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends and to any restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed by the terms of any outstanding preferred stock.

Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and after payment in full of all amounts required to be paid to creditors and to the holders of preferred stock having liquidation
preferences, if any, the holders of shares of our common stock will be entitled to receive pro rata our remaining assets available for distribution.

Holders of our common stock do not have preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights. The common stock will not be subject to further calls or assessment by
us. There will be no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the common stock. All shares of our common stock that will be outstanding at the time of the completion of
the offering will be fully paid and non-assessable.

Preferred Stock

Our certificate of incorporation will authorize our board of directors to establish one or more series of preferred stock (including convertible preferred stock).

Unless required by law or by any stock exchange, the authorized shares of preferred stock will be available for issuance without further action by you. Our board of directors
may determine, with respect to any series of preferred stock, the terms and rights of that series, including:

« the designation of the series;

« the number of shares of the series, which our board of directors may, except where otherwise provided in the preferred stock designation, increase or decrease, but not
below the number of shares then outstanding;

« the dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences of the series;

« whether the shares of the series will be convertible into shares of any other class or series, or any other security, of our Company or any other entity, and, if so, the
specification of the other class or series or other security, the conversion price or prices or rate or rates, any rate adjustments, the date or dates as of which the shares will
be convertible and all other terms and conditions upon which the conversion may be made;

« restrictions on the issuance of shares of the same series or of any other class or series; and

« the voting rights, if any, of the holders of the series.

We may issue a series of preferred stock that could, depending on the terms of the series, impede or discourage a takeover attempt or other transaction that a stockholder
might consider to be in its best interests, including a takeover attempt that might result in a premium over the market price for holders of shares of common stock.

Investors’ Rights Agreement

For the Investors’ Rights Agreement that we have with JAB, see Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended January 2, 2022.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Delaware Law and Our Organizational Documents

The following is a summary of certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and by-laws that may be deemed to have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, deter or
prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider to be in its best interests, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price
for holders of shares of common stock.

Authorized but Unissued Shares

The authorized but unissued shares of our common stock and our preferred stock will be available for future issuance without obtaining stockholder approval. These additional
shares may be utilized for a variety of corporate purposes, including future public offerings to raise additional capital, corporate acquisitions and employee benefit plans. The
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existence of authorized but unissued shares of our common stock and preferred stock could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control over us by means of a
proxy contest, tender offer, merger or otherwise.

Certain Anti-takeover Provisions of Delaware Law

We will be subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL, regulating corporate takeovers. This statute prevents certain Delaware corporations, under certain
circumstances, from engaging in a “business combination” with:

e astockholder who owns 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock (otherwise known as an “interested stockholder”);
« an affiliate of an interested stockholder; or

* an associate of an interested stockholder for three years following the date that the stockholder became an interested stockholder.
A “business combination” includes a merger or sale of more than 10% of our assets. However, the above provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL do not apply if:
« our board of directors approves the transaction that made the stockholder an “interested stockholder” prior to the date of the transaction;

« after the completion of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, that stockholder owned at least 85% of our voting stock
outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, other than statutorily excluded shares of common stock; or

« on or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is approved by our board of directors and authorized at a meeting of our stockholders, and not
by written consent, by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock not owned by the interested stockholder.

Choice of Forum

Our by-laws will provide that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the sole and exclusive forum for: (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of us;
(i) any action asserting a claim of breach of a duty (including any fiduciary duty) owed by any of our current or former directors, officers, stockholders, employees or agents to us or
our stockholders; (i) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our current or former directors, officers, stockholders, employees or agents arising out of or relating to any
provision of the DGCL or our certificate of incorporation or our by-laws; or (iv) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our current or former directors, officers, stockholders,
employees or agents governed by the internal affairs doctrine of the State of Delaware. Our by-laws will also provide that the federal district courts of the United States of America
will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act.

Moreover, Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules
and regulations thereunder and our by-laws will provide that the exclusive forum provision does not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange
Act. Accordingly, actions by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder must be brought in federal court.

Our by-laws will also provide that any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of our common stock will be deemed to have notice of and to
have consented to the foregoing provisions; provided, however, that stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules
and regulations thereunder. We recognize that the forum selection clause in our by-laws may impose additional litigation costs on stockholders in pursuing any such claims,
particularly if the stockholders do not reside in or near the State of Delaware. Additionally, the forum selection clause in our by-laws may limit our stockholders’ ability to bring a claim
in a forum that they find favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers, employees or agents, which may discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers,
employees and agents even though an action, if successful, might benefit our stockholders. The Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware may also reach different judgments or
results than would other courts, including courts where a stockholder considering an action may be located or would otherwise choose to bring the action, and such judgments may
be more or less favorable to us than our stockholders.

Limitations on Liability and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our certificate of incorporation provides that our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a
director, except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation is not permitted under the DGCL, as may be amended.

Our by-laws provide that we must indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by law. We are also expressly authorized to advance certain expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) to our directors and officers and carry directors’ and officers’ insurance providing indemnification for our directors and officers for some liabilities. We
believe that these indemnification provisions and insurance are useful to attract and retain qualified directors and executive officers.

Prior to completion of this offering, we intend to enter into separate indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. Each indemnification
agreement will provide, among other things, for indemnification to the fullest extent permitted by law and our certificate of incorporation against any and all expenses and liabilities,
including judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement of any claim with our approval and counsel fees and disbursements and any liabilities incurred as a result of
acting on our behalf (as a fiduciary or otherwise) in connection with an employee benefit plan. The indemnification agreements will provide for the advancement or payment of all
expenses to the indemnitee and for reimbursement to us if it is found that such indemnitee is not entitled to such indemnification under applicable law and our by-law. These
provisions and agreements may have the practical effect in some cases of eliminating our stockholders’ ability to collect monetary damages from our directors and executive
officers.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling the registrant pursuant to the foregoing
provisions, we have been informed that, in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Krispy Kreme, Inc.
As of January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023
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Name of Subsidiary

Jurisdiction of Formation

1. 1456212 Ontario Inc. Canada

2. Awesome Doughnut, LLC Delaware

3. Cotton Parent, Inc. Delaware

4. Glaze International Holding Ltd. England & Wales
5. HDN Development Corporation Kentucky

6. HDN Motor Coach, LLC North Carolina

7. Insomnia Cookies Canada, LLC Delaware

8. Insomnia Cookies Canada, ULC British Columbia
9. Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC Delaware

10. Insomnia Cookies, LLC Delaware

11. Insomnia Cookies Operators, LLC Delaware

12. Insomnia Cookies UK Ltd England & Wales
13. KK Canada AcquisitionCo Inc. Canada

14. KK Canada HoldCo ULC British Columbia
15. KK Canada Holdings, Inc.LLC Delaware

16. KremeWorks Canada, L.P. Delaware

17. KremeWorks, LLC lllinois

18. Krispy K Canada Inc. Canada

19. Krispy Kreme Asia Pacific Ltd. Hong Kong

20. Krispy Kreme Australia PTY Ltd. Australia

21. Krispy Kreme Canada, Inc. North Carolina
22. Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation North Carolina
23. Krispy Kreme Doughnuts DMCC United Arab Emirates
24, Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc. North Carolina
24.25. |Krispy Kreme Doughnuts France SAS Republic of France
25.26. |Krispy Kreme Holding UK Ltd. England & Wales
26.27. |Krispy Kreme Holdings PTY Ltd. Australia

27.28. |Krispy Kreme Ireland Limited Republic of Ireland
28.29. |Krispy Kreme Japan Co., Ltd. Japan

29.30. [Krispy Kreme Mexico Holding, S.A. P.I. de C.V. Mexico

30.31. [Krispy Kreme Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

31.32. |[Krispy Kreme New Zealand Limited New Zealand
32.33. [Krispy Kreme Servicios Administrativos, S.A. de C.V. Mexico

33.34. |Krispy Kreme Texas, LLC Delaware

34.35. |Krispy Kreme UK Limited England & Wales
85.36. |Serve U Brands Inc. New York

36.37. |Sonoflou, LLC Delaware

37.38. |W.K.S. Krispy Kreme, LLC Delaware

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting included in the
Annual Report of Krispy Kreme, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023. We consent to the incorporation by reference of said
report in the Registration Statement of Krispy Kreme, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-256664) and on Form S-8 (File No. 333-276045).

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Michael Tattersfield, Josh Charlesworth, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 of Krispy Kreme, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.

Date: March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024

[s/ Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Jeremiah Ashukian, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 of Krispy Kreme, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
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3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024
[s/ Jeremiah Ashukian
Jeremiah Ashukian
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Krispy Kreme, Inc. (the “Company”), for the annual period ended January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024
[s/ Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Michael Tattersfield Josh Charlesworth
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 2, 2023 February 27, 2024
[s/ Jeremiah Ashukian
Jeremiah Ashukian
Chief Financial Officer
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS
REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT
OR OTHER DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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